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PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE (DR DAVID V K CHAO)
(July 2023 to June 2024)

It has had a fruitful year for the Hong Kong
College of Family Physicians (HKCFP). Thanks
to all the dedicated efforts of the chairpersons
and members of the Boards and Committees
and the hardworking secretariat of HKCFP, we
have strived to provide ample of opportunities
for professional training, continuing medical
education, and continuing  professional
development for our membership including our
College Fellows, members, family doctors in
training as well as those in community practice.

We have continued to collaborate with our sister Colleges under the umbrella
of the Hong Kong College of Academy of Medicine to support the our
specialty training, we are very grateful for the support provided by the
leadership of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine and all the sister Colleges
under the Academy.

Our collaboration with the Royal Australian College of General Practitioners
(RACGP) on vocational training and conjoint Fellowship examination has
been steadfast and is approaching four decades. We are grateful for the
collegiality and ongoing strong support by the RACGP and we look forward
to even closer collaboration in the years to come.

With the establishment of the Primary Healthcare Commission, the HKCFP
looks forward to contributing further towards the Government’s policy of
enhancing Primary Healthcare and realising the “one family doctor for every
person” in the community.
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HONORARY SECRETARY’S MESSAGE (DR CECILIA Y M FAN)
(July 2023 to June 2024)

Along with the recovery after the COVID-19 pandemics, much of the work of HKCFP
has continued with online options in addition to the traditional work model. It is
appreciated that this good work is contributed by the extra effort of the secretariat.
With the advances in technology, we shall continue to apply online tools and digital
applications, wherever appropriate, to provide greater convenience to our members
while contributing to environmental protection.

The 13th Hong Kong Primary Care Conference was successfully held in hybrid mode
for the 1st time from 23 to 25 June, 2023., This year's theme was “Flourishing - b'
Primary Care: Family Doctor for Everyone” highlighting the strong commitment of _ W“‘J
our government for robust primary healthcare in Hong Kong, along the path of the ] )
Primary Care Blueprint released in December 2022. This annual signature conference has consistently attracted
the primary care community with an immense response of over 700 registered delegates.

o

The 36th Fellowship Conferment Ceremony of the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians (HKCFP) and the
33rd Dr Sun Yat Sen Oration was successfully held on 25 June 2023 at the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine
Building. This year, there were 41, 30 and 12 doctors conferred as HKCFP Fellows, RACGP Fellows and RACGP
International Conjoint Fellows respectively; 24 and 38 doctors awarded the Exit Examination Certificate and
Diploma in Family Medicine correspondingly. Congratulations and warm welcome to all again for joining our family
as fellows and specialists in Family Medicine. It is our great honor to have Dr. Libby Lee, Under Secretary for
Health, Health Bureau of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR), who delivered the inspiring
33rd Dr. Sun Yat Sen Oration titled “Reform on the Road”.

As for the College’s new souvenir, a polo shirt has been designed. This is meant to enhance a sense of belonging
and identity of our members, as well as to promote a climate of collegiality when members could wear it at College
events where the dress code is applied. The "Bring Colours to Life" motto printed on the polo shirt and its colourful
design represent our common wish for everyone to enjoy a colourful and vibrant life, full of happiness and
fulfilment. This polo shirt would be available for a limited time. You might wish to get one while stocks last.

The 50th Anniversary of the College would fall onto 2027. The College Council has decided to bid for hosting the
WONCA World Conference in 2027 and has arranged a bid presentation during the WONCA World Council
meeting in Sydney in October this year. Our bidding Comittiee received support and endorsement from various
stakeholders, including Government of the HKSAR, the Hong Kong Tourism Board, the Hong Kong Academy of
Medicine, Universities etc. Although we did not win the bid, we have gained valuable experience and friendship.
On the other hand, Dr. Cheryl Chan, who represented the College, has been successfully elected as the WONCA
Young Doctor Representative for 2023—2025. We believe Dr. Chan could help accelerate collaboration and
strengthen synergy for young doctors in the Asia Pacific Region and around the world.

This year, we are celebrating World Family Doctor Day under the theme “Healthy Planet, Healthy People,”
emphasizing the connection between the health of our planet and the health of our patients. Primary care plays
an important role in reducing the healthcare sector's carbon footprint. By focusing on early disease detection and
lifestyle change, the need for resource-intensive medical treatment could be reduced, which, not only brings to
improved health outcomes but also significantly lowers emissions by minimizing energy-intensive procedures.
Looking ahead, environmental protection is a serious and far-reaching topic, worthy of more extensive efforts to
explore.

I would take the opportunity to thank all the contributions from our dedicated fellows, boards and committee
members, particularly my sincere gratitude to the Secretariat and Ms Erica So, our General Manager, for their
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hard work to make all these events run smoothly throughout the difficult time of the pandemic in the past year.

Dr Cecilia Y M FAN
Honorary Secretary



BOARD OF CONJOINT EXAMINATION

(April 2023 to March 2024)

Chairman:

Members:

Ex-officio:

Board of Censors:

Staff:

Dr CHAN Hung Chiu

Dr IP Pang Fei

Dr LAU Ho Lim
Dr Kinson K S LAU
Dr Thomas M C DAO
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Dr Maria KW LEUNG
Dr Virginia S M KWAN
Dr Natalie P Y SIU
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(Chief Examiner &
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(Deputy KFP Coordinator, to December 2023;
KFP Coordinator, from January 2024 onwards)
(Deputy KFP Coordinator, from January 2024 onwards)
(AKT Coordinator)

(Deputy AKT Coordinator, to December 2023)

(Deputy AKT Coordinator, from January 2024 onwards)
(

(

(

Deputy AKT Coordinator, from January 2024 onwards)
OSCE Coordinator)
Deputy OSCE Coordinator)

Prof Samuel Y S WONG

Dr Billy CF CHIU
Dr CeciliaY M FAN

Prof Cindy L K LAM
Dr Stephen K S FOO
Prof Donald KT LI
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Ms Nana H T CHOY
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(Chief Censor)
(Censor)
(Censor)

(Executive Officer, from January 2024 onwards)
(Administrative Executive, from January 2024 onwards)
(Administrative Executive)

(Administrative Manager, to December 2023)

*Objective Structured Clinical Examination (OSCE) has been transferred as Clinical Competency Exam (CCE) since 2024.

Panel of Examiners:
(A) Active Examiners
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DrEvaTKAU
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Dr CHAU Kai Man
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Dr IP Pang Fei
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Dr KO Wai Kit

Dr KONG Che Wan
Dr Albert Y F KONG
Dr KUNG Kenny

Dr Virginia S M KWAN
Dr Michael C H KWOK
Dr Mary B L KWONG
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Prof Cindy L K LAM
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Dr LAM Wing Kwun



Dr LAM Wing Wo
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(B) Examiners
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Dr Bean SN FU
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Dr IP Pang Fei

Dr KUNG Kenny

Dr Virginia S M KWAN
Dr Tony Y T KWOK

Dr KWOK Yuen Na

Dr Catherine T M LAM
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Dr LAM Wing Kwun
Dr LAU Ho Lim

Dr LAU Kam Tong

Dr Kinson K S LAU
Dr Maria KW LEUNG
Dr Peter TK NG

Dr NGAI Ka Ho

Dr Natalie P Y SIU
Dr Gloria CY SO

Dr TAM Ho Shan

Dr Sammy L T TSOI
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The Examination
The format of the 37" Conjoint Examination 2023 was the same as in previous years, consisting of both Written and Clinical
Examinations.

Preparatory works for both segments started early from the beginning of the year. Thanks to the tremendous contributions of our Board
members, our case writers and all our examiners.

Workshops for Examiners

° 1t Examiner Training Workshop for OSCE 9 July 2023
(Sunday)

o 2" Examiner Training Workshop for OSCE 13 August 2023
(Sunday)

° CCE Lecture by the RACGP 3 November 2023
(Friday)

° Workshops on 1% Standard Setting for KFP examination paper 13 - 14 August 2023
(Sunday - Monday)

® Workshops on 2™ Standard Setting for KFP examination paper 25 - 26 August 2023
(Friday - Saturday)

® Workshops on 1%t and 2™ Standard Setting for AKT examination paper 20 August 2023
(Sunday)

[ KFP Marking Sessions 18 - 20 August 2023
(Friday - Sunday)

° Case-writing Seminar for KFP 30 January 2023
(Monday)

o Case-writing Meeting for AKT 11 January 2023
(Wednesday)

° Case-writing Group Meetings for OSCE February, May - June 2023

Introduction of Clinical Competency Exam to fellow Examiners

An introductory lecture was delivered by Dr Gary Butler (RACGP National Clinical Lead for Assessment) on the evening of 3™
November 2023 explaining to our Conjoint examiners details about the new format of the clinical exam — Clinical Competency Exam
CCE. The CCE will replace our OSCE in 2024. 61 examiners attended the talk.

Information Seminar for Candidates

An information seminar for candidates sitting the clinical segment was organized on 18 June 2023. 31 candidates attended. The
purpose of the seminar was to provide first-hand information to the candidates on the various aspects of the examination (including
the logistics, expectations, marking and standard setting methods, and so on), in order to help them become better prepared for the
examination and to minimize their anxiety and misunderstandings. Interactive sessions with video-taped scenarios were also
conducted.

Number of candidates

There was altogether a total of 84 candidates sitting for this year's examination, with 78 candidates of Category | and 6 Category Il
respectively.

52 candidates sat for the Written Segments (46 Cat | and 6 Cat Il candidates), while 43 candidates sat for the Clinical Examination
(37 Cat | and 6 Cat Il candidates).

The total numbers of candidates for the years from 2013 to 2023:

Total no. of Candidates (2013-2023)

150
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0
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The Conjoint Fellowship Examination
Written Segments:
KFP 13 August 2023 (Sunday)

AKT 20 August 2023 (Sunday)

Venue: HKAM Jockey Club Building
Venue: HKAM Jockey Club Building

Successful candidates in Written Examination 2023

1. Dr CHAN Hue Yan Stephanie 16. Dr LEE Chun Ki 31. Dr TANG Miu Sze

2.  Dr CHEUNG Ka Nam 17. Dr LEE Eric Yuk Ho 32. Dr TONG Hiu Tung

3. Dr CHEUNG Tsz Kei 18. Dr LEE Ka Kei 33. Dr TONG Yuk Ting Lucy

4. Dr CHIU Kwan Ki 19. Dr LEE Kin Lun 34. Dr WAN Kwong Ha

5. Dr CHOI Sze Yuen 20. Dr LEE Pak Lik Eric 35. Dr WONG Nicole

6. Dr CHU Pui Ling 21. DrLEUNG Ka Man 36. Dr WONG Sze Man

7. DrHO ShunYing 22. Dr LEUNG Wai Chung 37. Dr WU Chi Ho Bosco

8.  Dr Hui Tak Leung 23. Dr MA Hiu Tung 38. Dr YAP Jon-Alvan Tsun Hee
9. Dr KU Ngai Lam 24. Dr NG Ka Wai 39. Dr YEUNG Chin Fung

10. Dr KWOK Siu Leung 25. Dr NG Wing Hin Stephanie 40. Dr YEUNG Emma Yik Tsing
11. Dr LAM Ka Wing Kelvin 26. Dr NGAI Stanley Hiu-On 41. Dr YEUNG Pui Sze

12. Dr LAM Kwok Sang 27. Dr POON Daniel 42. DrYIU Sze Wa

13. Dr LAM Lai Cho Eugenia 28. Dr SAU Chung Ying 43. Dr ZHAO Haifeng

14. Dr LAU Hiu Fung Hugo 29. Dr SHENG Wei Yang

15. Dr LAU Sin Mei 30. Dr TAI Hing Kuen

The passing rates of the Written Examination for the years 2013 — 2023:

Written passing rate (2013 - 2023)
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Clinical Segment:

OSCE

4 - 5 November 2023 (Saturday - Sunday)

N Cat. Il passing rate

Successful candidates in Clinical Examination 2023

2020

2021 2022 2023

==pr== Overall passing rate

Venue: HKAM Jockey Club Building

1. Dr CHAN King Hang 13. Dr LEE Jerrold 25. DrTSO Sau Lin

2. Dr CHAU Kei Wai 14. Dr LI Kwok Ho 26. Dr WONG Calvin Alexander
3.  Dr CHOW Wing Man 15. Dr LI Shiyue 27. Dr WONG Chun Hun Jonathan
4. Dr FUNG Wai Yee 16. DrLIU Ka Yee 28. Dr WONG Tsz Yan

5. DrHO Ka Ki 17. Dr LO Chak Yui 29. DrWOO Long Yiu

6. Dr HO Suet Ying 18. Dr LUl TszYin 30. Dr WU Chi Ho Bosco

7. DrHO Sze Ho 19. Dr NG Chi Wing Carrie 31. DrWU Flora

8. Dr HOU Baijing 20. Dr NOH Young Ah 32. Dr YAP Jon-Alvan Tsun Hee
9. Dr LAI Ge Woon Gevon 21. Dr SHENG Wei Yang 33. Dr YU Kwun Nam

10. Dr LAM Chi Hang 22. DrTAI Lok Yin Nadia 34. Dr YU Louise Anne Sum Wun
11. Dr LAM Lai Cho Eugenia 23. Dr TANG Miu Sze

12. Dr LAM Wing Ching Nicole 24. Dr TSANG Lai Ting
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The passing rates of the OSCE Examination for the years 2013 - 2023:

OSCE passing rate (2013 -2023)
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External Examiners from RACGP

Dr Chris Hughes (RACGP Censor) and Dr Gary Butler (RACGP National Clinical Lead for Assessment) were the visiting External
Examiners from RACGP this year for the OSCE Examination on 4 - 5 November 2023.

Security

Strong emphasis was put on the security measures as in previous years. All preparatory procedures were carried out according to our
security protocols, including:

1. Strict adherence to the working protocol by staff handling all the examination materials.

2. Use of designated Case-Writing Subcommittee, consisting of Examiners, led by our Chief Examiner, to be responsible for the
preparation of all the OSCE cases.

3. A centralized process for development of examination cases and marking schemes, with examination materials exposed to a
minimal number of persons.

4. Strict adherence to the security protocol for the OSCE examination by all examiners (including strict prohibition of electronic

transference of exam materials).

Transmission of confidential examination materials through the secured sharing platform as suggested by RACGP.

Presentation of OSCE examination materials to examiners only on the day of examination.

Continual appeal to the professional integrity of all involved in the examination.

Forbiddance of use of any electronic devices by candidates inside examination venue.

Prompt data entry of candidates’ scores on the same day of examination.

© © N O»

All these measures, among many others, were well adhered to throughout the whole examination period.

Quality Assurance

Quality assurance of our examination was maintained by the large number of experienced local examiners in our panel. Pairing up
experienced examiners with less experienced examiners also helped to improve its validity. Our local QA Examiners and External
Examiners continued to assess and monitor the standards of our local examiners as well as the role players.

Comments on individual examiner by various QA Examiners were grouped and sent to each examiner for reference.

Examination Prize: "Dr Peter C Y Lee Best Candidate Award 2023"
It was the nineteenth year that the College offered this prize. From the year 2013, this award was renamed “Dr Peter C Y Lee Best
Candidate Award” for commemorating Dr Peter Lee’s contribution to the discipline of family medicine. The “Dr Peter C Y Lee Best

Candidate Award 2023” was presented to Dr LIU Ka Yee and Dr WOO Long Yiu, who had passed the Conjoint Examination at one
setting and achieved the best performance in the examination.

1"



Acknowledgement

The Board of Conjoint Examination would like to thank our Chief Examiner, segment Coordinators and segment Deputy Coordinators
for contributing so much of their time and effort throughout the entire examination, all the Board members for their active participation,
the External Examiners from RACGP for their continual advice and support, all our QA Examiners, Case-writing and Marking
Examiners, Trainee Examiners, and Role Players for their time and contributions before and during the examination, and all our
College secretarial staff and helpers for their excellent administrative and supportive works.

BOARD OF DIPLOMA IN FAMILY MEDICINE

(July 2023 to June 2024)

Chairman: Dr Simon C L AU

Members: Dr Stephen K S FOO
Prof Cindy L K LAM
Prof Donald K T LI
Dr David V K CHAO

Dr Edmond C W CHAN

Dr CHAN Man Li

Dr WAN Kwong Yu

Dr Bobo H'Y TSUI

Dr Ken KM HO

Dr AU-YEUNG Shiu Hing
Dr Mary B L KWONG

Dr WONG Pak Hoi

Prof Samuel Y S WONG
Dr LAU Ho Lim

Dr Billy C F CHIU

Dr Cecilia Y M FAN

Ex-officio:

Staff: Ms Alky H K YU

Ms Nana H T CHOY
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Course Director)
Course Advisor)
Course Co-ordinator)
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(Course Co-ordinator) !
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(Deputy Chairman and Chairman, m

DFM Assessment & Examination Subcommittee
(Co-ordinator, DFM Clinical Examination)
(Deputy Co-ordinator, DFM Clinical Examination)
(Co-ordinator, DFM Written Examination)
(Module | & Il Co-ordinator)

(Module Ill Co-ordinator)

(Module 1V Co-ordinator)

(Module V Co-ordinator)

Vice-President, Education & Examination)
Vice-President, General Affairs)

Honorary Treasurer)

Honorary Secretary)

—~ o~~~

(Executive Officer)
(Administrative Executive)

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

The DFM course entered her twenty-second year. This was a successful year as thirty-three candidates graduated in the DFM course
2023 - 2024. The Board praised the candidates for their hard work and commitment in learning new knowledge and skill in Family
Medicine and congratulated them on their wonderful accomplishment.

On behalf of the Board, | would also like to take this opportunity to thank Professor Cindy L K LAM, Professor Donald K T LI, Dr
Stephen K S FOO and our President, Dr David V K CHAO for their continuous support and guidance. Lastly, | like to express my
deepest appreciation to Dr Edmond C W CHAN for leading his team in organizing the final examinations, Dr CHAN Man Li for his
dedication in clinical examination, Dr Bobo H Y TSUI for her dedication in written examination and all the hardworking Board members,
teachers, examiners and trainee examiners for their unfailing support and selfless contribution. | also wished to thank our secretarial
staff Ms Alky H K YU for her diligent work.

DFM Course 2023-2024

The DFM Course consisted of five Modules: Principles of Family Medicine (Distance Learning), Common Problems in Family Medicine
(Distance Learning), Essentials of Family Medicine (Structured Seminars & Tutorials), Clinical Updates (Updates and Clinical
Attachment) and Practical Family Medicine (Practical Workshops). The timetable of the Course was as follows:

Dates Topics Teaching Staff
18 July 2023 (Fri) Introduction Session Course & Module Co-ordinators
25 July 2023 -

Module | — Principles of Family Medicine Distance Learning Module |

1 October 2023

29 July 2023 (Sat) Module V - Consultation Skill Workshop | Dr Simon C LAU

12



12 August 2023 (Sat)

19 August 2023 (Sat)

9 September 2023 (Sat)
16 September 2023 (Sat)
23 September 2023 (Sat)

7 October 2023 (Sat)

7 October 2023 —
3 December 2023

14 October 2023 (Sat)

21 October 2023 (Sat)
11 November 2023 (Sat)
18 November 2023 (Sat)
2 December 2023 (Sat)

9 December 2023 (Sat)

16 December 2023 (Sat)
6 January 2024 (Sat)

13 January 2024 (Sat)
20 January 2024 (Sat)
27 January 2024 (Sat)

3 February 2024 (Sat)

24 February 2024 (Sat)

2 March 2024 (Sat)
9 March 2024 (Sat)
24 March 2024 (Sun)
20 April 2024 (Sat)
27 April 2024 (Sat)
28 April 2024 (Sun)
25 May 2024 (Sat)
26 May 2024 (Sun)

Module Ill - General Overview on Chronic Diseases
Management on Heart Diseases, Stroke, Hypertension and
Diabetes

Module Il — Mental Health Care in Primary Care
Module IV — FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 1
Module V — Counseling Skills Workshop

Module V — Musculoskeletal Workshop

Module IV — FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 2
Module Il Tutorial Session

Module I — Common Problems in Family Medicine

Module Ill — Elderly Care and Related Issues on Fall Prevention,
Hip Fracture & Polypharmacy

Module Ill - Common Musculoskeletal Problems

Module Il — Evidence-based Medicine & Critical Appraisal
Module IV — FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 3

Module IV — FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 4

Module Ill — Clinical Audit, Research & Teaching in Family
Medicine

Module V — Orthopaedic Injection Workshop

Module IV — FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 5

Module V — Consultation Skills Workshop 2

Module V — Women’s Health Workshop

Module Il — Practice Management and District Health Centre
Module IV — FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 6

Module Il — Anticipatory Care and Effective Health and Cancer
Screening

Module IV — FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 7

Module IV — FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 8

Module V — APCLS Training Workshop & Examination 1
Pre-exam Workshop |

Pre-exam Workshop I

Module V — APCLS Training Workshop & Examination 2
Written Examination

Clinical Examination

DFM Assessment and Examination Subcommittee

Chairman:
Subcommittee Members:

Dr Edmond C W CHAN
Dr CHAN Man Li

Dr WAN Kwong Yu

Dr Bobo HY TSUI

Dr CHUNG Kin Wing

Dr FOK Peter Anthony
Dr Ken KM HO

Dr LAI Sheung Siu

Dr LEUNG Cheuk Wing
Dr Wanmie W M LEUNG

Case Leader
Case Leader
Case Leader
Case Leader
Case Leader
Case Leader

Panel of Examiners for DFM Course 2023 - 2024:

QA Examiners:
Dr Simon C LAU

Examiners:

Dr CHAN Pui Wai

Dr CHAN Wing Yi

Dr CHANG Wells

Dr Samantha H K CHAU
Dr CHENG Kit Wing

Dr CHOW Tsz Ling

Dr Stephen K S FOO

Dr CHUNG Kin Wing
Dr CHUNG Wai Ho

Dr FOK Chun Man

Dr FOK Peter Anthony
Dr HAN Jinghao

Dr Ken KM HO

Dr CHAN Man Li

Dr WAN Kwong Yu
Dr CHAN Man Li
Dr Anthony K'Y HO
Dr Simon C LAU

Dr FOK Peter Anthony
Dr Ken KM HO

Distance Learning Module I

Dr Selina K'Y CHAN

Dr Simon C LAU

Dr Eric K P LEE

Dr Simon C LAU

Dr Loretta W'Y CHAN

Professor Cindy L K LAM

Dr LAU Hoi Kuen

Dr Nancy S Y YUEN
Dr CHAN Man Li

Dr Clement L K CHAN
Dr Donald KT LI

Dr CHAN Man Li

Dr David V K CHAO

Dr Mark S H CHAN
Dr Mary B L KWONG
APCLS instructors, HKCFP

APCLS instructors, HKCFP

Co-ordinator, Clinical Examination
Deputy Co-ordinator, Clinical Examination
Co-ordinator, Written Examination

Dr WONG Pak Hoi

Dr KWOK Chi Ming

Dr LAI Sheung Siu

Dr LEE Sum

Dr LEUNG Cheuk Wing
Dr Wanmie W M LEUNG
Dr. LIU Yin Mei
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Dr LO Wan Shun

Dr SHUEN Chuen Kwok
Dr SIN Ming Chuen

Dr SZETO Chui Ying

Trainee Examiners:
Dr Ricky K S CHAN
Dr Kilpatrick K P CHAN
Dr CHAN Yuen Ling

Dr WONG Kwok Hoi
Dr Kitty K WONG
Dr WONG Sze Kei
Dr WONG Tak Lung

Dr CHO Yin Fan
Dr LEE Ying Cheung
Dr LO Chak Yui

Dr Derek G C YING
Dr YIP Tze Hung

Dr WONG Chiu Lun

Pre-examination Workshops:
The simulated OSCE workshops were organised for candidates before the final examinations on 20 and 27 April 2024 (Saturdays).
Those who were not familiar with the examination format would have a chance to practice through the simulated workshops.

Written and Clinical Examinations:
The written examination and the clinical examination were held on 25 and 26 May 2024 (Saturday and Sunday).

Graduation Ceremony 2023 - 2024
The Graduation Ceremony of the 22" DFM Course of the College was held jointly with Conferment Ceremony on 7 July 2024.

The DFM 2023-2024 successful candidates were:

Dr. Yvonne KW CHAN Dr. LAM Yick Chuen Dr. Crystal HY TSE

Dr. CHAN Pui Kam Dr. LEE Yung Ho Dr. Wendy Y WEN

Dr. James W'Y CHANG Dr. Peter K C LEUNG Dr. WONG Sze Man

Dr. CHOW Ching To Dr. LIU Ho Yat Dr. WONG Wai Chuen
Dr. Alice MW CHUN Dr. LU Ying Jia Dr. WONG Wai |

Dr. DAI'Yi Pui Dr. LUK Jing Si Dr. WONG Yu Tak

Dr. Tiffany L L FUNG Dr. NG Ching Man Dr. XIONG Shing Chuen
Dr. HO Pek San Dr. POON Lai Wa Dr. YAN Ka Shing

Dr. HUI Siu Kwan Dr. POON Yin Ki * Dr. YEUNG Pui Shan
Dr. IEONG Kam Tou Dr. Farrah | TAM Dr. William T W YEUNG
Dr. LAM Ka Wai Dr. Ann-Marie J M TONG Dr. YIP Ting Fung

*passing with distinction

BOARD OF EDUCATION
(April 2023 to March 2024)
Chairman: Dr King K H CHAN

Advisors: Prof Samuel Y S WONG

Dr Matthew M H LUK (Web-based Learning)

Board Members:

Advancing Knowledge Work Group (AKS-1)

Dr. King K H CHAN (Work Group Leader)

Dr Catherine X R CHEN (Work Group Leader)

Dr Alvin CY CHAN

Dr Simon C LAU (DFM)

Dr Florence S S LAl (Assessment Enhancement Course Work Group)
Dr Vincent W S LI (Annual Refresher Course Work Group)

Dr Lorna V NG (HKPCC)

Dr Annie KY OR

Advancing Skills Work Group (AKS-2)

Dr Edmond C W CHAN (Work Group Leader)

Dr Louis KW CHAN (POCUS)

Dr David S L CHAN (Work Group Leader; Leader, Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation Work Group)
Dr Winnie W'Y CHAN (OLMH Coordinator, Community Education Work Group)

14



Dr DAO Man Chi (to November 2023)

Dr Primus L C HUI From May 2024)

Dr Winson W'Y HUNG QA &A)

Dr KONG Che Wan Deputy Leader; Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation Work Group)
Dr Danny P K MA UCH Coordinator, Community Education Work Group)

Dr WONG Ka Wah Liaison Person with Editorial Board)

Dr WONG Pak Hoi Deputy Leader, Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation Work Group)

~ o~ o~ o~~~

Specific Interest, Small Group and Video Session Work Group (AKS-3)

Dr Leon G TONG (Work Group Leader; Coordinator, Interest Group in Medical-legal Alert)

Dr TONG Siu Man (Work Group Leader; Leader, Small Discussion Group Work Group)

Dr Simon C LAU (Coordinator, Interest Group in Neuro-Musculoskeletal)

Dr Mark S H CHAN (Coordinator, Interest Group in Mental Health & Psychiatry in Primary Care & Coordinator and Interest

Group in Medical Humanities)
Dr CHEUNG Ying Man (Deputy Leader, Video Viewing & Video Library Work Group)
Dr Anthony K'Y HO (Coordinator, Interest Group in Counselling)
Dr KO Siu Hin (Coordinator, Interest Group in Evidence-based Medicine)
Dr Edmund W W LAM (Coordinator, Interest Group in Dermatology)
Dr MO Kam Chuen (Leader, Video Viewing & Video Library Work Group, to July 2024)

Measuring Outcome Activities Work Group (MOA)
Prof Samuel Y S WONG
Dr KO Siu Hin

Web-based Learning Work Group (WBL)
Dr Matthew M H LUK
Dr Cupid P S CHENG

Review Performance, Standard and Feedback Work Group (RPS)

Dr Mary B L KWONG (Leader, Clinical Attachment Work Group, Advisor of CPR Work Group and liaise person with RCHK)
Dr TSUI Hing Sing
Dr Esther Y T YU
Ex-officio: Dr David V K CHAO (President)
Prof. Samuel Y S WONG (Vice-President, Education & Examination)
Dr LAU Ho Lim (Vice-President, General Affairs)
Dr Billy C F CHIU (Honorary Treasurer)
Dr CeciliaY M FAN (Honorary Secretary))
Staff: Ms Teresa D F LIU (Executive Officer)
Ms Windy W L LAU (Administrative Executive)

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

During the year 2023-2024, the Board continued to organize a series of different educational activities for our members and doctors
in Hong Kong. Excluding the meeting of individual small discussion groups, the Board had provided a total of 71 sessions of CME
activities contributing 122 learning hours for our members in the whole year. These abundant activities were outlined below.

15



No. of sessions held from April 2023 - March 2024

0
APCLS Training -

Assessment Enhancement Course

Annual Refresher Course

Certificates Courses (3 courses)

Various Interest Groups

Annual Updates, Luncheon Meetings, Seminars and Workshops

Video Sessions

Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Training: Advanced Primary Care Life Support Training

The Advanced Primary Care Life Support (APCLS) organized by the CPR Work Group was launched in 2017 in order to align with our
Sister College (RACGP) requirement of Advanced Life Support components, namely the airway management, neck support and
automated external defibrillation (AED) on top of basic life support.

2 sessions of APCLS training workshops were held successfully and the arrangement was well-received by the participants and
instructors.

This year, we had 73 members who passed the APCLS Examination and were awarded the Certificate of Competency in Advanced
Primary Care Life Support, which is also endorsed by the Resuscitation Council of Hong Kong.

The Board would like to express our deepest appreciation to our external examiner from RCHK, namely Dr. CHOI Yim Ping and Dr.
Albert C H LIT in the instructor and examination workshops. Furthermore, sincere thanks must be given to Dr David S L CHAN, Dr
AU-YEUNG Shiu Hing, Dr KONG Che Wan, Dr Mary B L KWONG and Dr WONG Pak Hoi in coordinating the training manuals, various
workshops; and all instructors and trainee instructors as listed below for their time and effort in helping out the CPR training and
examination for our members.

Instructors: Dr David S L CHAN, Dr CHEUNG Ying Man, Dr John T N CHUNG, Dr HUI Lai Chi, Dr KO Siu Hin, Dr KONG Che Wan,
Dr Michael C H KWOK, KWONG Hon Kei, Dr Mary B L KWONG, Dr Millicent L K LEUNG, Dr Selina S W LEUNG, Dr Danny P K MA,
Dr MO Kam Chuen, Dr TAM Wah Kit, Dr Luke C Y TSANG, Dr Keith TSE, Dr WONG Ka Wah, Dr Amy O Y WONG , Dr WONG Pak
Hoi and Dr Rita W M WONG.

Assessment Enhancement Course

Assessment Enhancement Course remained one of the most welcome courses in her 24th year of establishment. | would like to thank
all the tutors in contributing their time and effort in this course. The course has proven to help tremendously in improving the skills on
consultation, physical examination and other various aspects of the participating doctors. Furthermore, a mock examination on OSCE
was arranged at the end of the course, which is very useful to our members in preparing the Conjoint Fellowship Examination. The
Board would like to express our sincere thanks to Dr Florence S S LAl in coordinating the course and all tutors for their hard work as
follows: Dr CHAN Man Li, Dr Ricky K S CHAN, Dr CHAN Wing Yi, Dr CHAN Yuen Ching, Dr CHANG Hoi Yi, Dr Peter Anthony FOK,
Dr Andrew Y W FUNG, Dr Candy Y T HUI, Dr JIAO Fangfang Dr Matthew T C LAM, Dr NG Kai Man, Dr NG Tsz Chung, Dr SZETO
Chui Ying, Dr TAM Long Yee, Dr TSAI Hung Yu, Dr YEUNG Lok Ki, Dr Genevieve M L YIU, Dr WONG Chiu Lun and Dr WONG Kwok
Hoi.

Annual Refresher Course

Annual Refresher Course has been the traditional major year-end event for 43 years. ARC 2023 was held online, also hybrid mode
(i.e. face-to-face & online) would be available to some of the sessions.. We had 6 weekday lectures and 3 Sunday workshops and
over 252 members attended the course. We would like to thank all those participants who returned their evaluation questionnaires.
Their comments and suggestions are invaluable in helping us to plan for the next ARC.
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LUNCHEON LECTURES

Date

28 Nov 2023 (Tue)

30 Nov 2023 (Thu)

5 Dec 2023 (Tue)

7 Dec 2023 (Thu)

12 Dec 2023 (Tue)

14 Dec 2023 (Thu)

Topics

Migraine
A Holistic Approach to Migraine Management: Integrating Diagnosis
and Breakthrough Therapies

Pneumococcal Disease
Recent Advances in Novel Pneumococcal Vaccine

Update on Osteoporosis Management
Osteoporosis - From Diagnosis to Long-term Management

LGBTQ Awareness in Healthcare

New solution for Metabolic Syndromes Management: Metabolic
Health Benefits of Fiber

Meningococcal B Vaccine
Latest update on meningococcal disease

SUNDAY WORKSHOPS

Hypertension, Chronic Venous Disease & Depression
1. Differential clinical advantages of antidepressant for better
management of depression

19 Nov 2023 (Sun) 2. Hypertension management of patient with cardiometabolic

26 Nov 2023 (Sun)

17 Dec 2023 (Sun)

comorbidities: moving from a disease-centered to a patient-centered
approach
3. Management and Treatment of Chronic Venous Disease

Pain Management
Management of Patients with Acute and Chronic Pain

Asthma and Diabetic Kidney Disease
1. Management of Asthma in Primary Care
2. Diabetic Kidney Disease Management in Primary Care

Speakers

Dr LEE Chi Nam

Dr Matthew WONG

Dr Wong Sze Hung

1. Dr Winston GOH
2.Dr Sam W S LI

Dr Elaine Y K CHOW

Dr TAM Yat Cheung

. Dr Raymond K'Y WONG
. Dr TAM Kin Ming
3. Dr Mina CHENG

N =

N

. Dr Donovan WONG
2. Dr CHAN Chi Wai

-

. Dr Thomas Y W MOK
2. Dr Elaine Y K CHOW

The Board would like to take this opportunity to thank Dr Vincent W S LI in organizing the course and all the speakers in making our
ARC very successful.

Annual Updates, Luncheon Meetings, Seminars and Workshops

Updates seminars and weekday luncheon lectures were organized regularly throughout the whole year with the support from various
specialties including Cardiology, Dental, Endocrinology, ENT, Surgery, Gynaecology, Dermatology, Gastroenterology, Geriatric,
Nephrology, Neurology, Oncology, Ophthalmology, Orthopaedics, Paediatric, Psychiatry, Respiratory and Rheumatology.

The following were our programmes since the last report:

Dates
19 Apr 2023

25 Apr 2023

28 May 2023

13 Jun 2023
14 Jun 2023

28 Jun 2023

17 Jul 2023
18 Jul 2023
27 Jul 2023

Topics

The Essentiality of Heart Rate Control

COVID-19 Symposium: From Prevention to Clinical Management

1. Updated Asthma Management
2. SABA Overuse
3. Inhaler Treatment for Adult Asthma

Individualising Antithrombotic Strategies for Coronary Artery Disease (CAD)

One Step ahead to Support a Healthier Aging
1. Proactively screening nerve health status for Diabetes patients
2. Chronic inflammatory monitoring in clinic practice

1. Burden of SABA Over-reliance: From Global to Local Perspectives

2. Evolving Management in Mild Asthma — Overcoming Reliance on SABA
New Management in Diabetes Kidney Disease

Knee pain “in and out”

The future of COVID-19 management in Primary Care: Knowing who,
when and how

Speakers
Dr TANG King Fun

1. Prof Alexis KALERGIS,
2. Dr Daniel W S CHU,
3. Dr KWAN Yat Wah

1. Prof Roland BUHL
2. Prof Esther CHAN

Dr Andrew K'Y NG

1. Dr LEE Chi Nam
2. Dr CHAN Fei

1. Prof Esther CHAN
2. Dr Julie WANG

Dr Peter LIN
Dr Raymond Y N YEUNG
Dr Teresa K F WANG
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31 Aug 2023

10 Sep 2023

22 Sep 2023
25 Sep 2023

27 Sep 2023
4 Oct 2023

26 Oct 2023
26 Oct 2023

31 Oct 2023
16 Nov 2023
7 Dec 2023

28 Feb 2024

15 Mar 2024

17 Mar 2024

Local Epidemiology, Disease Burden and New PCV Development in IPD
for Paediatrics & Adults Patients

Sunday Symposium for Primary Care Doctors

1. Insight from RCT and RWE: Translating the scientific data into clinical
practice for AF patients

2. Updates on GOLD 2023: What are the latest guidelines suggestions on
COPD treatment?

3. ldiopathic vs Progressive Pulmonary Fibrosis: How should we identify
them?

4. Optimizing the outcomes of diabetes patients with kidney disease

5. SGLT2 Inhibitors — Wonder drugs in heart failure and beyond?

Update on Heart Failure with Reduced Ejection Fraction (HFrEF) 2023
and Revisit of Beta Blocker

Glucose lowering, glycemic durability and organ protection - how should
we strategize?

Updates in Management of Subfertility
Era of Depression Management
Fatty Liver Management

COVID in times of changing variants —can existing data inform the next

steps?

1. COVID-19 prevention and treatment in at-risk populations

2. Severe COVID-19 outcomes after vaccination— learnings from a large UK
database

Diagnosing and Managing Migraine in Primary Care Setting

Expert Sharing: Covid-19 four years on: What have we learnt?

Staying Ahead of Shingles: 10 Years Protection from Vaccination

1. Cracking the Shingles in Our Community: Exploring the Hidden Risks and

Vulnerabilities
2. Staying Ahead of Shingles: 10 years protection from vaccination

Evaluating point of care tests for guiding antimicrobial prescribing in
primary care

The New Era of Pneumococcal Prevention against Pneumococcal
Serotype Evolution

CaReMe Forum: Enhancing Chronic Kidney Disease (CKD) Management

in Primary Care

1. Unveiling strategies for CKD risk identification

2. Understanding the relationship between hypertension and kidney disease:
Strategies for early management of CKD

3. Preventing cardiorenal complications in diabetes mellitus: An integrated
approach

4. Holistic CKD management and navigating challenges in the primary care
setting

. Dr KWAN Yat Wah
. Prof lvan F N HUNG

. Dr Richard LI

. Dr Matthew K'Y WONG
. Dr Terence C C TAM

. Dr Gordon C K CHAN

. Dr WONG Ka Lam

ABWON-= N =

Dr CHAN Lip Kiong

Prof Ralph Anthony
DEFRONZO

Dr Anita M K CHOW
Dr CHAN Chung Mau
Dr CHAN Wai Chung

1. Prof Grace C Y LUI
2. Dr Utkarsh AGRAWAL

Prof Hans-Christoph DIENER
Prof YANG Kuang Yao

1. Dr LAM Wing Wo
2. Prof Tony CUNNINGHAM

Prof Chris BUTLER

Dr LING Li Min

1. Dr Winston W S FUNG
2. Dr Elaine Y K CHOW
3. Dr CHAN Zi

4. Dr Maria KW LEUNG

The Board would like to take this opportunity to thank all guest speakers in our various College scientific and educational events.

The Board would like to express our sincere thanks to Dr AU-YEUNG Shiu Hing, the Moderator Work group leader, Dr Edmond C W
CHAN, Dr Alvin C Y CHAN, Dr Ricky K S CHAN, Dr CHAN Kin Wai, Dr Mark S H CHAN, Dr Catherine X R CHEN, Dr John T N
CHUNG, Dr Anthony K'Y HO, Dr Sharon S W HO, Dr KO Wai Kit, Dr LEUNG Lok Hang, Dr Lorna NG VENTURA, Dr NGAN Po Lun,
Dr OR Ka Yan, Dr Regina W S SIT, Dr Kathy K L TSIM and Dr Robert H S TSUI for being the moderators.

The Board would like to thank all those members for giving us comments or returning evaluation forms after attending the lectures or
Updates. Their valuable comments would enable the Board to arrange lectures to meet the learning needs of our members in the
future. Again, members are encouraged to submit their CPD logs after attending these lectures and Updates to gain additional CPD

points.

Clinical Attachment

Due to COVID-19 pandemic, the clinical attachment has suspended for the time being. We will try to resume to attachment as soon
as the pandemic is stabilized.
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Certificate Course

Certificate Course on Bringing Better Health to Our Community 2023 co-organized with QEH

Dates

19 Aug 2023 1.
2.

16 Sep 2023 1.
2.

14 Oct 2023 1.
2.

18 Nov 2023 1.
2.

Topics

Approach to Management of Chronic Headache

Attention deficit hyperactivity disorder (ADHD) / Autism spectrum disorder
(ASD) - What a GP should know

Update on Management of Dyspepsia

Update on Nasopharyngeal Cancer - From Screening to Management

Update on Management of Rheumatoid Arthritis
Management of Palpitations in Primary Care

Common Orthopaedic Problems in Children

Medical Treatment for Lower Urinary Tract Symptoms (LUTS)

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank and all the guest speakers and moderators.
Online Certificate Course on Management of Common Skin Problems in General Practice

Dates
12 Nov 2023

2 Dec 2023

16 Dec 2023

14 Jan 2024 .

27 Jan 2024 .

Topics

Psoriasis and psoriasiform disorders

Bullous disorders of the skin

Hair, nail, sebaceous, sweat and apocrine glands problems

Eczema and contact dermatitis

Pityriasis rosea and lichen planus

Acne

Common Paediatric skin problems

Pigmentary disorders

Common clinic procedures (e.g. skin scrapings for microscopy, skin biopsy,
cryotherapy, skin testing for allergy, dermoscopy etc.)

Introduction to phototherapy and laser treatment

Benign skin lumps and conditions: seborrheic keratosis, hypertrophic scar,
keloid, pyogenic granuloma etc.)

Common skin cancers

Cutaneous manifestation of systemic diseases

Drug eruption and urticaria

Common fungal disorders and infestations of the skin

Common viral and bacterial disorders of the skin

Speakers

1.
2.

N=a N= N =

Dr Annie Y N MEW
Dr Marshall M C LEE

. Dr CHIU On Pong

. Dr Eddy WY WONG

. Dr CIANG Chu Oi

. Dr CHENG Yuet Wong
. Dr Michael TSE

. Dr Raymond KAN

Speakers
Dr LEE Tze Yuen

Dr CHAN Yung

Dr David C K LUK

Dr AU Chi Sum

Dr WONG Sze Man

Dr Adrian K C CHENG
Dr Martin M H CHUNG

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinator, Dr Edmund W W LAM and all the guest speakers. The Board
would also like to thank Dr Edmond C W CHAN, Dr CHAN Man Li, Dr WAN Kwong Yu for being the moderators.

Certificate Course on Palliative Care for Primary Care Doctors 2023 co-organized with Hong Kong Society of Palliative

Medicine

The objectives of the course are to promote the role of family physicians in the provision of palliative care in the community, to equip
family physicians with the knowledge and resources in offering palliative care to their patients and to facilitate the collaboration between
palliative care specialists and family physicians.

The training course consists of 5 sessions of online interactive seminars with the following details:

Dates
17 Oct 2023 1.

2
3.
4.

24 Oct 2023 1.

2.
3.
7 Nov 2023 1.
2.
14 Nov 1.
2023 2.
3.
4.
9 Dec 2023 1.
2.

Topics

Palliative Care Development and Available Services in HK
PC Principles & Prognostication

Symptom Assessment and Approach to Symptom Management
Common cancer symptom & Management

Common Cancer Symptoms & Management

Psycho-spiritual Needs and Assessment in advanced diseases:

Depression, Anxiety, Delirium, Existential Distress

Legal issues on End-of-life care

ACP and AD - from psychogeriatric perspective

Symptoms & Management in patients with End-stage Renal Disease
Symptoms & Management in Neurodegenerative Diseases, Frailty & Dementia

Symptoms & Management in patients with Advanced COPD
Symptoms & Management in patients with Advanced CHF

Common Palliative Oncological Treatment: Its Adverse Reactions &
Management
Care of Dying Patients at Home

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank all the guest speakers.

Speakers
Dr Tracy W T CHEN

Dr Jerry CW HO

Dr Clare LY LEUNG
Dr CHAN Lut Ming

Ms Olivia LEUNG
Dr Jess L M LEUNG

Dr Benjamin HW
CHENG

Dr Johnny K S LAU

Dr Jeffrey S C NG
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Professional Development Work Group

Since 2005, 10 Interest Groups have been formed under Professional Development Work Group Clinical Family Medicine, Chronic
Disease and Geriatrics, Counseling, Dermatology, Evidence-based Medicine, Medico-legal Alert, Mental Health and Psychiatry in
Primary Care, Medical Humanities, Neuro-Musculoskeletal and Point-of-care Ultrasound (POCUS) Interest Groups.

Our Interest Groups provide a platform for all members of our College in public and private sectors to meet and exchange their
experience. Members are encouraged to participate and present their cases or problems for discussions or role-play for sharing.
Sharing experience is an important mode of gaining knowledge. Both the experienced and less experienced doctors can benefit from
their participation.

Sharing problem cases with specialists or experts will provide peer support, skill-mix, knowledge transfer and bridging the professional
gap. This will help to solve our clinical problems and queries, upgrade our standard, raise our morale, and increase our job satisfaction.
This will also promote early awareness, clinical governance and risk management in respect to different medical fields, to assure a
better management and a high-quality health care for the public.

The Dermatology Seminar (Organized by Interest Group in Dermatology) scheduled to have regular bimonthly meeting on the
first Saturday afternoon of odd months (except public holidays) in the year 2023. We had 3 meetings in 2023.

Dates Topics Speakers

7 Jan 2023 Holistic Treatment for Atopic Dermatitis with Different Severities 1. Dr Kingsley H N CHAN
2. Dr Alex H W WONG

4 Mar 2023 Trainees Dermatology Case Presentation Various Trainees

21 Oct 2023 The Latest Evidence and Practical Applications of Mild-to-moderate Atopic Prof CHU Chia Yu

Dermatitis Management

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinator, Dr Edmund W W LAM and all the guest speakers who had
contributed their time and effort in preparing the lectures for us. The Board would also like to thank Dr Edmund W W LAM for being
the moderators.

The Online Mental Health Seminar (Organized by Interest Group in Mental Health and Psychiatry in Primary Care) aims to
form a regular platform for sharing and developing knowledge and skill in the management of mental health. We had 1 meeting in
2023.

Dates Topics Speakers
4 Feb 2023 Decades of Mental Health Interest in Primary Care, Our Past and the Future Dr Mark S H CHAN

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinator, Dr Mark S H CHAN and all the guest speakers who had
contributed their time and effort in preparing the lectures for us.

The Online Medical Humanities Seminar (Organized by the Interest Group in Medical Humanities)

Interest Group in Medical Humanities aims to form a regular platform for sharing and developing knowledge and skill in the medical
humanities. We had 3 meetings in 2023.

Dates Topics Speakers

1 Apr 2023 The future of family medicine /general practice, can humanity and administrative Prof Albert LEE
hurdles coexist to help our patients? Thoughts after nearly 40 years of
GP/Academic practice

3 Jun 2023 Medical Humanistic and Me. An Attempt towards Participatory Humanistic Dr Luke CY TSANG

5 Aug 2023 Philosophical Counselling- Case Sharing 1. DrAlexKH LO
2. Mr Michael CHEUNG

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinator, Dr Mark S H CHAN and all the guest speakers for their knowledge
and skills sharing. The Board would also like to thank Dr Mark S H CHAN for being the moderator.
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Small Discussion Group

There was 72 active Small Discussion Groups in 2023. Participants will gain 1 CME point per session. In addition, speaker or
moderator will be accredited 1 CPD point.

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank Dr TONG Siu Man and other Board members in reviewing all the synopses and
protocol, making sure the standard is reached.

Video-Library and Video Viewing Session

For the year 2023 we arranged 10 online video sessions on a monthly basis. Video Library has been set up since July 2005. Video
viewing session is scheduled on the last Friday of every month, at 2:30pm — 3:30pm. The topics are selected from the lectures in our
Luncheon CME activities, various Interest Groups and Annual Refresher Course. These viewing sessions are open only to our
members. 1 CME point per session is accredited to colleagues who attend the viewing session. A maximum of 2 CPD points may be
accredited (subject to submission of satisfactory report of Professional Development Log). It is encouraging that the number of
attendances is increasing. The topics presented were as follows:

- Recent Breakthrough in Gut Microbiome Based Non-Invasive Colorectal Cancer Screening

- Vaccinology & Important of Adult Vaccination in Local Community

- Common Foot and Nail Infections: New Evidence on Topical Treatment of Onychomycosis

- Legal issues on End-of-life (EOL) care, Home Death and signing of Advance Directives (AD)

- The European Society of Cardiology (ESC) Update and Resistant Hypertension

- Beyond Ordinary Headache: Chronic Migraine Treatment and Prevention

- Closing Treatment Gaps in Osteoporosis: Identifying and Managing Osteoporosis in Primary Care
- An approach to patients with Renal impairment in Primary Care Setting

- Approaches to Strange Symptoms in Family Practice (OCD, Hallucinations, Mixed Symptoms)

- Legal issues on End-of-life (EOL) care, Home Death and signing of Advance Directives (AD)

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank Dr MO Kam Chuen and Dr CHEUNG Ying Man in running the monthly video
session very smoothly and especially Dr Cheung’s effort in producing the high-quality video. With Dr Cheung’s works, the participants
will feel like attending the luncheon meeting live while watching the video.

Community Education Programmes

| would like to thank the following hospitals, societies and associations in helping our Board to organize the various Community
Education Programmes, which are open to all our College members and will be announced in the Board Education News every month.
- Professional Development & Quality Assurance, Department of Health
- Queen Elizabeth Hospital, Kowloon Central Cluster, Hospital Authority

College members are welcomed to attend these programmes which are free and CME points are accredited.
Structured Education Programme

The Structured Educational Programme (SEP) is the mandatory training programme in basic training of Family Medicine. It's divided
into 14 modules and trainees should be attended at least 15 hours for each module. It is also open to all College members and will be
awarded CME credit points when attending the programme. | would like to thank the following hospitals in organizing the Structured
Education Programme for our College members:

- Caritas Medical Centre

- Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
- Prince of Wales Hospital

- Queen Elizabeth Hospital

- Tsan Yuk Hospital

- Tseung Kwan O Hospital

- Tuen Mun Hospital

- United Christian Hospital

Self-Assessment Correspondent Programme
MCQ papers

MCQ papers were sent out quarterly with our College Journal. Members will only be accredited if over 50% of the answers are correct
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and will be awarded maximum 12 CME credit points per year.

Acknowledgement

| would like to take this opportunity to express my most sincere gratitude to all members of the Board of Education for their continuous
support and contributions in serving the College. | have indeed a capable and supportive team to back me up in organizing the various
types of educational activities for our College members. | am indebted to them. Last but not the least, | have to thank our secretarial
staffs, Ms Teresa D F LIU and Ms Windy W L LAU for their enormous hard work over the past year. | would also like to take this
opportunity to thank all sister Colleges, Universities, Hospital Authority, Department of Health for their support in our various
educational activities. We are also grateful to the various pharmaceutical companies who generously sponsored many of our functions.

BOARD OF PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND SERVICES

(July 2023 to June 2024)
Chairman: Dr LAU Ho Lim
Advisors: Dr Stephen K S FOO
Prof Cindy L K LAM
Prof Donald KT LI
Vice Chairman: Dr LIANG Jun
Board Members: Dr Angus MW CHAN Dr Edmond C W CHAN
Dr David V K CHAO Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen
Dr Ruby SY LEE Dr Sammy L T TSOI
Dr Jenny H L WANG
Ex-officio: Prof Samuel Y S WONG (Vice President, Education and Examinations)
Dr CeciliaY M FAN (Honorary Secretary)
Dr Billy C F CHIU (Honorary Treasurer)
Staff: Ms Erica M SO (General Manager)
Ms Hannah H M Lok (Administrative Executive, from October 2023 onwards)
Ms Katie P L LAM (Administrative Assistant)
OVERVIEW

Family Medicine/General Practice educational activities provided for doctors in Mainland China in the format of physical lectures with
clinical visits resumed after the Covid-19 pandemic, alongside web-based lectures in training courses co-organised with the General

Lg

Practice Branch of Cross-Straits Medicine Exchange Association (st £ 58 221 4= 38 7 i er).

2RHEBR BB RAEIIE
Co-organiser: General Practice Branch of Cross-Straits Medicine Exchange Association (78Ut = 88 22 @ £ MR E)
Lectures Date: 4 — 25 July, 2023
Format: 10 sessions x 1.5 hours via Zoom
Topics Speakers / Tutors
BEREBBHBIEIER Dr Catherine X R CHEN
EREED RRORBERISTERR Dr LAU Ho Lim
BEREER REMRERE 1 Dr Edmond C W CHAN / Dr CHAN Lam
BERBRE BEIISRERES 2 Dr YU Ching Ching
BERBRE BEEIISREREE 3 Dr Edmond C W CHAN / Dr Leon M NGAI
REBEZAEHLIRERIEEIRRAE Dr WAN Kwong Yu
RESBEHETERSE - RKABH# Dr Jenny H L WANG
e R EER Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen
BREREERENER Dr DAO Man Chi
EREE ERAEE Dr LIANG Jun
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Co-organiser: General Practice Branch of Cross-Straits Medicine Exchange Association (78Ut = 88 22 @ £ MR E)
Lectures Date: 1 - 22 August, 2023
Format: 10 sessions x 1.5 hours via Zoom
Topics Speakers / Tutors
BEREBBHBIEIER Dr Catherine X R CHEN
EREZ RRORERISTERR Dr LAU Ho Lim
BEREER REMRERE 1 Dr Edmond C W CHAN / Dr CHAN Lam
BREE BEEIIBRERE 2 Dr YU Ching Ching
BERBRE BEIISREREE 3 Dr Edmond C W CHAN / Dr Leon M NGAI
REBEZ BB OIEERNERRRE Dr WAN Kwong Yu
REBLHETERS - KB4 Dr Jenny H L WANG
HEBERRERYE Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen
ABEREREBENWER Dr DAO Man Chi
ERER ERrEE Dr LIANG Jun
2R B RN RAEIIE
Co-organiser: General Practice Branch of Cross-Straits Medicine Exchange Association (78Ut = 88 22 @ £ MR E)

Lectures Date: 5 — 26 September, 2023

Format: 10 sessions x 1.5 hours via Zoom
Topics Speakers / Tutors
EEFEREBYEIEYIER Dr Catherine X R CHEN
ERED: O RBERTTERR Dr LAU Ho Lim

BERER REEAIAREARE 1

Dr Edmond C W CHAN / Dr CHAN Lam

BEREE: BEEAIRRERE 2

Dr YU Ching Ching

BEREE: BEEIRRERE 3

Dr Edmond C W CHAN / Dr Leon M NGAI

i

REBEZRES IR RAERR B4

Dr WAN Kwong Yu

i

FEBLEHTERE - MARD®

Dr Jenny H L WANG

BEEE R R

Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen

R BE R ERERSNER Dr DAO Man Chi
EREE EnNERE Dr LIANG Jun

EPREERE LRSI

Co-organiser:

Lectures Date: 7 — 28 November, 2023

Format:

10 sessions x 1.5 hours via Zoom

Topics

Speakers / Tutors

EEREBRUBEIIED

Dr Catherine X R CHEN

EREZ: MO RBERIPTERE

Dr LAU Ho Lim

BRI BEEIIRRERE 1

Dr Edmond C W CHAN / Dr CHAN Lam

BEREE: BEEAISRERE 2

Dr YU Ching Ching

W

S BOBE: EEAIARE AR 3

Dr Edmond C W CHAN / Dr Leon M NGAI

REBERZ AE R IR E R VR R B AE

N

Dr WAN Kwong Yu

i

FEBLHETERSE - BREB#

Dr Jenny H L WANG

BRI ER

Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen

R BE N EREERNER

Dr DAO Man Chi

BRER BmAEE

Dr LIANG Jun

General Practice Branch of Cross-Straits Medicine Exchange Association (3 I 5= B2 B AE X )
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Co-organiser: General Practice Branch of Cross-Straits Medicine Exchange Association (78 Wt = 88 228 £ R 17
Lectures Date: — 11 January, 2024
Format: 10 sessions x 3 hours Physical Lectures (Including Small Group Clinical Visit)
Topics Speakers / Tutors
BEREBBHBIEIER Dr Catherine X R CHEN
EREZ RRORERISTERR Dr LAU Ho Lim
BEREER REMRERE 1 Dr Edmond C W CHAN / Dr CHAN Lam
BEER RElRERE 2 Dr YU Ching Ching
REBEZ BB OEERINERRRE Dr WAN Kwong Yu
FEBFHEAERE - BABH# Dr Jenny H L WANG
HEBERRERYE Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen
iR REBEN EREBENER Dr DAO Man Chi
BREE BRAEE Dr LIANG Jun
Small Group Clinical Visit Cluster
TS RRIFI2 2 HKE
BE®MR HKW
2 PSR R E B FH I FIZE
Co-organiser: General Practice Branch of Cross-Straits Medicine Exchange Association (/B8R FBZEFERMIHE)

Lectures Date: 5 — 26 March, 2024
Format: 10 sessions x 1.5 hours via Zoom

Topics Speakers / Tutors
EEFEREBYEIEYIER Dr Catherine X R CHEN
ERED: O RBERATTERR Dr LAU Ho Lim

BERER REEAIAREARE 1

Dr Edmond C W CHAN / Dr CHAN Lam

BEREE: BEEAISRERE 2

Dr YU Ching Ching

BEREE: BEEISRERE 3

Dr Edmond C W CHAN / Dr Leon M NGAI

i

REBEZAEH O EERNIEERRE Dr WAN Kwong Yu

REBEHEMERSE - RKB# Dr Jenny H L WANG

BB R K ER Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen
ARBEREREBENER Dr DAO Man Chi

BREE ERAERE

Dr LIANG Jun

The Board issued Certificates of completion of the following courses to 289 attendees from July 2023 to April 2024, and the total

number of attendees has increased by 14.7% compared with last year.

2023
July - =RIBESBHENRAFIDE (B L)
1. FHE 12.  HEE

2. M&ER 13.  AR4E

3. BB 14. 1378
4, FRE 15. BRH

5. 15 16. #AExX
6. TSR 17. sREpfn
7. £ 715 I 18. EREHEE
8. 4R 19.  RHKEE
9. R 58 20. PBiERE
10. =RE 2. REF
11, &S 22. Eif

23.
24,

&% 34.  EEH 45.
BB 35.  ZFFE 46.
EEE 36. ZHEE 47.
T 37. E# 48.
Ry 38. =& 49.
Eib) 39. BmE 50.
TR 40. EEE® 51.
=AY 41. &8 52.
(R 42. EEH 53.
ERFE 43.  FfF 54.
FRERAR 44.  =4R
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August - ZRIBEFEFEESRAEIINE (5 L)

1 29 9. punIz
2. 7Rtk 10. RBE
3. g2 11.  KE
4. PR 12. &
5. F25E 13.  HEZR
6. FEHEX 14.  IHIS
7. 2 15. =®/&
8. LIS 16. FKRE

September - R EBEFERE IR (R L)

1 RIME 12. B8
2 P 13, s
3 B 14. HAI%E
4 pUpis=S 15. ®EE
5. HEE l6. =N
6 ot 17.  #%E%k
7 REHR 18. Pk
8 ERAEAN 19.  E(E3%
9 FhiE 20. EfFF
10. HEE 2. @A
11.  BEx 22, el

November - R BB FEHE NI A BN (B2 L)

1. BTZR 12, R4k
2. =T 13. SR
3. = 14,  Alg
4. R 15, Z=8
5. Pk 16.  IX&EMA
6. ZFHE 17. ZRHEW
7. BEUR 18.  Z=E

8. AER 19. EREE
9. B e 20. phigds
10. R 2. ETER
11.  RNhR 22, BRI
2024
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1. =X 9. =
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March - £ 8182 588 HIRAEII (7 L)

FIF
EZ1b
7w
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£
U2
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13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.

RHE 25.
KB 26.
BE=E 27.
AR 28.
ES 29.
LA 30.
RE 31
Fig 32.
F#8R 33.
X1 34.
PNEEER 35.
[EIRESES 36.

FRERR 37.  RIER 49. E&EEH
KR 38 FXE 50. EBE
B 39.  HEE 51. PH#ESR
EBE 40. EMm 52. =T
FRES 41,  XE 53. WE
RAW 42. 7RI 54. B#R
wER 43,  BEWFE 55.  HEH
REER 44. &R 56. KB
B 45. fFlz#A 57. ZFMR
ERE 46.  E4f

S 47. =

T 48. FHFE

BOARD OF VOCATIONAL TRAINING AND STANDARDS
(April 2023 to March 2024)

Chairlady:

Deputy Chairlady:

Board Members:

Ex-officio:

Dr YIU Yuk Kwan

Dr Heidi H T FUNG

DrBarry T F BIEN
Dr CHAN Chi Wai
Dr CHAN Kin Ling
Dr Edwin Y H CHAN
Dr Billy C F CHIU

Dr CHONG Man Yuk
Dr Anthony P FOK
Dr HO Ka Ming

Dr Anthony K'Y HO
Dr KO Wai Kit

Dr Mary B L KWONG
Dr LAW Tung Chi

Dr Ruby SY LEE

Dr LEE Man Kei

Dr LEUNG Ka Fai
Dr LI Yim Chu

Dr LIANG Jun

Dr Benny L P LUI

Dr Peter T K NG

Dr Lorna V NG

Dr WAN Wing Fai
Dr Michelle M Y WONG
Dr WONG Sze Nga

Dr David V K CHAO

Dr LAU Ho Lim

Prof Samuel Y S WONG
Dr Cecilia Y M FAN

Dr Billy C F CHIU

o Basic Training Subcommittee

Chairman:
Members:

Dr Anthony P FOK
Dr Loretta WY CHAN
Dr LAU Po Shan

Dr LEE Man Kei

(Clinical Supervisor Coordinator)

(Training Centre Coordinator)

(from January 2024 onwards)

(Structured Educational Programme (SEP) Coordinator)

(President)

(Vice-President, General Affairs)
(Vice-President, Education and Examinations)
(Honorary Secretariat)

(Honorary Treasurer)

Dr CHONG Man Yuk
Dr Tony C K LEE
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Higher Training Subcommittee

Chairlady: Dr Heidi H T FUNG
Deputy Chairman: Dr Benny L P LUI
Members: Dr Carroll KL CHAN Dr Edwin Y H CHAN

Dr WONG Suk Ching

Vetting Subcommittee

Chairlady: Dr Ruby SY LEE

Members: Dr CHAN Kin Ling
Dr Billy C F CHIU

Higher Training Revamp Working Group (from February 2024 onwards)
Chairlady: Dr YIU Yuk Kwan
Members: Dr Anthony P FOK

Dr Heidi H T FUNG

Dr Peter T K NG

Staff: Ms Kathy K'Y LAI (Administrative Executive)
Ms Hannah H M LOK (Administrative Executive, from October 2023 onwards)
Ms Maggie W S CHEUNG  (Administrative Executive, to May 2023)

CHAIRLADY’S MESSAGE

This year has passed smoothly in the running of the Board’s regular activities. After COVID-19 Pandemic, the Board had gradually
resumed normal of some special measures during the period, balancing the training need and grace period for feasible implementation.
All Board members and subcommittee members had helped on various BVTS’s activities such as responding trainees’ enquiries,
checking new applications for enrollment, checking logbooks for completion of trainees’ training, organizing the workshop for both
basic and higher trainees, travelling to various training centers for accreditation, reviewing the Structural Education Programmes for
pre-approval and holding the quarterly board meeting etc. All these activities are ongoing all through the year and important to the
standard of vocational training.

The usual statistics up to 31 March 2024 are as follows:

New enrolled Basic trainees . 58
New enrolled Higher trainees o031
Total Basic trainees : 160
Total Higher trainees . 64

The Board implemented a clear policy on Critical Incident reporting and with clear briefing to trainees, supervisors and other key
stakeholders with related forms. The progress was reported to RACGP by the end of March 2024.

A revamp of Higher Training was implemented to reinforce competency based approach to higher training and empower continuous
professional development. It involves higher trainee who were newly joined in 2024. Changes were mainly focused on how the
process of training would result in competencies in normal daily practice and in working practice. As a result, there were changes in
documentation of process of training and a revamp in higher training logbook and documentation of activity and competence Log. The
revamp was still working in progress and other areas of changes would be implemented in following months of 2024 for year one
higher trainee.

Lastly, | would like to take this opportunity to thank all our Board members, honorary clinical supervisors, training coordinators, training
unit head for their contributions in the training programme. | would also like to express my sincere gratitude to our administrative
executives Ms. Kathy Lai, Ms. Hannah Lok and Ms. Maggie Cheung who are highly committed in their duties to serve the trainees and
the Board’s running. Their efforts and patience are very much appreciated.

Output

Congratulations to our trainees for passing the 37th HKCFP/RACGP Conjoint Examination in 2023 and for being elected Fellows of
the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians and the Royal Australian College of General Practitioners.
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1. Dr CHAN King Hang 17. Dr LUl Tsz Yin

2.  Dr CHAU Kei Wai 18. Dr Carrie CW NG

3. Dr CHOW Wing Man 19. Dr Noh Young Ah

4. DrFUNG Wai Yee 20. Dr SHENG Wei Yang

5. DrHO KaKi 21. DrNadialLY TAI

6. DrHO Suet Ying 22. Dr TSANG Lai Ting

7. DrHO Sze Ho 23. DrTSO Sau Lin

8. Dr HOU Baijing 24. Dr WONG Calvin Alexander
9. DrGevon GW LAI 25. Dr Jonathan C H WONG
10. Dr LAM Chi Hang 26. DrWONG Tsz Yan

11. Dr Nicole W C LAM 27. DrWOO Long Yiu

12. Dr LEE Jerrold 28. DrWU Flora

13. Dr LI Kwok Ho 29. DrJon-Alvan T H YAP
14. Dr LI Shiyue 30. Dr YU Kwun Nam

15. DrLIUKa Yee 31. Dr Louise Anne SW YU

16. Dr LO Chak Yui

The Board certified completion of 4-year Basic Training in Family Medicine for the 28 trainees in 2023.

1. Dr CHAN King Hang 15. DrLIUKa Yee

2. Dr CHAU Chuen 16. Dr LO Chak Yui

3. Dr CHAU Kei Wai 17. Dr LUl Tsz Yin

4. Dr CHOW Wing Man 18. Dr Carrie CW NG

5. DrHO Suet Ying 19. Dr SHENG Wei Yang

6. DrHO Sze Ho 20. DrNadiaLY TAI

7. Dr HOU Baijing 21. Dr TSANG Lai Ting

8. Dr KO Pak Long 22. Dr TSO Sau Lin

9. DrGevon GW LAl 23. Dr WONG Calvin Alexander
10. Dr LAM Ka Wai 24. Dr Jonathan C H WONG
11. Dr Nicole W C LAM 25. DrWOO Long Yiu

12. Dr LEE Jerrold 26. DrWU Flora

13. Dr LEUNG Ching 27. Dr YU Kwun Nam

14. Dr LI Shiyue 28. Dr Louise Anne SW YU

The Board certified completion of 2-year Higher Training in Family Medicine for the 25 trainees in 2023-2024.

1. Dr Michelle S W CHOI 14. Dr LAM Wai Yiu

2. Dr CHAN Kam Sheung 15. Dr LEUNG Nelson

3. Dr Dickson K F CHAN 16. Dr LI Anne Beatrice

4. Dr CHAN Kwan Ho 17. Dr LO Yuen Man

5.  Dr CHANG Ting Ting 18. Dr Candy SW LUK

6. Dr CHAU Yiu Shing 19. Dr MA Man Ki

7. Dr Jessica H K CHOW 20. DrAmyP P NG

8.  Dr CHUANG Chi Kit 21. Dr Esther S C PANG
9. Dr CHUNG Hiu Yeung 22. Dr Victoria G K SUEN
10. Dr FAN Siu Wai 23. Dr WONG Chung Ming
11. DrOliviaWY HO 24. Dr Rosanna W N WONG
12. Dr HUN Pek | 25. Dr YEUNG Lok Ki

13. Dr LAM Kang

APPENDIX A
Trainees in Higher Vocational Training in Family Medicine 2023/2024
Name of Trainees Clinical Supervisor
1. Dr Erica C S CHAN Dr WONG Man Kin
2. Dr CHAN King Hang Dr TSUI Felix
3. Dr CHANG Hoi Yi Dr IP Yan Yan (from Feb 2023 to Jun 2023)/

Dr CHAN Chi Wai (from Jul 2023 to Nov 2023)/
Dr YIU Cheuk Man (from Dec 2023 onwards)

4.  Dr CHANG Hsu Wei Dr TOO Lai Chong
5. Dr CHAU Kei Wai Dr Catherine X R CHEN
6. Dr CHEN Tsz Ting Dr WONG Sze Nga
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10.
11.
12.
13.
14.

15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.
31.
32.
33.
34.
35.
36.
37.
38.
39.
40.
41.
42.
43.
44,
45.

46.
47.
48.
49.
50.
51.
52.
53.
54.
55.
56.
57.
58.
59.
60.
61.
62.
63.

Dr Kelvin KW CHEUNG
Dr Stephen K C CHEUNG

Dr CHOI Man Kit

Dr CHOW Tsz Wang
Dr CHOW Wing Man
Dr DIANTO Jeffrey
Dr FONG Pak Yiu

Dr Andrew Y W FUNG

Dr HO Chun Kei
Dr HO Ka Ki

Dr HO Suet Ying
Dr HOU Baijing

Dr Karen K L HUI
Dr Alice S W HUI
Dr JIAO Fangfang
Dr KWAN Tsz Yan
Dr Gevon G W LAI
Dr LAM Chi Hang
Dr Jeffrey CY LAM
Dr Nicole W C LAM
Dr LEE Jerrold

Dr Janice C Y LI
Dr LI Kwok Ho

Dr LI Shiyue

Dr LIU Ka Yee

Dr LIU Wing Yee
Dr LO Chak Yui

Dr Pearl W M LOW
Dr LUI Tsz Yin

Dr MAK Ho Yin

Dr Carrie CW NG
Dr NG Hok Wai

Dr NG Ka Wing

Dr NOH Young Ah
Dr SIU Wing Yee
Dr TAI Lik

Dr Nadia LY TAI
Dr TAM Chun Ho
Dr TAM Long Yee

Dr TSANG Kam Wah
Dr TSANG Lai Ting
Dr TSO Sau Lin

Dr WONG Calvin Alexander
Dr WONG Ching Keung
Dr Jonathan C H WONG

Dr WONG Hiu Yeung
Dr WONG Sau Kuen
Dr WOO Long Yiu
Dr WU Flora

Dr Jon-Alvan T H YAP
Dr Genevieve M L YIU

Dr YU Kwun Nam

Dr Louise Anne SW YU

Dr YU Yi Fung

Dr YUEN Man Ki

Dr ZHANG Dingzuan
Dr ZHU Yin

Dr LAU Chi Hang

Dr LEUNG Lok Hang
Dr CHEUNG Hard King
Dr LEE Kit Yan

Dr Matthew M H LUK
Dr FOK Peter Anthony
Dr CHOI Yue Kwan

Dr FUNG Pak Kei (from Feb 2023 to Oct 2023)/
Dr HAN Jing Hao (from Nov 2023 onwards)
Dr KWAN Sin Man

Dr TAM Wah Kit

Dr CHEUNG Mei Yee
Dr Stephen CW CHOU
Dr LUK Wan

Dr KO Siu Hin

Dr HO Ka Ming

Dr Rosita W S WONG
Dr CHAN Chi Wai

Dr WAN Kwong Yu

Dr MAK Wing Hang

Dr Crystal P S LEUNG
Dr NG Yui Wing

Dr Susanna L L HUNG
Dr CHAN Ting Bong

Dr FU Sau Nga

Dr YIU Yuk Kwan

Dr David C S CHENG
Dr Derek G C YING

Dr CHEUK Christina

Dr Matthew M H LUK
Dr Peter TK NG

Dr CHU Lai Shan

Dr LEE Chik Pui

Dr TAM Wah Kit

Dr CHAN Pui Kwan

Dr Susanna L L HUNG
Dr Felix H L LI

Dr Felix H L LI

Dr FOK Peter Anthony
Dr YIU Cheuk Man (from Feb 2023 to Aug 2023)/
Dr CHAN Chi Wai (from Sep 2023 onwards)
Dr HO Tsz Bun

Dr WONG Man Kin

Dr WONG Sze Kei

Dr CHEUNG Kwok Leung
Dr HO Ka Ming

Dr LUK Wan

Dr HO Wing Man

Dr Thomas M C DAO
Dr LEE Kit Yan

Dr NG Kai Man

Dr LEE Hoi Ying

Dr NG Ching Luen

Dr HO Ka Ming

Dr YIU Cheuk Man

Dr Ronald S Y CHENG
Dr LEUNG Wan Chiu
Dr TANG Kin Sze

Dr Catherine X R CHEN
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Trainees in Basic Vocational Training in Family Medicine 2023/2024

Department of Health

1.

Dr WANG Lugian

Hong Kong East Cluster

© X N OADND-=

Dr Melanie P K CHENG
Dr Frances WY CHEUNG
Dr CHIU Shing Hei

Dr IP Alvina

Dr KU Ngai Lam

Dr LAU Wai

Dr LEE Chak Pui

Dr Vincent W H LEE

Dr LEONG Natasha

Hong Kong West Cluster

1.

2.
3.
4

Dr Chloe C K CHEUNG
Dr FUNG Yan Ning

Dr LEE Chun Ki

Dr VincentYY LO

Kowloon East Cluster

® N> Rs N =

©

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.

Dr CHAN Hiu Ching
Dr CHEUNG Jessica
Dr CHEUNG Ka Nam
Dr CHO Cheuk Ying
Dr Shalom Y O CHUNG
Dr FUNG Wai Yee

Dr HUANG Wanshu
DrLaren WT IP

Dr KAN Ho Sing

Dr KWAN Chun Yin
Dr Alan G H LAM

Dr Heather H C LAM
Dr Kevin KW LAM
Dr LEE Yan Tung

Dr LIN Wing Sum

Dr LIU Yin Ming

Kowloon Central Cluster

® N Ok DD

A a4 A A a A a©
No ok wNh=2 O

Dr Queenie C Y CHAN
Dr Stephanie HY CHAN
Dr Jeremy J H CHAN
Dr CHAN Kwun Hung
Dr CHENG Tsz Wai

Dr Ada S W CHEUNG
Dr CHEUNG Tsz Kei

Dr FENG Jun Marc

Dr Surena H H FOCK
Dr Gary H C HO

Dr KOO Ho Tun

Dr LAI Siu Tung

Dr Josephine W M LAM
Dr Natasha H C LAM
Dr LAU Kwan Ho

Dr LAU Tsz Ying

Dr LEE Ka Kei

10.
1.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.

17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.
31.
32.

18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.
31.
32.
33.
34.

Dr LEUNG Ka Man
Dr LEUNG Qi Ting
Dr LI Sin Ting

Dr LI Ting Kwan
Dr TAI Hing Kuen
Dr TO SumYYi

Dr Lucy Y T TONG
Dr TSO San Kong

Dr Emily TY TONG
Dr Clarice P Y TSE
Dr Jeremy K M YAU

Dr MA Ka Yee

Dr MAYi Ning

Dr MAN Estelle

Dr MQOY Lok Tin

Dr OR Wing Yin

Dr PONG Hiu Yan

Dr TANG Sui Hong
Dr WONG Bo Hang
Dr WONG Ching Sze
Dr WONG Hiu Yan
Dr WONG Ho Ching
Dr WONG Nicole

Dr Terrick KT WONG
Dr WU SumYi

Dr WU Wing Sze

Dr Kelly T C YANG

Dr LEE Kin Lun

Dr NG Chi Ho

Dr Joyce HL NG

Dr NG Kwan Chun

Dr Alison S KOR

Dr PANNU Prubdial Singh
Dr PENG Xu

Dr POON Daniel

Dr SIN Tak Yee

Dr SUN Dione Tinoi
Dr WONG Anthea

Dr WONG Ho Sum
Dr Wade W WONG
Dr WONG Yuet Hei
Dr YEUNG Chin Fung
Dr YEUNG Pui Sze
Dr YU Lok Kwan
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Kowloon West Cluster

Dr CHAN Ho Cheung
Dr CHAN Ka Wing

Dr CHAN Sze Ling

Dr Andi Y C CHAN

Dr Duncan K S CHAU
Dr CHENG Shun Ming
Dr Lorraine L W CHIANG
Dr CHOI Sze Yuen

9. DrMeganY T CHUI
10. Dr Joycelyn C R DAY
11. Dr Phoebe S N FUNG
12. Dr HA Kwan Tsun

13. DrHO Ka Yan

14. Dr HO ShunYing

® N> AN =

New Territory East Cluster
Dr Venus HW CHAN
Dr CHAN Lok Hin

Dr CHAN Tsz Hin

Dr CHOW Chau Yi

Dr CHOW Chun Fung
Dr CHU Pui Ling

Dr GE Shicong

Dr LEUNG Wai Chung

© N Ok wN =

New Territory West Cluster
Dr Anson H F AU

Dr CHAN Cheuk Sing
Dr CHAN Chui Ying

Dr CHAN Wing Man
Dr CHENG Ka Tong

Dr CHIU Kwan Ki

Dr FUNG Hoi Yin

Dr Edmond S L KWOK
9. Dr KWONG Chung Man
10. Dr LAM Yat Hei

11. Dr LAU Shi Wa

12. DrEricP LLEE

® N Ok wDD =

15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
27.
28.

10.
1.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.

13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.

Dr HUEN Jason Chiusan
Dr HUI Tak Leung

Dr KWOK Siu Leung
Dr Hugo H F LAU

Dr Eric Y H LEE

Dr LI Cheuk Yan

Dr MA Hiu Tung

Dr MAN Wai Ying

Dr NG Sin Yu

Dr Stanley H O NGAI
Dr TONG Kwan Nok
Dr TSE Chun Yee

Dr WONG Wing Shan
Dr WONG Yin Sum

Dr LUI Yin Mei

Dr NG Ka Wai

Dr TANG Yeung On
Dr WONG Ka Yan

Dr WONG Wing Kwan
Dr YIU Sze Wa

Dr Louise LY YUNG
Dr ZHANG Guilian

Dr LEE Wai Chun
Dr LEUNG Hei Tung
Dr Katy K T LIANG
Dr LO Yu Chee

Dr Stephanie W H NG
Dr TAM Chin Yui

Dr WAN Kwong Ha
Dr WANG SiQl

Dr WONG Tsz Yan
Dr WOO Tiffany

Dr YU Chak Lam

Private Hospital (Gleneagles Hong Kong Hospital - Family Medicine Clinic)

1. Dr LEUNG Cheuk Yiu

APPENDIX B

Clinical Supervisors of Basic and Higher Training in Family Medicine

1. Dr Dawn Teresa H F Al
2. Dr Simon C LAU

3. Dr Barry T F BIEN

4. Dr Edmond C W CHAN
5. Dr CHAN Chi Wing

6. Dr CHAN Chin Ping

7. Dr Alvin CY CHAN

8. Dr Peter H C CHAN

9. Dr CHAN Ka Ho

10. Dr Carroll K L CHAN
11. Dr CHAN Ka Wai

12. Dr CHAN Kam Sum
13. Dr CHAN Kin Ling

14. Dr CHAN King Hong
15. Dr Kitty K C CHAN

16. Dr Keith KW CHAN

17. Dr CHAN Laam

18. Dr CHAN Lit Ping
19. Dr Jeff M H CHAN
20. Dr CHAN Man Li
21. Dr CHAN Mei Tak
22. Dr Angus MW CHAN
23. Dr CHAN Ngai Ping
24. Dr CHAN Pang Fai
25. Dr CHAN Pui Kwan
26. Dr CHAN Pui Wai
27. Dr CHAN Sio Pan
28. Dr CHAN Suk Yin
29. Dr David S L CHAN
30. Dr Eddie T CHAN
31. Dr CHAN Ting Bong
32. Dr CHAN Wan Wai
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33.
34.
35.
36.
37.
38.
39.
40.
41.
42.
43.
44,
45.
46.
47.
48.
49.
50.
51.
52.
53.
54.
55.
56.
57.
58.
59.
60.
61.
62.
63.
64.
65.
66.
67.
68.
69.
70.
71.
72.
73.
74.
75.
76.
77.
78.
79.
80.
81.
82.
83.
84.
85.
86.
87.
88.
89.
90.
91.
92.
93.
94.
95.
96.
97.

Dr Winnie WY CHAN
Dr CHAN Wing Yan

Dr CHAN Wing Yi

Dr Thomas Y L CHAN
Dr CHAN Yeuk Kei

Dr CHAN Yin Hang

Dr Yeni Y'Y CHAN

Dr Andrew Y H CHAN
Dr CHAN Yuen Yan

Dr David V K CHAO

Dr CHAU Kai Man

Dr CHEN Hing Han

Dr CHEN Liujing

Dr Catherine X R CHEN
Dr CHENG Cheuk Hong
Dr David C S CHENG
Dr Judy G Y CHENG
Dr CHENG Kit Wing

Dr CHENG Long Yee
Dr Lisa P K CHENG

Dr Cupid P S CHENG
Dr Ronald S Y CHENG
Dr CHEUK Christina

Dr CHEUK Tat Sang

Dr David C H CHEUNG
Dr CHEUNG Hard King
Dr Sydney K L CHEUNG
Dr CHEUNG Man Ha
Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen
Dr CHEUNG Mei Yee
Dr CHEUNG Ngai Fung
Dr CHEUNG Sze Man
Dr Paul W K CHEUNG
Dr CHEUNG Wing Wo
Dr CHEUNG Yu

Dr CHING Kam Wing
Dr Billy C F CHIU

Dr Clarence C M CHOI
Dr Gabriel K CHOI

Dr CHOI Wing Kin

Dr CHOI Yue Kwan

Dr Stephen C W CHOU
Dr CHOW Kai Lim

Dr CHOW Kam Fai
DrAlex S Y CHOW

Dr CHOW Tsz Ling

Dr Ignatius P S CHOY
Dr CHU Lai Shan

Dr CHU Tsun Kit

Dr Daniel W S CHU

Dr CHUA Kam Ling

Dr Antonio AT CHUH

Dr Billy S H CHUI

Dr CHUNG Chak Cheong
Dr CHUNG Kin Wing

Dr CHUNG Sze Pok

Dr CHUNG Wai Ho

Dr DAO Man Chi

Dr Anita W M FAN

Dr CeciliaY M FAN

Dr FOK Chun Man

Dr FOK Peter Anthony

Dr Garry KL FONG

Dr Stephen K S FOO

Dr FOSTER Jonathan Charles
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99.

100.
101.
102.
103.
104.
105.
106.
107.
108.
109.
110.
111.
112.
113.
114.
115.
116.
117.
118.
119.
120.
121.
122.
123.
124.
125.
126.
127.
128.
129.
130.
131.
132.
133.
134.
135.
136.
137.
138.
139.
140.
141.
142.
143.
144.
145.
146.
147.
148.
149.
150.
151.
152.
153.
154.
155.
156.
157.
158.
159.
160.
161.
162.

Dr FU Sau Nga

Dr Michelle S S FU
Dr FUNG Hoi Tik

Dr FUNG Kwok Hay
Dr FUNG Pak Kei

Dr Colman S C FUNG
Dr HAN Jinghao

Dr Cindy S 'Y HAU

Dr HO Hon Ming

Dr HO Ka Ming

Dr HO Kam Wai

Dr Anthony K'Y HO
Dr HO Tsz Bun

Dr Desmond W F HO
Dr HO Wing Man

Dr HONG Tin Chak
Dr HOU Jing

Dr HUI King Wai

Dr Wilson K S HUI
Dr HUI Lai Chi

Dr Eric M T HUI
DrLinda Y F HUI

Dr HUNG Chi Bun
Dr Susanna L L HUNG
Dr Winson W'Y HUNG
Dr Ronald CH IP

Dr Andrew K K IP

Dr IP Pang Fei

Dr IP Sui Wah

Dr IP Yan Yan

Dr JOR Hon Man

Dr Silvia S M KAM
Dr KAN Chi Ho

Dr KO Siu Hin

Dr KO Wai Kit

Dr KONG Che Wan
Dr KUNG Kenny

Dr Betty K M KWAN
Dr KWAN Sin Man
Dr KWAN Yu

Dr KWOK Chi Sum
Dr KWOK Vincci

Dr Mary B L KWONG
Dr KWONG Ho Tak
Dr KWONG Hon Kei
Dr KWONG Ka Wah
Dr Alfred S K KWONG
Dr KWONG Wing Hun
Dr LAI Kit Chi

Dr Loretta K P LAI

Dr LAl Sheung Siu
Dr LAI Siu Wai
Drirene SY LAI

Dr LAl Sum Yin

Dr Douglas T C LAI
Dr LAl Wai Wah

Dr Johnny CY LAM
Dr LAM Hiu Lam

Dr LAM Hon Man

Dr Stanley K H LAM
Prof Cindy L K LAM
Dr LAM Paul Paul

Dr LAM Pui Pui

Dr LAM Sun Ching
Prof LAM Tai Pong
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163.
164.
165.
166.
167.
168.
169.
170.
171.
172.
173.
174.
175.
176.
177.
178.
179.
180.
181.
182.
183.
184.
185.
186.
187.
188.
189.
190.
191.
192.
193.
194.
195.
196.
197.
198.
199.
200.
201.
202.
203.
204.
205.
206.
207.
208.
209.
210.
211.
212.
213.
214.
215.
216.
217.
218.
219.
220.
221.
222.
223.
224.
225.
226.
227.

Dr Catherine T M LAM
Dr Augustine T LAM
Dr LAU Chi Hang

Dr LAU Chi Hung

Dr LAU Ka Man

Dr Angela KM LAU
Dr LAU Kam Tong

Dr Kinson K S LAU
Dr LAU Lai Na

Dr Dominic MW LAU
Dr LAU Po Shan

Dr LAU Pui Ling

Dr LAU Tai Wai

Dr LAW Tung Chi
Prof LEE Albert

Dr Frederick C T LEE
Dr LEE Chik Pui

Dr Tony C K LEE

Dr LEE Hoi Ying

Dr LEE Kai Yuen

Dr LEE Kar Fai

Dr LEE Kit Yan

Dr LEE Ling Hin

Dr LEE Man Kei

Dr Ruby SY LEE

Dr LEE Sum

Dr Francis W T LEE
Dr LEE Wang Yat

Dr LEE Wing Po

Dr LEE Wing Yi

Dr LEUNG Cheuk Wing
Dr LEUNG Ching Ching
Dr Daniel C Y LEUNG
Dr LEUNG Ka Fai

Dr Maria KW LEUNG
Dr LEUNG Lai Man
Dr LEUNG Lok Hang
Dr Crystal P S LEUNG
Dr LEUNG Shuk Yun
Dr Selina S W LEUNG
Dr LEUNG To Fung
Dr Violet T M LEUNG
Dr LEUNG Wan Chiu
Dr LEUNG Wing Kit
Dr LEUNG Wing Mun
Dr LI Hei Lim

Dr LI Heung Wing
Prof Donald K T LI

Dr LI Minru

Dr Vincent W S LI

Dr LI Yim Chu

Dr LIANG Jun

Dr LIU Yin Mei

Dr Raymond C H LO
DrDana S M LO

Dr LO Wei

DrYvonne Y C LO

Dr Wendy W C LO (WONG)
Dr LUI How Mui

Dr Benny L P LUI

Dr LUK Kam Hung

Dr Matthew M H LUK
Dr LUK Wan

Dr Dennis C S MAK
Dr MAK Wing Hang
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230.
231.
232.
233.
234.
235.
236.
237.
238.
239.
240.
241.
242.
243.
244,
245.
246.
247.
248.
249.
250.
251.
252.
253.
254,
255.
256.
257.
258.
259.
260.
261.
262.
263.
264.
265.
266.
267.
268.
269.
270.
271.
272.
273.
274.
275.
276.
277.
278.
279.
280.
281.
282.
283.
284.
285.
286.
287.
288.
289.
290.
291.
292.

Dr MAN Fung Yi

Dr Jennifer Y F MOK
Dr NG Ching Luen

Dr NG Chun Bor

Dr NG Kai Man

Dr NG Kwok Keung
Dr Jackie M P NG

Dr NG Mei Yee

Dr NG Pak Him

Dr Catherine S W NG
Dr NG Tsz Kin

Dr Peter TK NG

Dr NG Yeung Shing
Dr Joanne Y W NG
Dr NG VENTURA Lorna
Dr NGAI Bernard
DrAllen HY NGAI

Dr NGAI Ka Ho

Dr Raymond K L NGAN
Dr OR Ka Yan

Dr OWENS David Edward
Dr PANG Siu Leung
Dr PON Wai Pi

Dr PONG Pong

Dr POON Ming Wai
Dr Anthony S B POON
Dr POON Ting Kong
Dr Retro FM

Dr SHEK Chun Chiu
Dr SHEK Hon Wing
Dr Mariana C K SHUEN
Dr SIN Ming Chuen
Dr SIT Wing Shan

Dr SIU Leung Chow
Dr SIU Lok Man

Dr Natalie P Y SIU

Dr Samuel J S SIU

Dr SO Fong Tat

Dr SUN Yiu Kwong
Dr SUNG Cheuk Chung
Dr David T W SUNG
Dr Jimmy H P SY

Dr SY Wing Man

Dr SZE Chung Fai

Dr SZE Hon Ho

Dr Catherine P K SZE
Dr Janet C Y TAM

Dr TAM Ho Shan

Dr TAM John Hugh
Dr Tammy KW TAM
Dr TAM Kit Ping

Dr TAM Sze Man

Dr TAM Wah Kit

Dr TAM Yick Sin

Dr TANG Kin Sze

Dr Joyce S F TANG
Dr TING Fei Yin

Dr Dorothy K'Y TO

Dr Timmy P H TONG
Dr TOO Lai Chong

Dr TSANG Chi Fai

Dr Luke CY TSANG
Dr TSANG Ming Lam
Dr TSANG Pui Lim
Dr TSE Hing Choi
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293. Dr Keith K K TSE 331. Dr WONG Suk Ching

294, Dr TSE Sut Yee 332. Dr WONG Sum Lok
295. Dr TSE Tak Kei 333. Dr WONG Sze Kei
296. Dr Emily TY TSE 334. Dr WONG Sze Nga
297. Dr TSE Wan Ying 335. Dr WONG Tak Lung
298. Dr Gene W W TSOI 336. Dr WONG Tseng Kwong
299. Dr TSUI Felix 337. Dr Rita W M WONG
300. Dr TSUI Hoi Yee 338. Dr WONG Wing Sze
301. Dr TSUI Kwok Biu 339. Dr WONG Yu Fai
302. Dr TSUI Pun Nang 340. Dr WU Chun Yu
303. Dr Wendy W S TSUI 341. Dr WU Kwok Keung
304. Dr Hayles H W WAI 342. Dr Nerrissa S C WU
305. Dr WAN Kwong Yu 343. DrTom TY WU
306. Dr WAN Wing Fai 344. Dr YAN Chi Yung
307. Dr WANG Hua Li 345. Dr YAU Kin Chung
308. Dr WONG Chak Tong 346. Dr YAU Lai Mo

309. Dr WONG Chi Kwong 347. Dr YEN Pang Fei
310. Dr WONG Chi Lung 348. Dr YEUNG Chi Keung
311. Dr William C W WONG 349. Dr YEUNG Sze Wai
312. Dr WONG Chun Fai 350. Dr YEUNG Wai Man
313. Dr WONG Chung Tao 351. Dr YIM Chi Ling
314. Dr WONG Fai Ying 352. Dr Derek G C YING
315. Dr Ricky H F WONG 353. Dr YIP Chun Kong
316. Dr WONG Ho Cheong 354. Dr Vivian H M YIP
317. Dr Queenie H K WONG 355. Dr YIP Pui Chuen
318. Dr David K K WONG 356. Dr YIP Wing Ki

319. Dr WONG Kwai Sheung 357. Dr YIP Wing Yi

320. Dr WONG Kwai Wing 358. Dr YIU Cheuk Man
321. Dr Joseph K H WONG 359. Dr YIU Ming Pong
322. Dr WONG Kwok Hoi 360. Dr YIU Yuk Kwan
323. Dr Kitty K WONG 361. Dr YU Ching Ching
324. Dr Virginia L C WONG 362. Dr YU Pui Hang
325. Dr WONG Man Kin 363. Dr Frances SKYU
326. Dr Michelle M Y WONG 364. Dr Esther Y T YU
327. Dr Marcus M S WONG 365. Dr YUEN Chi Hang
328. Dr Amy O Y WONG 366. Dr YUEN Fu Lam
329. Dr WONG Pak Hoi 367. Dr YUEN Shiu Man
330. Dr WONG Pak Kin 368. Dr YUNG Hiu Ting
APPENDIX C

Training Centers and Clinical Supervisors of Basic Vocational Training Programme in Family Medicine
HOSPITAL BASED TRAINING CENTERS
Training Center Name / Supervisor Name Coordinator/ Specialty

Nature: HA — HKE (Hong Kong East Cluster)

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital Dr Michelle M Y WONG
Dr Thomas T S AU Emergency Medicine
Dr CHAN Lap Wa Emergency Medicine
Dr Edward S C CHIANG Emergency Medicine
Dr CHOI Sing Yim Emergency Medicine
Dr CHOI Yu Fai Emergency Medicine
Dr Samuel S N CHOW Emergency Medicine
Dr HON Ka Fai Emergency Medicine
Dr Carolyn C L HUNG Emergency Medicine
Dr KWOK Wai Shing Emergency Medicine
Dr LAW Chi Yin Emergency Medicine
Dr Hilda HY MAK Emergency Medicine
Dr MOK Fung Shan Emergency Medicine
Dr Maria MY SY Emergency Medicine
Dr WONG Ka Ying Emergency Medicine
Dr WONG Nga King Emergency Medicine
Dr YU Fong Emergency Medicine
Dr YUNG Chun Tung Emergency Medicine
Dr Christina TY CHAN General Surgery

Dr CHAN Wai Hong General Surgery
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Dr CHOI Chi Yee

Dr Carmen C W CHU
Dr Daniel T M CHUNG
Dr Eric C H LAl

DrAlex TY LAI

Dr LAU Chi Wai

Dr LEE Suet Ying

Dr James C M LI

Dr Grace Y L LIU

Dr Jason KW WONG
Dr Jeffery MH YU

Dr AU YEUNG Man

Dr CHAN Kwok Keung
Dr CHAN Yu Pak

Dr Jonathan Y K CHAN
Dr CHENG Hei Shun
Dr Stephen W H CHENG
Dr CHEUNG Chun Ming
Dr CHIU Pui Hing

Dr Vincent C C CHOW
Dr HUANG Hiu Fung
Dr HUE Siu Man

Dr JAO Ho Ying

Dr Bonnie C S KHO

Dr LAU Jason
DrEmmyY F LAU

Dr Violet K L LEE

Dr LEUNG Chi Man

Dr LI Richard

Dr LUNG Kwok Cheung
Dr Flora P L MIU

Dr PANG Ho Kwong

Dr SUEN To Lam

Dr Carly C L SUN

Dr TAI Ling Fung
DrAston T C TAM

Dr TONG Chun Wai

Dr TSUI Kin Lam

Dr Winnie Z M WAT

Dr WONG Charles

Dr WONG Chi Kwan
Dr Stephen S F WONG
Dr Sandy W S WOO
Dr Sandy W S WOO
Dr YAU Kwok Ho

Dr HUNG Cheung Yu
Dr Daniel L W CHAN
Dr CHEUNG Wing Lam
Dr CHUNG Carmen Diana
Dr HUI Winnie

Dr LAW Ho Ying

Dr Jessica Y P LAW

Dr Diana HY LEE

Dr Linus LT LEE

Dr TAM Hei Man

Dr TANG Kwok Keung
Dr WONG Daniel

Dr WONG Ka Yan

Dr Anita P C YEUNG
Dr AU Chi Lik

Dr CHAN Edwin

Dr FAN Ching Yim

Dr Calle KL KO

Dr KO Tak Chuen

Dr LEOW Po Lin

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine
Neurosurgery

Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
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Dr Peter K C LEUNG
Dr LIU Shasha

Dr TSANG Alan

Dr Jonathan K C CHAN
Dr Gary TW CHAN
Dr CHIU Shin Yeung
Dr Mai MY CHOW

Dr HAU Vincent

Dr Kenneth S H HUI
Dr KUNG Kam Ling
Dr LEUNG Gene Chun Yeen
Dr LEUNG Ka Hei

Dr LEUNG Man Fai
Dr Priscilla O Y LEUNG
DrJohn CY LO

Dr MAK Yan Kit

Dr MOK Wing Yuk

Dr POON Kai Chung
Dr TAM Ka Ki

Dr TAM Kin Hing

Dr TSANG Wai Leuk
Dr WONG Man Kwan
Dr YAM Sai Kit

Dr YIP Tak Hing

Dr CHAN Ka Cheong
Dr Alvin P N CHU

Dr Peter K C KWAN
Dr LAU Yuk Fai

Dr TONG Fu Man

Dr Fergus K C WONG
Dr CHAN Cheong Wai
Dr CHAN Chi Man

Dr CHAN Kwong Tat
Dr CHAN Lok Man

Dr KO Wai Tai

Dr LEE Kwok Piu

Dr LEE Shing Yan

Dr LEE Wing Cheong
Dr NG Ka Wai

Dr TAI Shuk Mui

Dr TSUI Tat Kong

Dr Lilian LY TSUNG
Dr Wendy KW WONG
Dr YU Tak Ching

Dr CHAN Ka Po

Dr CHAN Man Chak
Dr CHAN Wai Hong
Dr Joyce Y CHAN

Dr CHOY Lam Wai

Dr CHUNG Pui Yin

Dr Eva LW DUNN

Dr Timothy M C HONG
Dr HUI Hon Man

Dr KAN Chui Kwan

Dr KWOK Choi Hon
Dr LAI Chi Lun

Dr Francis W K LEE
Dr MA Tin Wai

Dr Yvonne Patricia Y P POON
Dr PUN Hiu Wa

Dr WONG Chi Keung
Dr WONG Shun Ming
DrAnnaY KWU

Dr YEUNG Wai Song
Dr YU Yee Wah

Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology

Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry

Psychiatry
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Ruttonjee Hospital & Tang Shiu Kin Hospital

Dr MOK Ka Leung

Dr CHAN Chuen

Dr FAN Hon Cheung
Dr KNG Carolyn Poey Lyn
Dr KWAN Chung Hon
Dr LAM Ching Yu

Dr Jenny Y'Y LEUNG
Dr WONG Che Keung
Dr WONG Chit Wai
Dr WONG Tin Wai

Dr Alwin W T YEUNG

Tung Wah Eastern Hospital
Dr Grace P S HUI

Dr LAM Ping Ping

Dr YEUNG Pui Yu

Dr AU Chi Lik

Dr CHAN Edwin

Dr Joyce KY CHIN
Dr KO Tak Chuen

Dr Andrew K T KUK
Dr LEOW Po Lin

Dr Peter K C LEUNG
Dr LIU Shasha

Dr TSANG Alan

Dr LEUNG Kai Chi
Dr YUEN Ka Hong
Dr Betty H K YOUNG
Dr LIU Hor Ming

Nature: HA - HKW (Hong Kong West Cluster)

Fung Yiu King Hospital
Dr CHAN Ngar Yu

Dr CHAN Tuen Ching
Dr James K H LUK

Grantham Hospital - Ophthalmology

Dr Connie HY LAl
Dr LAM Wai Ching
Dr LEUNG Kai Shun
Dr YIM Suk Ming

Queen Mary Hospital
Dr TSANG Tat Chi

Dr Ludwig C H TSOI

Dr TSUI Sik Hon

Dr WONG Siu Yin

Dr WOO Yu Cho

Dr Paulin W S MA

Dr LEUNG Kai Shun
Dr Kenneth M C CHEUNG
Dr Jason PY CHEUNG
Dr FANG Xinshuo Christian
Dr IP Wing Yuk

Dr Kenny Y H KWAN
Dr LAU Tak Wing

Dr Frankie KL LEUNG
Dr Michael KT TO

Dr WONG Tak Man

Dr YAU Wai Pan

Dr CHUNG Chun Kit
Dr HO Wai Kuen

Dr Birgitta Y H WONG

Dr Michelle M Y WONG
Emergency Medicine
General Surgery
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine

Dr YUEN Ka Hong
Endocrinology, Diabetes & Metabolism
Geriatric Medicine
Internal Medicine
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Rehabilitation
Rehabilitation
Respiratory Medicine
Rheumatology

Dr James K H LUK
Geriatric Medicine
Geriatric Medicine
Geriatric Medicine

Prof LEUNG Kai Shun
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology

Dr Alfred S K KWONG
Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Ophthalmology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
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Dr CHIM Stella

Dr Alvin C C HO

Dr Grace W K POON
Dr SOU DA ROSA DUQUE Jaime
Dr CHAN Kwai Yeung
Dr Eileena M C CHUI
Dr HO Chung

Dr LAW Chi Wing

Dr LEE Chit Tat

Dr WONG Sze Nga
DrZoe HS YU

Tung Wah Hospital
Dr CHAN Po Yi

Dr Carmen T KHO

Dr IP Tai Pang

Dr Lorraine P Y KWAN
Dr KWOK Tsz Kin

Dr LEE Chi Yan

Dr LEUNG Ching Man
Dr LUI Sing Leung

Dr MOK Ming Yee

Dr Terence P S YIP
Dr CHANG Yuk Kwan
Dr CHOI Hok Kwok
Dr HUNG Hing Tsun
Dr LAW Tsz Ting

Dr NG Lily

Dr WONG Kin Yuen

Nature: HA — KC (Kowloon Central Cluster)
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital

Dr Dorothy W H KWOK

Dr TAM Kui Fu

Dr YAU Wai Shan

Hong Kong Eye Hospital
Dr CHAN Chung Kit

Dr CHAN Kar Man

Dr CHI Chung Chai

Dr Claire WY CHOW

Dr CHOW Wing See

Dr KWOK Yuen Ting

Dr Yolanda Y Y KWONG
Dr LAM Chi Ho

Dr LAM Chun Wah

Dr LAM Nai Man

Dr MOHAMED Shaheeda
Dr Clement CY THAM

Dr TSANG Chi Wai

Dr Mandy O M WONG

Dr YIM Cheuk Ling

Dr YUEN Kwok Lai

Kowloon Hospital - Respiratory Medical Department
Dr CHENG Yiu Fai

Dr KWAN Hoi Yee

Dr LING Sai On

Dr Thomas Y W MOK

Dr POON Yik Ning

Dr TSENG Cee Kin

Dr YIM Chie Wai

Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry

Dr Carmen T KHO

Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery

Dr Stanley K F TAM

Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine

Dr YUEN Kwok Lai

Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology

Dr KWAN Hoi Yee

Respiratory Medicine
Respiratory Medicine
Respiratory Medicine
Respiratory Medicine
Respiratory Medicine
Respiratory Medicine
Respiratory Medicine
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Kowloon Hospital (H) - Department of Psychiatry

Dr CHAN Ka Yee

Dr CHOW Suet Yan
Dr LAM Wai Keung
Dr LAU Ting Sum

Dr LEE Hing Wah

Dr Sandy SW LEUNG
Dr POON Ting Keung
Dr Clara M W SIU

Dr SUN Jessica

Dr TSUI Chi Fong

Dr WONG Man Tak
Dr Eric W C YAN

Dr Gabriel KK YU

Dr YU Qi Ting

Kwong Wah Hospital
Dr CHAN Kwun Wai
Dr Daisy MY KAN

Dr KWOK Shu Yan

Dr NG Yim Hung

Dr LEUNG Wai Shing
Dr LO Man Wai

Dr Maria W H MAK

Dr WONG Ping Nam
Dr Lucia L K CHAN

Dr ViolaY T CHAN

Dr Catherine M W HUNG
Dr LAI Shui Fan

Dr LAM Mei Ting

Dr LAU Chin Ho

Dr LAU Wai Lam

Dr LEUNG Tsin Wah
Dr LEUNG Wing Cheong
Dr Grace P Y TANG
Dr WONG Yiu Fai

Dr Cherrie W K YUNG
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Dr LEE Yin Ling

Dr Donald K K SHING
Dr WONG Tin Chiu
Dr WONG WEei Yin
Dr YIP Choi Wan

Tseung Kwan O Hospital
Dr Alexander K P CHAN
Dr KUNG Shu Wing
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Dr YEUNG Chi Kin

Dr CHAI Yu Ka

Dr Joyce CY CHAN
Dr CHAN Mei Yun
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Dr LI Anita Lai Wah
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Dr LI Weiguo

Dr LOK Lin Wing

Dr Sammy N T MAK
Dr Raymond N M WONG
Dr YEUNG Tsang
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Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine

Dr MOK Eugenie Ophthalmology

Dr Jeffrey Justin S C KOO Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Dr LAM Hoi Yan Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Dr LAM Yan Ting Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Dr Jimmy K'Y LAU Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Dr LAW Sheung Wai Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Dr LEUNG Siu Man Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Dr Samuel C C CHENG Otorhinolaryngology

Dr CHENG Horace Otorhinolaryngology



Dr CHOW Man Wai
Dr Calvin C F LAI

Dr EricHL LAU

Dr John S K LEE

Dr LEUNG Moon Wah
Dr WONG Wai Yeung

Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology

Dr CHAN Tang Tat Paediatrics
Dr CHENG Yan Wah Paediatrics
Dr CHIANG Pui King Paediatrics
Dr LAM Man Chun Paediatrics
Dr LEE Hau Man Paediatrics
Dr LIU Ka Yee Paediatrics
Dr MA Kam Hung Paediatrics
Dr MAK Chung Wai Paediatrics
Dr Rainbow K'Y MAK Paediatrics
Dr Luke C T TONG Paediatrics
Dr TSUI Kwing Wan Paediatrics
Dr WONG Tak Wai Paediatrics
Dr WONG Wai Chun Paediatrics
Dr Jonathan S F NG Psychiatry

North District Hospital

Dr KITCHELL Abdul Karim Bin

Dr LAW Kam Leung
Dr LI Chun Kwong

Dr CHEUNG Ka Yin
Dr CHEUNG Yue Sun
Dr NG Chung Kei

Dr TSOI Yee Kei

Dr WONG Chun Man

Dr Maria KW LEUNG

Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
Internal Medicine

Dr WONG | Ming Internal Medicine
Dr YIU Kwok Hing Internal Medicine
Dr LO Cho Yau Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Dr MA Chun Man Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Dr SIU Yuk Chuen Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Prince of Wales Hospital Dr Maria KW LEUNG

Dr CHEUNG Koon Ho
Dr CHEUNG Nai Kwong
Dr LEE Kit Fai

Dr Stephen K K NG

Dr Albert KY NG

Dr Enders KW NG

Dr Vienna MW NG

Dr CHAN Chin Pang

Dr Jones C M CHAN

Dr CHOW Kai Ming

Dr Philip KT LI

Dr OZAKI Risa

Dr Raymond S M WONG
Dr Michelle S N LAM

Dr WAH Yi Man

Dr YEUNG Suet Ying
Dr Noel CY CHAN

Dr Karen KW CHAN

Dr HO Mary

Dr KAM Ka Wai

Dr MAK Chun Yue

Dr MOK Eugenie

Dr TSUI Lok Yee

Dr YIP Wai Kuen

Dr YOUNG Lerrmann Alvin
Dr Gary KY YU

Dr CHIU Wang Kei

Dr KWOK Kin On

Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine

Internal Medicine
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology

Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology



Dr TANG Ning

Dr TSE Wing Lim

Dr WONG Kwok Chuen
Dr WONG Yu Chung
Dr Samuel C C CHENG
Dr CHENG Horace

Dr CHOW Man Wai
Dr Calvin C F LAI

Dr EricHL LAU

Dr John S K LEE

Dr LEUNG Moon Wah
Dr WONG Wai Yeung
Dr CHAN Ching Ching
Dr Eva LW FUNG

Dr Assunta C H HO
Dr LEUNG Po Yee

Dr Agnes S Y LEUNG
Dr LEUNG Ting Fan
Dr Albert M LI

DrAmy F C LO

Dr Geoffrey C F MOK
Dr Enoch C T SO

Dr Gary W K WONG
Dr YAM Man Ching

Dr YAU Ho Chung

Dr YAU Lo Yee

Dr YU Wai Ling

Dr CHAN Cheuk Chi
Dr CHOW Lai Yin

Dr KAM Wai Kwok

Dr KO Shuk Fun

Dr LAM Ho Bun

Dr Vincent M C LEUNG
Dr Alan KL TANG

Dr TANG Wai Kwong
Dr TANG Wing Ki

Dr TSO Yue Kwong
Dr Joshua MY TSOH
Dr WING Yun Kwok
Dr WONG Tak Shun

Shatin Hospital

Dr DING Qi

Dr LAM Kuen

Dr MariaY T MO

Dr Maria W S TANG
Dr WOO Jean

Dr YUK Ka Lok

Dr CHAN Cheuk Chi
Dr Joey WY CHAN
Dr KAM Wai Kwok
Dr KO Shuk Fun

Dr LAM Ho Bun

Dr Vivian W M LIM
Dr Brian P N OR

Dr TANG Wing Ki

Dr TSO Yue Kwong
Dr Joshua MY TSOH
Dr WING Yun Kwok

Tai Po Hospital

Dr LAI King Son

Dr LEE Shun Wah

Dr WAN Ching Kit

Dr CHAN Sheung Chun

Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology

Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry

Dr Maria KW LEUNG

Medicine and Geriatrics
Medicine and Geriatrics
Medicine and Geriatrics
Medicine and Geriatrics
Medicine and Geriatrics
Medicine and Geriatrics
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry

Dr Maria KW LEUNG

Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Psychiatry
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Dr LEE Ka Lin
Drlan MY PAN

Dr TAl Wing Ki

Dr WONG Yip Chau

Nature: HA — NTW (New Territory West Cluster)

Castle Peak Hospital
Dr CHAN Cheong Fai
Dr CHENG Chi Wai

Dr CHENG Koi Man
Dr CHIANG Tin Po

Dr Antoninette C O FUNG
Dr Frankie HN HO

Dr Harvey C F HUNG
Dr LAM Ming

Dr Jenny P H LAM

Dr LAM Siu Man

Dr LAU Mei Suen

Dr LAU Yuk Shing
DrAmy CY LIU

Dr MAK Shun Chi

Dr POON Kam Shan
Dr Joha Y K POON

Dr TUNG Chi Kwong
Dr Wilson C W WONG
Dr Jessica O Y WONG
Dr YEUNG Sze Wing

Pok Oi Hospital

Dr CHOY Ching Him
Dr FUNG Hin Tat

Dr Tommy S K LAM

Dr LAU Chu Leung

Dr Wilfred M M LEE
Dr LUI Chun Tat

Dr TSUI Kwok Leung
Dr WONG Chun Yin
Dr CHAN Shun

Dr CHAN Tsz Yeung
Dr Lysander H CHAU
Dr CHENG Cheung Hing
Dr CHEUNG Chin Cheung
Dr CHEUNG Hing Fong
Dr CHEUNG Tak Yan
Dr CHOI Wing Kee

Dr CHU Ming Leong
Dr CHU Sau Kwan

Dr Harriette H C HO
Dr HUI Wei Han

Dr HUNG Lai Fai

Dr LEE Ching Ching
Dr LEE Yue Kit

Dr LEUNG Siu Kee

Dr LEUNG Yu Wing
Dr Michelle H C LO

Dr MAK Chak Fong

Dr MAN Chi Wai

Dr Michael C M POON
Dr Terrence T L POON
Dr THUNG Kin Hoi

Dr TSUI King Yiu

Dr Kenny C Y WONG
Dr WONG Chun Sing
Dr Kelvin K F WONG
Dr WONG Kei Kwong

Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry

Dr CHAN Cheong Fai
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry

Dr CHAN Yin Hang
Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
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Dr WONG Wai Man
Dr WONG Wui Bun

Dr WONG Yim Ping
Dr YIU Chun Wang

Dr YIU Hak Lim

Dr YUEN Ho Yan

Dr CHAN Ting

Dr CHAN Yuk Kit

Dr CHEUNG Kit Yan
Dr CHOI Chun Hung
Dr Matthew K H TONG
Dr WONG Chi Wing
Dr WONG Shung Yee
Dr WONG Tsz Lun

Dr YUNG Chun Yu

Dr CHAN Chong Chung
Dr CHAN Chun Fung
Dr CHAN Ping Tak

Dr CHAN Wai Ming

Dr CHENG Hung On
Dr Alexander K'Y CHOI
Dr CHU Kai Man

Dr CHUI Shek Kwan
Dr KWOK Pui Pui

Dr LAM Yuk Yu

Dr LAU Chi Yuk

Dr LEE Chun Yin

Dr LEUNG Cheuk Yip
Dr LEUNG Kwok Hung
Dr Brian W C LUK

Dr Arthur K H MA

Dr NG Weng IO

Dr TSANG Ka Ho

Dr TSUI Hon For

Dr WEN Eleanor

Dr WUN Yiu Chung

Dr YEUNG Ching Man
Dr Emily KY YIP

Dr CHIO lo Meng

Dr LAM Tsz Chun

Dr Jason K C MOK

Dr Shirley C L WONG
Dr Andrew C L WONG
Dr Athena T K WONG
Dr YEUNG Kong Wah

Tuen Mun Hospital

Dr Winnie WY TIN

Dr Frank C S WONG

Dr CHOY Ching Him

Dr FUNG Hin Tat

Dr Tommy S K LAM

Dr LAU Chu Leung

Dr Wilfred M M LEE

Dr LUI Chun Tat

Dr TSUI Kwok Leung

Dr WONG Chun Yin

Dr CHAN Shun

Dr CHAN Tsz Yeung

Dr Lysander H CHAU

Dr CHENG Cheung Hing
Dr CHEUNG Chin Cheung
Dr CHEUNG Hing Fong
Dr CHEUNG Tak Yan

Dr CHOI Wing Kee

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

Medicine and Geriatrics
Medicine and Geriatrics
Medicine and Geriatrics
Medicine and Geriatrics
Medicine and Geriatrics
Medicine and Geriatrics
Medicine and Geriatrics
Medicine and Geriatrics
Medicine and Geriatrics
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology

Dr CHAN Yin Hang

Clinical Oncology
Clinical Oncology
Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
General Surgery
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Dr CHU Ming Leong
Dr CHU Sau Kwan

Dr Harriette H C HO
Dr HUI Wei Han

Dr HUNG Lai Fai

Dr LEE Ching Ching
Dr LEE Yue Kit

Dr LEUNG Siu Kee

Dr LEUNG Wan Chi
Dr LEUNG Yu Wing
Dr Michelle H C LO

Dr MAK Chak Fong

Dr MAN Chi Wai

Dr Michael C M POON
Dr Terrence T L POON
Dr THUNG Kin Hoi

Dr TSUI King Yiu

Dr Kenny C Y WONG
Dr WONG Chun Sing
Dr Kelvin K F WONG
Dr WONG Kei Kwong
Dr WONG Wai Man

Dr WONG Woui Bun

Dr WONG Yim Ping
Dr YIU Chun Wang

Dr YIU Hak Lim

Dr YUEN Ho Yan

Dr Eddie S L CHOW
Dr Michael Y P FU

Dr HAU Kai Ching

Dr Andrew Y Y HO

Dr MOK Chi Chiu

Dr Francis C K MOK
Dr Eric CW SZE

Dr Sidney K C AU-YEUNG
Dr LEUNG Ho Kei

Dr WU Win Sum

Dr LEUNG Wai Yee
Dr YANG Ngai

Dr YEUNG Chun Ting
Dr CHAN Chong Chung
Dr CHAN Chun Fung
Dr CHAN Ping Tak

Dr CHAN Wai Ming

Dr CHENG Hung On
Dr Alexander K'Y CHOI
Dr CHU Kai Man

Dr CHUI Shek Kwan
Dr KWOK Pui Pui

Dr LAM Yuk Yu

Dr LAU Chi Yuk

Dr LEE Chun Yin

Dr LEUNG Cheuk Yip
Dr LEUNG Kwok Hung
Dr Brian W C LUK

Dr Arthur K H MA

Dr NG Weng IO

Dr Jennifer W S TONG
Dr TSANG Ka Ho

Dr TSUI Hon For

Dr WEN Eleanor

Dr WUN Yiu Chung

Dr YEUNG Ching Man
Dr Emily KY YIP

Dr CHIO lo Meng

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

General Surgery

Medicine and Geriatrics
Medicine and Geriatrics
Medicine and Geriatrics
Medicine and Geriatrics
Medicine and Geriatrics
Medicine and Geriatrics
Medicine and Geriatrics
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology

Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Otorhinolaryngology
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Dr LAM Tsz Chun

Dr Jason K C MOK
Dr Shirley C L WONG
Dr Andrew C L WONG
Dr Athena T K WONG
Dr YEUNG Kong Wah
Dr AU Ka Nam

Dr CHAK Wai Kwong
Dr David SY LAM

Dr Tracy Y H LEE

Dr Toria T S LEE

Dr LI Chak Ho

Dr LI Ka Wah

Dr LUI Ying Shun

Dr Mary Y'Y NGAN
Dr Sylvia LY SIU

Dr WONG Chi Hang
Dr WONG Lap Ming
Dr WONG Qi Yin

Dr WONG Wai Yu

Dr YEUNG Kin Yip

Dr YUEN Chi Lap

Dr CHAN Cheong Fai
Dr CHENG Chi Wai
Dr CHENG Koi Man
Dr CHIANG Tin Po

Dr Jenny P H LAM

Dr LAM Siu Man

Dr LAU Mei Suen

Dr LAU Yuk Shing

Dr MAK Shun Chi

Dr TUNG Chi Kwong
Dr Jessica O Y WONG
Dr YEUNG Sze Wing

Nature: PH (Private Hospital)
Evangel Hospital

Dr Dennis Y P YUEN

Dr David Y W WONG

Dr Leo P W CHIU

Hong Kong Sanatorium & Hospital
Dr Johnny C Y CHAN
Dr Angus CW CHAN

Dr WONG Wai Sang

Dr Annie O O CHAN

Dr LAM Bing

Dr Raymond H S LIANG
Dr LO Kwok Wing

Dr Joseph W T CHAN
Dr John S M CHANG

Dr lvan N CHEN

Dr Walton W T LI
DrAgnes TY TSE

Dr Joan T WU

Dr Stephen W C WU

Dr Ignace W WEI

Dr TSAO Yen Chow

Dr PAN Pey Chyou

Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Otorhinolaryngology
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Paediatrics
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry

Dr Billy S H CHUI
Internal Medicine
Ophthalmology
Psychiatry

Dr Joseph W T CHAN
Dermatology
General Surgery
General Surgery
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Internal Medicine
Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Ophthalmology
Orthopaedics & Traumatology
Otorhinolaryngology
Paediatrics
Psychiatry
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COMMUNITY BASED TRAINING CENTERS
Training Center Name /Supervisor Name

Nature: DH (Department of Health)

Chai Wan Families Clinic
Dr Cecilia Y M FAN

Dr Kinson K S LAU

Dr NG Mei Yee

Fanling Families Clinic
Dr Dominic MW LAU

Dr Raymond K L NGAN
Dr WONG Sum Lok

Dr Rita W M WONG

Kowloon Families Clinic
Dr Carroll K L CHAN

Dr HO Kam Wai

Dr LAU Pui Lung

Dr WONG Chi Kwong

New Territories Families Clinic
Dr CHAN Ka Wai
Dr Tammy K W TAM

Tang Chi Ngong Specialist Clinic - Hong Kong Families Clinic
Dr Selina S W LEUNG

Dr NG Kwok Keung

Dr POON Ming Wai

Tsuen Wan Elderly Health Centre
Dr Benny L P LUI

Nature: HA — HKE (Hong Kong East Cluster)
Anne Black General Out-patient Clinic
Chai Wan General Out-patient Clinic

Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospital - Hospital Authority Staff Clinic

Sai Wan Ho General Out-patient Clinic

Shau Kei Wan Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic
Violet Peel General Out-patient Clinic

Wan Tsui General Out-patient Clinic

Supervisor Name

Dr CHENG Kit Wing

Dr FOK Chun Man
DrIrene S Y LAI

Dr LEUNG Cheuk Wing
Dr LEUNG Ka Fai

Dr Crystal P S LEUNG
Dr LEUNG Wan Chiu
Dr LEUNG Wing Mun
Dr LI Hei Lim

Dr LUI How Mui

Dr MAK Wing Hang

Dr TSUI Pun Nang

Dr Virginia L C WONG
Dr Michelle M Y WONG
Dr Marcus M S WONG
Dr YEUNG Wai Man

Dr Steven C H YUEN

Nature: HA - HKW (Hong Kong West Cluster)
Aberdeen Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic
Central District Health Centre General Out-patient Clinic

Coordinator/ Specialty

Dr Cecilia Y M FAN
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine

Dr Dominic M W LAU
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine

Dr Carroll KL CHAN
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine

Dr Tammy KW TAM
Family Medicine
Family Medicine

Dr POON Ming Wai
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine

Dr Benny L P LUI
Family Medicine

Dr TSUI Pun Nang
Dr LEUNG Ka Fai

Dr Crystal P S LEUNG
Dr LI Hei Lim
Dr LEUNG Wan Chiu

Dr LEUNG Wing Mun
Dr Virginia L C WONG

Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine

Dr Rosita W S WONG
Dr NGAI Ka Ho

Kennedy Town Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic Dr Stephen C W CHOU
Queen Mary Hospital - Hospital Authority Staff Clinic Dr David C S CHENG
Sai Ying Pun Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic Dr SIN Ming Chuen
Tung Wah Hospital General Out-patient Clinic Dr Desmond W F HO



Supervisor Name

Dr CHAN Chin Ping

Dr CHAU Kai Man

Dr David C S CHENG
Dr David C H CHEUNG
Dr CHEUNG Man Ha
Dr CHEUNG Ngai Fung
Dr Stephen C W CHOU
Dr Desmond W F HO
Dr KO Wai Kit

Dr Alfred S K KWONG
Dr LAl Sum Yin

Dr LI Minru

Dr LUK Kam Hung

Dr Catherine SW NG
Dr NGAI Ka Ho

Dr PONG Pong

Dr SIN Ming Chuen

Dr Jimmy H P SY

Dr SZE Hon Ho

Dr TSANG Pui Lim

Dr Wendy W S TSUI

Dr WAN Wing Fai

Dr WANG Hua Li

Dr WONG Wing Sze

University of Hong Kong Family Medicine and Primary Care/ Ap Lei Chau Clinic

Dr Emily TY TSE
Dr William C W WONG

Nature: HA — KC (Kowloon Central Cluster)

Central Kowloon Health Centre

East Kowloon General Out-patient Clinic

Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital General Out-patient Clinic
Hung Hom Clinic

Kwong Wah Hospital GOPD

Lee Kee Memorial Dispensary

Li Po Chun General Out-patient Clinic

Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital Family Medicine Clinic
Queen Elizabeth Hospital - Hospital Authority Staff Clinic
Robert Black General Out-patient Clinic

Shun Tak Fraternal Association Leung Kau Kui Clinic
Wang Tau Hom Jockey Club General Out-Patient Clinic
Wu York Yu General Out-patient Clinic

Yau Ma Tei Jockey Club General Out-Patient Clinic

Supervisor Name

Dr CHAN King Hong
Dr CHAN Pui Kwan

Dr Winnie WY CHAN
Dr Catherine X R CHEN
Dr Cupid P S CHENG
Dr Clarence C M CHOI
Dr Ignatius P S CHOY
Dr HO Ka Ming

Dr HOU Jing

Dr HUI Lai Chi

Dr Susanna L L HUNG
Dr KO Siu Hin

Dr KWONG Hon Kei
Dr LAI Siu Wai

Dr Catherine T M LAM
Dr LAU Ka Man

Dr LAW Tung Chi

Dr LEUNG Ching Ching
Dr Vincent W S LI

Dr LI Yim Chu

Dr LIU Yin Mei

Dr OR Ka Yan

Dr POON Ting Kong
Dr TAM John Hugh

Dr TAM Wah Kit

Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine

Dr Emily TY TSE
Family Medicine
Family Medicine

Dr LAW Tung Chi

Dr LAW Tung Chi

Dr TAM Wah Kit

Dr WONG Kwai Sheung
Dr LAI Siu Wai

Dr KWONG Hon Kei
Dr POON Ting Kong
Dr Ignatius P S CHOY
Dr TAM John Hugh

Dr Susanna L L HUNG
Dr Clarence C M CHOI
Dr Cupid P S CHENG
Dr CHAN Mei Tak

Dr HUI Lai Chi

Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
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Dr TSE Tak Kei Family Medicine

Dr WONG Kwai Sheung Family Medicine
Dr WONG Sze Kei Family Medicine
Dr Derek G C YING Family Medicine
Dr YIP Pui Chuen Family Medicine

Nature: HA — KE (Kowloon East Cluster)

Kwun Tong Community Health Centre Dr Matthew M H LUK
Lam Tin Polyclinic General Out-patient Clinic Dr TOO Lai Chong
Mona Fong General Out-patient Clinic Dr YEUNG Sze Wai
Ngau Tau Kok Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic Dr WONG Kwai Wing
Shun Lee General Out-patient Clinic Dr CHAN Pui Wai
Tseung Kwan O Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic Dr WONG Sze Nga
United Christian Hospital - Hospital Authority Staff Clinic Dr WONG Tseng Kwong

Supervisor Name
Dr CHAN Kam Sum Family Medicine

Dr CHAN Ngai Ping

Dr CHAN Pang Fai

Dr CHAN Pui Wai

Dr David V K CHAO

Dr Michelle S S FU

Dr FUNG Hoi Tik

Dr Loretta K P LAI

Dr Matthew M H LUK
Dr Natalie P Y SIU

Dr TOO Lai Chong

Dr Queenie H K WONG
Dr WONG Kwai Wing
Dr WONG Sze Nga

Dr WONG Tak Lung

Dr WONG Tseng Kwong
Dr YEUNG Sze Wai

Dr YU Ching Ching

Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine

Nature: HA — KW (Kowloon West Cluster)

Caritas Medical Centre Family Medicine Clinic Dr NG Ching Luen
Cheung Sha Wan Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic Dr SY Wing Man

Ha Kwai Chung General Out-patient Clinic Dr Thomas M C DAO
North Lantau Community Health Centre Dr Alex S Y CHOW
Tsing Yi Town General Out-patient Clinic Dr LAM Hiu Lam

West Kowloon General Out-patient Clinic Dr Cheung Kwok Leung
Yan Chai Hospital - General Practice Clinic Dr YIU Ming Pong

Supervisor Name

Dr Edmond C W CHAN
Dr CHAN Chi Wing

Dr CHAN Wing Yi

Dr Sydney K L CHEUNG
Dr CHEUNG Mei Yee
Dr CHEUNG Wing Wo
DrAlex S Y CHOW

Dr CHU Lai Shan

Dr DAO Man Chi

Dr FOK Peter Anthony
Dr FU Sau Nga

Dr KWAN Sin Man

Dr LAM Hiu Lam

Dr LAU Po Shan

Dr Spike S F LAU

Dr LEE Kit Yan

Dr LEE Wing Yi

Dr LO Wei

Dr LUK Wan

Dr NG Ching Luen

Dr Mariana C K SHUEN
Dr Samuel J S SIU

Dr SY Wing Man

Dr TAM Ho Shan

Dr TSANG Chi Fai

Dr WAN Kwong Yu

Dr Vivian H M YIP

Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
Family Medicine
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Dr YIP Wing Ki

Dr YIU Cheuk Man
Dr YIU Ming Pong
Dr YIU Yuk Kwan

Nature: HA — NTE (New Territory East Cluster)

Fanling Family Medicine Centre

Lek Yuen General Out-patient Clinic

Ma On Shan Family Medicine Centre

Prince of Wales Hospital - Hospital Authority Staff Clinic
Wong Siu Ching Family Medicine Centre

Yuen Chau Kok General Out-Patient Clinic

Supervisor Name

Dr CHAN Lit Ping

Dr Jeff M H CHAN

Dr CHAN Ting Bong
Dr CHAN Yuen Yan
Dr CHEN Liujing

Dr CHENG Cheuk Hong
Dr CHENG Long Yee
Dr CHEUK Christina
Dr CHEUNG Hard King
Dr CHOI Yue Kwan
Dr CHOW Kam Fai
Dr CHOW Tsz Ling
Dr CHUNG Kin Wing
Dr CHUNG Wai Ho
Dr HAN Jinghao

Dr HO Wing Man

Dr Eric M T HUI

Dr LAU Chi Hung

Dr LEE Albert

Dr LEE Chik Pui

Dr LEE Man Kei

Dr LEE Sum

Dr Maria KW LEUNG
Dr LEUNG Shuk Yun
Dr LEUNG Wing Kit
Dr Peter T K NG

Dr Joanne Y W NG
Dr SO Fong Tat

Dr TSE Wan Ying

Dr WONG Kwok Hoi
Dr WONG Kwok Kitty
Dr WONG Pak Kin

Dr YAN Chi Yung

Dr YEUNG Chi Keung
Dr Frances S KYU

Nature: HA — NTW (New Territory West Cluster)
Madam Yung Fung Shee Health Centre

Pok Oi Hospital - Family Medicine Specialist Out-patient Clinic
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Dr Ruby K C LAI
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Dr Joyce S F TANG
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Dr Joyce S F TANG

University of Hong Kong - University Health Service
Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen
Dr Silvia S M KAM
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Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
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Nature: PH (Private Hospital)
Evangel Hospital - Family Medicine Department

Dr Billy S H CHUI
Dr LAU Tai Wai
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Dr Dawn Teresa H F Al
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Dr YEN Pang Fei

Hong Kong Sanatorium & Hospital - Family Medicine and Primary Care Centre

DrJudy GY CHENG

Dr CHEUNG Yu

Dr CHUNG Chak Cheong
Dr HONG Tin Chak

Dr WONG Chak Tong

Dr YUEN Shiu Man
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

The Editorial Board would like to express our heartfelt gratitude towards all contributing authors, Editorial Board members, business
manager, reviewers, advisers, ex-officios, and our secretariat staff for their expert support and tremendous dedication over the previous
year. Our deepest appreciation also goes to the journal’s readership for their ongoing encouragement and support. The Editorial Board
would continue to consider means to enhance the contents of the Hong Kong Practitioner in order act as a useful platform for supplying
quality academic articles to the busy family doctors.

As the official journal of the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians, The Hong Kong Practitioner continued to provide updated
information on Family Medicine related topics to our College Fellows, members, and colleagues both locally and overseas. Over the
course of the year, we have published original research articles, update articles, case reports, discussion papers, editorials, clinical
quizzes and internet updates), as well as Dr Sun Yat Sen Oration. With the help of the Editorial Board members and the expanded
Panel of Reviewers, the Board’s peer review capacity has been further strengthened. Thank you all once again.
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Dr Chan Pang Fai

Dr Chan Sze Luen, David
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Dr Chan Yuen Yan

Dr Chen Xiao Rui, Catherine
Dr Cheng Chun Sing, David
Dr Cheng Pui Kwan, Lisa

Dr Cheung Ngai Fung

Dr Ching Kam Wing

Dr Chiu Chi Fai, Billy

Dr Choi Wing Kin
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Dr Fu Sau Nga
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Dr Hung Wai Yin, Winson
Dr Ko Wai Kit

Dr Kwan Sin Man

Dr Kwong Ka Wah

Dr Kwong Siu Kei

Dr Lai Kit Ping, Loretta
Dr Lam Hiu Lam

Dr Lam Hon Man

Dr Lam King Hei, Stanley
Prof Lam Lo Kuen, Cindy
Dr Lam Tsan, Augustine
Dr Lau Man Wai, Dominic
Dr Lee Chun Kit, Tony

Dr Lee Siu Yin, Ruby

Dr Leung Chun Yin, Daniel
Dr Liang Jun

Dr Lim Mo Kin
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Dr Chan Chung Yuk, Alvin
Dr Chan King Hong
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Dr Chan So Wai, Sara
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Dr Lai Suk Yi, Irene
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Prof Wong Chi Sang, Martin
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Dr Wong Man Ying, Michelle
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Dr Fung Siu Cheung, Colman

B. Trainee Examiners
Dr Chan Chin Ping
Dr Chan Ka Lok, Carroll
Dr Chan Kin Ling
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Dr Chan Yin Hang
Dr Chen Yun, Julie
Dr Cheng Ghar Yee, Judy
Dr Cheuk Christina

Dr Cheung Kwok Leung, Sydney

Dr Cheung Man Ha
Dr Cheung Ngai Fung
Dr Cheung Sze Man

Dr Chou Chun Wing, Stephen

Dr Chu Wai Sing, Daniel
Dr Chung Chak Cheong
Dr Chung Kin Wing

Dr Hui Kwan Sue, Wilson
Dr Hui Ming Tung, Eric
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Dr Choi Yue Kwan
Dr Ng Kai Man

Dr Wong Kwai Sheung
Dr Wong Man Ho
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Dr Lee Siu Yin, Ruby

Dr Leung Shuk Yun

Dr Lo Yuen Chung, Yvonne

Dr Hung Wai Yin, Winson
Dr Kwan Ka Mei, Betty

Dr Kwong Bi Lok, Mary

Dr Lai Suk Yi, Irene

Dr Lam Chi Yuen, Johnny
Dr Lam King Hei, Stanley
Dr Lau Chi Hang

Dr Lau Kam Tong

Dr Lee Chun Kit, Tony

Dr Leung Chun Yin, Daniel
Dr Leung Kwan Wa, Maria
Dr Liang Jun

Dr Lo Chun Hung, Raymond
Dr Lui How Mui

Dr Ng Ming Shing

Dr Ng Yeung Shing

Dr Or Ka Yan

Dr Owens David Edward

Dr Ng Yui Wing, Joanne
Dr Tse Wan Ying

Dr Wong Yu Man
Prof Wong Yeung Shan, Samuel
Dr Ying Gard Ching, Derek

Dr Ng Ventura, Lorna

Dr Sit Wing Shan

Dr Tam Ka Wae, Tammy

Dr Tsang Chiu Yee, Luke

Dr Tse Tak Kei

Dr Wang Hua Li, Jenny
Prof Wong Chi Sang, Martin
Prof Wong Chi Wai, William
Dr Wong Ho Cheong

Dr Wong Ka Wah

Dr Wong Kwai Wing

Prof Wong Yeung Shan, Samuel
Dr Yeung Wai Man

Dr Yu Yee Tak, Esther

Dr Sze Hon Ho

Dr Tse Tsui Yee, Emily
Dr Tsim Koon Lan Kathy
Dr Tsui Wing Sze, Wendy
Dr Wan Kwong Yu

Dr Wong Carmen

Dr Wong Chi Lung

Dr Wong Kwok Hoi

Dr Wong Yu Fai

Dr Wu Chun Yu

Dr Wu Tsz Yuen, Tom
Dr Yim Chi Ling

Dr Yip Tze Hung

Dr Young Suk Ching

Dr Yu Pui Hang

Dr Yu Sze Kai, Frances

Dr Wong Yu Man

The Specialty Board conducted 2023 Supplementary Exit Examination from 2 July to 30 September 2023. 9 candidates sat the
supplementary Exit Examination and 4 of them successfully completed and passed the whole Exit Examination.

The 2024 Full Exit Examination was held from 1 December 2023 to 31 March 2024. 29 candidates attempted the Examination and 11
candidates successfully completed and passed the whole Exit Examination.

The successful candidates were:

Dr CHAN Kam Sheung
Dr CHAN Yuen Ching
Dr CHAU Yiu Shing

Dr CHIANG Lap Kin
Dr Michelle S W CHOI

Dr CHUNG Hiu Yeung
Dr Olivia WY HO

Dr LAM Kang

Dr LO Wei

Dr Candy S W LUK

Dr MA Man Ki
DrAmy P P NG

Dr TSAI Hung Yu

Dr. WONG Chiu Lun
Dr. Henry H H WONG

The “Outstanding Candidate Award 2024 “was presenting to Dr Candy S W LUK, who had passed the Exit Examination at one
setting with outstanding performance in the Examination.
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The Board had organized Preparatory Workshop, Pre-Exit Examination Workshop and Post-Examination Evaluation Workshops for
candidates.

Forums for Clinical Audit and Research were also held twice per year providing platforms for candidates to present their clinical audit
reports and research papers.

In addition, Refresher Training Course (RTC) was also organized for examiners to maintain the standards of the assessment. The
seventh Refresher Training Course for examiners was held in November and December 2023.

The following Examiners/Trainee Examiners/Exam Observers fulfilled 75% or above attendance and obtained the RTC Certificate
2023.

Dr CHAN Chin Ping Dr LAU Ka Man Dr NGAI Ka Ho

Dr CHAN Yin Hang Dr LEUNG Shuk Yun Dr PONG Pong

DrYeni Y'Y CHAN Dr LI Minru Dr Kathy K L TSIM

Dr CHAN Yuen Yan Dr Benny L P LUI Dr WONG Kwai Sheung
Dr CHEUNG Hard King Dr LUK Wan Dr WONG Man Ho

Dr CHING Kam Wing Dr NG Kai Man Dr WONG Yu Man

Dr CHOI Yue Kwan Dr NG Yeung Shing

Dr Candy Y T HUI Dr Joanne Y W NG

Examiners with valid Certificate of Refresher Training Course (RTC)

Dr Chan Chin Ping Dr Tony Y T KWOK Dr Joanne Y W NG

Dr Sara S W CHAN Prof Cindy L K LAM Dr NGAI Ka Ho

Dr CHAN Yin Hang Dr LAU Ka Man Dr PONG Pong

Dr Yeni Y'Y CHAN Dr LEUNG Ching Ching Dr TOO Lai Chong

Dr CHAN Yuen Yan Dr LEUNG Ka Fai Dr TSIM Koon Lan

Dr Judy G Y CHENG Dr LEUNG Shuk Yun Dr WONG Kwai Sheung
Dr CHEUNG Hard King Dr LI Minru Dr WONG Man Ho

Dr CHING Kam Wing Dr LIU Yin Mei Dr WONG Sze Kei

Dr CHOI Yue Kwan Dr Benny L P LUI Dr WONG Tseng Kwong
Dr DAO Man Chi Dr Matthew M H LUK Dr WONG Yu Man

Dr FU Sau Nga Dr LUK Wan Dr WU Chun Yu

Dr Heidi H T FUNG Dr NG Kai Man Dr Derek G C YING

Dr Candy Y T HUI Dr Peter T K NG Dr YIU Cheuk Man

Dr IP Sui Wah Dr NG Yeung Shing Dr Frances S KYU

Another task of the Board is to scrutinize applications for nomination to Fellowship of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in Family
Medicine. It also assesses application for Certificate of Specialist Registration with comparable training according to guidelines laid
down by Education Committee, HKAM and makes recommendation to our College Council. The College submitted 14 fellowship
nominations and were all approved by the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine.

Finally, the Board would like to express our most sincere thanks to all examiners for their dedications and hard work in making the Exit
Examination possible and successful.
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BUSINESS MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
(April 2023 to March 2024)

Chairman: Dr Billy C F CHIU

Committee Members: Dr Alvin CY CHAN
Dr CHAN King Hong
Dr Angus MW CHAN
Dr David V K CHAO
Dr Mary B L KWONG
Dr NGAN Po Lun
Dr Wendy W S TSUI

Ex-officio: Dr Cecilia Y M FAN
Dr LAU Ho Lim
Dr Samuel Y S WONG

Staff: Ms Erica M SO (General Manager)
Ms Teresa D F LIU (Executive Officer)
Mr Roy P K Leung (Administrative Executive, from December 2023 onwards)
Ms Priscilla S M LI (Administrative Executive)

This year the CME activities/lectures were held in face-to-face, hybrid or digital online platform also for providing different types of
lectures/seminars to our members continuously. The regular Dermatology seminar, Mental Health Seminar and Medical Humanities
Seminars organized by respective interest groups were most welcomed by our members. The Online Certificate Course on
Management of Common Skin Problems in General Practice, the Certificate Course on Palliative Care for Primary Care Doctors 2023
co-organized with the Hong Kong Society of Palliative Medicine and the Certificate Course on Bringing Better Health to Our Community
co-organized with Queen Elizabeth Hospital were well-attended by members.

The Advanced Primary Care Life Support (APCLS) Training and Examination Workshops and Assessment Enhancement Course
(AEC) were held successfully with physical attendance. Annual Refresher Course (ARC) were also successfully held in hybrid format
by the Board of Education. As usual, we have yearly pre-examination workshop for the candidates and standardization for the
examiners arranged by Board of Conjoint Examination and Specialty Board.

The 13th Hong Kong Primary Care Conference with the theme “Flourishing Primary Care: Family Doctor for Everyone”, was successful
held in hybrid mode on 23rd to 25th June 2023 after 3 years of COVID-19 pandemic with more than 700 local and overseas participants.
These valuable activities, some are generously sponsored by pharmaceutical companies, can effectively enhance and update a broad
range of medical knowledge for our members.

We had a memorable evening of 46th Annual Dinner held on 3rd December 2023 at the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Jockey
Club Building and shared our joyful moment with all our members and invited guests together. We had the lucky draw that night. |
would like to take this opportunity to thank our College Censors & Council members, Cordis Hong Kong for their generous donation
of the lucky draw prizes.

Our Journal remains to be one of the most outstanding and widely circulated local medical literatures. The advertising section in The
Hong Kong Practitioner and The FP Links, The College’s bulk e-mail mailing and circulating services” from members and other
institutions remain very popular.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank the Committee members for their contributions.

On behalf of the College, | would also like to express my gratitude to all the following companies and organizations for their generous
support for the College’s functions in the past one year:

Abbott Laboratories Limited Merck Pharmaceutical Company Limited
Amgen Hong Kong Limited Merck, Sharp & Dohme (Asia) Limited
AstraZeneca Hong Kong Limited Moderna Hong Kong Limited

Bayer Healthcare Limited Novo Nordisk Hong Kong Limited
Boehringer Ingelheim Hong Kong Limited Pfizer Corporation Hong Kong Limited
DKSH Hong Kong Limited Procter & Gamble HK Limited
GlaxoSmithKline Limited Servier Hong Kong Limited

Janssen, a division of Johnson & Johnson (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Sinovac Biotech (Hong Kong) Limited
Lundbeck Hong Kong Limited Viatris Healthcare Hong Kong Limited

Medical Protection Society - Hong Kong
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EDUCATION COMMITTEE (AM AFFAIRS)
(April 2023 — March 2024)

Coordinator: Prof Samuel Y S WONG
(Vice-President, Education and Examinations)

Staff: Ms Erica M SO (General Manager)

College Statistics — Trainer to Trainee Ratio and College Intermediate / Exit Examination
Passing Rates (2022)
EC noted that annual returns of the Trainer to Trainee Ratio and College Intermediate and Exit
Examination Passing Rate in 2022. The trainer-to-trainee ratio across all Colleges and their
respective specialties were well maintained.

Summary of Fellows’ Total Number of CME/CPD points and Compliance Status for Cycle 2020-2022
All eligible HKCFP fellows of HKAM fulfilled the requirement of CME/CPD compliance.

In addition, to cope with increasing number of submitted CME/CPD proofs after the deadline set by the Academy. a “late charge”
of $3,000 would be imposed as a penalty according to the Academy’s prevailing practice. The Academy would process the
CME/CPD proofs only upon the receipt of penalty fee. It was agreed to further review the penalty levied on Fellows for late
submission of CME/CPD proofs and the deadline for handling such late submission of proofs.

Strategic Planning Retreat on Education and Training
In September, HKAM formed a Faculty Development Working Group comprising representatives from 15 Colleges. The Working
Group aims to provide valuable input on matters related to faculty development programs for fellows. While the roadmap and
timeline of the faculty development would be deliberated by EC, all Colleges were encouraged to utilize the Framework to develop
their “Train the Trainers” courses taking reference to the 10 learning outcomes and to promulgate the longitudinal faculty
development. The Working Group suggested adopting the Basic Medical Education Course (BMEC) as the faculty development
programme.

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Innovative Learning Centre for Medicine (HKJC ILCM) has developed the Basic Medical Education
Course (BMEC) to support the strategy of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine (HKAM) in promoting continuing education for
our fellows. The BMEC serves as the primary course for faculty development at HKAM. The first and second BMECs were run
successfully in October & November 2023.

Implications of the use of ChatGPT or any other Al-based tools
The Academy recognizes the rapid development of Large Language Model (LLM) or similar technologies (e.g. ChatGPT) and
acknowledges the potentials and limitations of using such generative Al tools in providing information and ideas to assist trainees
to complete written assignments for examination or assessment purposes, including but not limited to coursework / theses / case
reports / research dissertations etc.

Trainees and Academy Colleges shall observe the following principles and guidelines (ver. July 2023) with respect to the
application of generative Al tools in the preparation and the assessment of written assignments:

1. Trainees are responsible for ensuring that their own submitted works are of sufficient originality. Only works which are of
sufficient originality will be accepted. Contents which are produced solely or substantially by the generative Al tools do not satisfy
this criterion for the purpose of submission for thesis or dissertation that would lead to a fulfilment of requirement for intermediate
or exit qualification.

2. Output from generative Al tools should be critically appraised and verified by the trainee regarding its accuracy and
authenticity, and should only be used, if at all, to guide or assist the preparation of written assignment. When applying such
materials in preparing a written assignment, trainees are required to supplement, where appropriate, knowledge and information
drawn from recognised academic resources, and to provide relevant discussions (e.g., alternative views or arguments etc.).

3. Trainees must disclose and acknowledge the use of any output from generative Al tools and the way that such output has
been used when preparing a written assignment.

4.  Colleges shall introduce, as soon as practicable, additional modalities of assessment (e.g. viva voce / oral presentation) so
as to assess the trainee’s own understanding of and contributions to the content of a written assignment, and also to offer trainees
the opportunity to explain and justify the application of generative Al tools, if any and in any ways, when preparing the written
assignment.

5. Colleges are strongly advised to replace assessment methods which are vulnerable to the misuse of generative Al tools
with those which are educationally more robust as a matter of accountability.
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6. Academic honesty and integrity should be upheld without compromise. Improper use of generative Al tools may lead to
disciplinary actions or other consequences as determined by the Academy and relevant Colleges.

7. Trainees are required to follow respective College’s relevant policy / guidelines in using generative Al tools as appropriate,
and to consult the relevant training supervisors whenever in doubt.

8.  Colleges are required to disseminate this policy to trainees when appropriate and to investigate questionable use of such
technologies with due diligence.

Updates on Self-directed Education/ Critical Appraisal Exercise form in Higher Training Logbook
EC endorsed the self-directed education and critical appraisal exercise form in HKCFP Higher Training Logbook.

Principles / Guidelines for accreditation of CME/CPD activities involving commercial elements
The "Procedures and criteria for accreditation of CME activities" have been made available on the Academy’s website and the
iCMECPD system, where the organisers are required to acknowledge their adherence to the guidelines when submitting the
CMECPD accreditation application to the Academy. When Colleges evaluate the accreditation of CME activities, they must
consider any potential or actual commercial influence and bias. As a general principle, all scientific contents of a CME activity
should not be influenced by any commercial considerations. In this connection, CME organizers must declare that consideration
has been given to the possible commercial influence according to the following principles:

1. The educational contents provided are expected to be free of any commercial influence or bias or any form of advertising;
2. Educational sponsorship is expected to be provided through an unrestricted educational sponsorship;

3. Educational materials provided entirely by a pharmaceutical or medical equipment industry will not be considered for
accreditation unless they are presented by specialists or experts related to the field.

EXTERNAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
(July 2023 — June 2024)

Chairman: Dr David VK CHAO (President)
Ex-officio: Dr LAU Ho Lim (Vice-President, General Affairs)
Prof Samuel Y SWONG (Vice-President, Education and Examinations)
Dr CeciliaY M FAN (Honorary Secretary)
Dr Billy C F CHIU (Honorary Treasurer)
Official Spokesmen: Dr David V K CHAO (President)
Dr LAU Ho Lim (Vice-President, General Affairs)

Prof Samuel Y S WONG (Vice-President, Education and Examinations)
Dr Angus MW CHAN (Immediate Past President)

Staff: Ms Erica M SO (General Manager)

Collaboration with the Primary Healthcare Commission (PHCC)

The College has set up a Working Group in response to one of the initiatives of the Primary Healthcare Office (PHO) in accordance
with the Primary Healthcare Blueprint — to develop, update and promulgate the reference frameworks for primary care setting. The
reference frameworks provide common reference to primary healthcare professionals to facilitate the provision of continuing,
comprehensive and evidence-based care in the community. Our working group aims to develop new reference frameworks and update
existing ones in collaboration with the Primary Healthcare Office. The College would invite members to express interest in joining the
group to assist in drafting and/or reviewing the content of the Reference Frameworks.

WONCA World Conference 2023

In 2023, GP23 and WONCA 2023 were combined as one conference and hosted by RACGP in Sydney, Australia from 25 — 29 October
2023 with the theme entitled ‘Recovery, reconnection and revival. A celebration of primary care’. This year, there were about 40
members of HKCFP attended the conference.
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Bid for hosting the WONCA World Conference in 2027

As decided last year, College had submitted a bid to host the WONCA World Conference 2027 in Hong Kong. A bid presentation was
conducted during the WONCA World Council meeting on 22 October 2023, followed by a cocktail reception hosted by HKCFP on the
same day. Thanks to Prof. Samuel Wong and Dr. Esther Yu to be the presenters for the bid presentation and the MCs for the cocktail
reception.

Our bidding Comittiee received support and endorsement from various stakeholders, including Government of the HKSAR, the Hong
Kong Tourism Board, the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine, and Universities etc. Although we did not win the bid, we have gained
valuable experience and friendship. On the other hand, Dr. Cheryl Chan, who represented the College, was successfully elected as
the WONCA Young Doctor Representative for 2023-2025. We believe Cheryl could help accelerate collaboration and strengthen
synergy for young doctors in the Asia Pacific Region and around the world.

.
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HKCFP Press release

In response to the social media in relation to mental health issues, the College published a press release on 18 June 2023. This press
release recognised the important role of family doctors in providing easily accessible, timely and whole-person care to their patients
with emotional disturbances or mental health problems in the community.

World Family Doctor Day 2024
In support of the World Family Doctor Day 2024, the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians (HKCFP) and the Health Bureau of
Hong Kong SAR jointly held the World Family Doctor Day Symposium on 18 May to share and discuss with healthcare professionals
the ways of enlisting concerted effort to promote primary healthcare services led by family doctors to support citizens in improving
their well-being.
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The Symposium brought together over a hundred representatives from different medical specialties. Speakers at the Symposium
included the Secretary of Health, Professor Lo Chung-mau; the Under Secretary of Health, Dr Libby Lee; the Dean of the Li Ka Shing
Faculty of Medicine of the University of Hong Kong, Professor Lau Chak-sing; Assistant Commissioner for Primary Healthcare, Primary
Healthcare Office of the Health Bureau, Dr Tony Ha; the Director of the Jockey Club School of Public Health and Primary Care of the
Chinese University of Hong Kong, Professor Samuel Wong; the Commissioner of Primary Healthcare, Dr Pang Fei-chau; and the
President of the HKCFP, Dr David Chao.

j&

Question and Answer

Over a hundred representatives from public and private healthcare sectors celebrated the WFDD 2024 together.
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On 19 May 2024, HKCFP issued a Press Release on World Family Doctor Day 2024: Healthy Planet, Healthy People, A Call to Action

for Healthier Communities in Hong Kong.
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The details of the Press Release are available at
https://www.hkcfp.org.hk/upload/Documents/PressRelease/PR 20240519 WFDD(e).pdf?fbclid=IlwZXh0bgNhZWOCMTAAAR2gm 1|
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Same as previous years, an article composed by HKCFP representative Dr Ken Ho was published in a local newspaper Hong Kong
Economic Journal to highlight this year's WFDD theme. The article is available at HKCFP Facebook Fan page at
https://www.facebook.com/photo?fbid=966787638791008&set=a.495202922616151
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HKCFP representatives Dr David Chao and Dr Maria Leung attended the live Radio Programme ‘Healthpedia’ of Radio Television
Hong Kong on 17 May 2024, Friday, to promote the WFDD and the Role of Family Doctor. The programme can be reviewed at
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Q1-6fPysmOc&list=PLuwJy35eAValSOw-1dp8omEFsC7P_gK8o&index=12
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FINANCE COMMITTEE
(April 2023 — March 2024)

Chairman: Dr Billy C F CHIU
Committee Members: Dr David V K CHAO (President)
Prof Samuel Y S WONG (Vice-President, Education & Examinations)
Dr LAU Ho Lim (Vice-President, General Affairs)
Dr CeciliaY M FAN (Honorary Secretary)
Staff: Ms Erica M SO (General Manager)
Mr Roy P K Leung (Administrative Executive, from December 2023 onwards)
Ms Priscilla S M LI (Administrative Executive)

With careful monitoring by the Finance Committee, the financial situation of the College in 2023-2024 continued to remain sound and
healthy. Our accumulated financial reserve kept on growing steadily. There is now a deposit of equivalent of over HK$17.19 million in
our accounts. There are no major changes in our portfolio as compared to the previous financial year. We have about 14.9% of our
portfolio is in equity shares, purchased when they were first issued, and the great majority of our funds are in the form of cash savings
in various banks.

| would like to express my sincere thanks to Dr David Chao, our President, Prof Samuel Wong, our Vice-President (Education &
Examinations), Dr Lau Ho Lim, our Vice-President (General Affairs), Dr Cecilia Fan, our Honorary Secretary, Ms Erica So, our General
Manager and Ms Priscilla Li, our Administrative Executive, for their continuous support and services. | would like to welcome our new
Account Executive Mr. Roy Leung to join our College. Last but not least, | would also like to appreciate Mr. C F Cheung, our Honorary
Auditor, for his professional advice and services.

FP LINKS COMMITTEE

(April 2023 — March 2024)

Chairlady: Dr Wendy W S TSUI
Chief Editor: Dr Catherine SW NG

Deputy Editors: Dr Judy G Y CHENG
Dr Anita W M FAN
Dr Natalie Y K YUEN

Members: Dr David C S CHENG Section Editor (Feature)
Dr John H TAM Deputy Section Editor (Feature)
Dr SZE Hon Ho Section Editor (News Corner)
Dr Natalie P Y SIU Deputy Section Editor (News Corner)
Dr SIN Ming Chuen Section Editor (After Hours)
Dr YIP Tze Hung Deputy Section Editor (After Hours)
Dr LEUNG Lok Hang Section Editor (WONCA Express)
Dr Maria KW LEUNG Section Editor (Photo Gallery)
Dr Christina CHEUK Deputy Section Editor (Photo Gallery)
Dr King K H CHAN Section Editor (Board of Education News)
Dr John XQ WU Section Editor (The Diary of a Family Doctor) (from March 2024 onwards)

Dr Alvin CY CHAN

Dr Chan Man Li

Dr Cheryl Y C Chan (from March 2024 onwards)
Dr HOU Jing

Dr Heidi H T FUNG

Dr Alfred S K KWONG

Dr Dorothy T C LAW

Dr Patrick HY TSAI (from April 2024 onwards)
Dr Eva HF TSUI

Prof Martin C S WONG

Dr YEUNG Wai Man
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Dr David V K CHAO

Dr LAU Ho Lim

Prof Samuel Y S WONG
Dr CeciliaY M FAN

Dr Billy C F CHIU

Ex-officio:

Staff: Ms Alky H K YU
Ms Kathy K'Y LAI

Ms Minny W M FUNG

(Executive Officer)
(Administrative Executive)
(Administrative Assistant)

CHAIRLADY’S MESSAGE

Since the publication of the inaugural edition in March 2004, FP Links serves as the College Newsletter of HKCFP with the following
missions:

To disseminate the College News to College members.

To report news of various Boards and Committees.

To provide a channel for dissemination of information or articles related to Family Medicine, either clinical or non-clinical.
To act as a bridge for communication between members and the College

HrODd =

The founding Editorial Board started off with three members under Dr John Chung’s leadership. Throughout these years, there is
significant expansion of our membership list. Our committee now comprises 27 members coming from different sectors: public and
private; universities, cross clusters and even cross countries. With the vision to promote Family Medicine and advocate for primary
care, we work closely to promote the development of Family Medicine and enhance the communication between the College,
members and other professionals. Our contents are strongly diversified, from photo gallery and highlights of college events,
WONCA news, Family Medicine related activities and development, clinical practice sharing, to latest medical updates and health
related news, and sharing of colleagues, young and experienced, about their life and reflections as a family doctor, both locally
and cross the sea. There is also support from other Boards, e.g. the Board of Education who contribute the learning points
discussed in group meetings. Our aim is to produce a newsletter which is both informative and interesting. From January 2024,
the Committee took “Go Green” to next level and drove the initiative forward, subscriptions would be changed to electronic versions
automatically for all College members unless notified otherwise. The Committee would like to thank the College members who
have supported the “Go Green” initiative in reducing paper consumption and helping conserve natural resources!

The Committee also implemented the following measures to enhance the Readership experience after “Go Green”:

1) Incentive for Readership: Gift vouchers would be given to members who returned readers’ surveys or
feedbacks after reading the issue, starting from June 2024.
2) Incentive for article submission: If articles are selected for publication, options of College souvenirs or Gift

vouchers would be given to the author as token of appreciation, starting from April 2024.

HONG KONG PRIMARY CARE CONFERENCE ORGANIZING COMMITTEE

(July 2023 to June 2024)
Chairlady: Dr Lorna V NG
Advisors: Dr David V K CHAO

Dr LAU Ho Lim

Dr Linda CHAN
Dr Judy GY CHENG

Committee Members: (Scientific Subcommittee Member)

(Publication Coordinator and Business
Management Subcommittee Member)
(Nurse Planner)

Ms Kathy Y H CHEUNG
Dr CHIANG Lap Kin

Ms Samantha Y C CHONG
Ms Brigitte K'Y FUNG

Dr Sharon S W HO

(Scientific Coordinator)
(Nurse Planner)
(Allied Health Planner)

(Business Manager and Publication Subcommittee Member)

Dr Eric KP LEE
Dr WillL H LEUNG

(Scientific Coordinator)

(Scientific Subcommittee Member)
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Dr Matthew M H LUK (IT Coordinator)

Dr CeciliaTY SIT (Nurse Planner and Poster Presentation Competition
Coordinator)

Dr Catherine P K SZE (Venue Coordinator)

Dr Kathy KL TSIM (Publication Subcommittee Member and Clinical Case
Presentation Competition Subcommittee Member)

Dr YAU Lai Mo (Clinical Case Presentation Competition Coordinator and

Business Management Subcommittee Member)

Ex-officio: Dr CeciliaY M FAN
Dr Billy C F CHIU

Staff: Ms Erica M SO (General Manager)
Ms Teresa D F LIU (Executive Officer)
Ms Ally LY CHAN (Administrative Executive, from February 2024 onwards)
Ms Nana HT CHOY (Administrative Executive)
Ms Carol F K PANG (Administrative Executive)
Ms Crystal WY YUNG (Administrative Manager, to December 2023)

CHAIRLADY’S MESSAGE

The 13" Hong Kong Primary Care Conference was successfully held in hybrid mode for the 1% time from 23 to 25 June 2023. After 3
years of the COVID-19 pandemic, it was indeed inspiring to see many of our VIP guests and delegates face to face besides meeting
our online participants. This annual signature conference has consistently attracted the primary care community with an immense
response of over 700 registered delegates.

With the release of the Primary Care Blueprint in December 2022, this year’s theme “Flourishing Primary Care: Family Doctor for
Everyone” highlights the strong commitment of our government for a robust primary healthcare in Hong Kong. The Primary Healthcare
Blueprint is a prevention-focused, community-based system that promotes the “concept of Family Doctor for ALL” and enhances
primary healthcare delivery. Over the years, our College has always been a strong proponent of the “Everyone should have a Family
Doctor” concept as local and international studies have shown that healthcare systems with strong primary healthcare teams led by
Family Doctors have proven to be more cost effective and sustainable.

This conference was graced with the presence of distinguished international and local plenary speakers including Dr Pang Fei Chau
[Commissioner for Primary Healthcare, Primary Healthcare Office]; Professor Donald Li [WONCA Immediate Past President];
Professor Cindy Lam [Danny D.B. Ho Professor in Family Medicine, Department of Family Medicine and Primary Care, Li Ka Shing
Faculty of Medicine, HKU]; Professor Samuel Wong [Director of JC School of Public Health and Primary Care and Associate
Dean(Education), Faculty of Medicine, CUHK]; Professor Jose Maria Valderas [Head of Department of Medicine, National University
Health System in Singapore] and our College President Dr David Chao. Their topics focused mainly on Primary Care Development
and the role of Family Doctors. Our scientific program with its wide array of interesting yet relevant topics has always captivated our
participants. Once again, this annual event continues to provide a rich milieu for collaboration and networking among the primary care
community.

I would like to express my sincere appreciation to all speakers and facilitators for their valuable support, sponsors for their generosity,

all members of our conference organizing committee and secretariat for their dedicated efforts. Last but not least, my utmost gratitude
to all delegates for their avid participation in making this hallmark conference an annual success.
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HOUSE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
(April 2023 — March 2024)

Chairman: Dr LAU Ho Lim
Ex-officio: Dr David V K CHAO (President)

Prof Samuel Y S WONG (Vice President, Education and Examinations)
Dr Cecilia Y M FAN (Honorary Secretary)

Dr Billy C F CHIU (Honorary Treasurer)
College Secretariat
General Manager: Ms Erica M SO
Administrative Manager: Ms Crystal WY YUNG (to 31 December 2023)
Executives Officer: Ms Teresa D F LIU
Ms Alky HK YU
Administrative Executives: Ms Ally L Y CHAN (from 5 February 2024)
Ms Nana H T CHOY
Ms Iris W M IP

Ms Kathy K'Y LAI
Ms Windy W L LAU

Mr Roy P KLEUNG (from 1 December 2023)
Ms Priscilla S M LI
Ms Hannah H M LOK (from 9 October 2023)

Mr John P C MA
Ms Carol F K PANG
Ms Maggie W S CHEUNG (to 19 May 2023)

Administrative Assistant: Ms Katie P L LAM
Ms Minny W M FUNG

ENHANCING OFFICE CULTURE AND COMMUNICATION

At the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians (HKCFP), we believe that a positive office culture and effective communication are
essential for fostering a productive and harmonious work environment. We highly value the opinions of our staff and consider their
insights crucial for continuous improvement.

To gather feedback from staff members, the committee holds quarterly staff meetings. These meetings are particularly important for
briefing and debriefing on our annual projects, such as the Hong Kong Primary Care Conference (HKPCC) and the Conjoint
Examination, as well as for handling annual circulars, including announcements regarding membership fee collection. These sessions
provide a platform for employees to voice their concerns and suggestions without hesitation.

Recognizing the importance of work-life balance, we have introduced flexible work arrangements, including remote work options and
flexible hours. This approach not only enhances employee satisfaction but also increases productivity by allowing staff to work in a
manner that best suits their individual needs.

GO GREEN AS ONE OF OUR HOUSE RULES

Since 2016, the College has been actively promoting an eco-friendly policy within our work environment. This initiative aims to reduce
our carbon footprint and foster a culture of sustainability among staff and members.

Our commitment to environmental responsibility extends to all meetings and conferences hosted by the College. We have implemented
various green practices, such as minimizing paper usage, encouraging digital communication, and promoting recycling efforts during
events.

In a significant step towards modernizing our financial transactions, the House Committee introduced an e-banking service last year

for collecting payments. This initiative was further enhanced by the successful implementation of the Faster Payment System (FPS).
FPS allows for the receipt of cross-bank and e-wallet payments in a faster, easier, and more secure manner.
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The adoption of FPS has streamlined the College’s daily operations, making financial transactions more efficient and reducing the
need for physical paperwork. This system has been well-received by our members, who appreciate the convenience and security it
offers.

As we continue to embrace eco-friendly practices, we remain committed to exploring new ways to enhance sustainability in all aspects
of our operations. Together, we can make a positive impact on the environment and set a strong example for others to follow.

STAFF CHANGES AND SALARY REVIEW

Ms. Crystal Yung, who dedicated over 18 years of service to the College, left in December 2023. As family doctors, we recognise the
importance of family and wish Crystal a bright future as she embarks on this new chapter of her life. On the other hand, we welcomed
Ms Hannah Lok, Mr Roy Leung, and Ms Ally Chan who joined the Secretariat this year.

The House Management Committee reviewed the staff's work performance annually in order to propose salary adjustment and
possible promotion. The Committee would like to thank the Chairmen and Chairladies of all Boards and Committees for their feedback
on the recent appraisals through Google Form. Alongside the performance review, the salary packages of our staff were reviewed.
The House Committee and the Executives, in consideration of the current job market situation, agreed that a more competitive salary
package for our staff will be conducive to the morale of our staff and the attractiveness of our job posts. This proposal was approved
by the Council.

Last but not least, | would like to thank Ms Erica So, General Manager, for her excellent leadership and contribution, and all staff
members for their committed support throughout the years.

—-“

Front row from left to right:
Mr Roy Leung, Ms Windy Lau, Ms Alky Yu, Ms Teresa Liu, Ms Kathy Lai, Ms Erica So, Mr John Ma

Back row from left to right:
Ms Minny Fung, Ms Hannah Lok, Ms Priscilla Li, Ms Katie Lam, Ms Ally Chan, Ms Carol Pang, Ms Nana Choy, Ms Iris Ip

INTERNAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
(July 2023 — June 2024%)

Chairman: Dr Welchie W K KO
Ex-officio: Dr David V K CHAO
Dr LAU Ho Lim

Prof Samuel WONG
Dr Cecilia Y M FAN
Dr Billy C F CHIU

Staff: Ms Erica M SO (General Manager)
Ms Teresa D F LIU (Executive Officer)
Ms Alky H K YU (Executive Officer)

(

Ms Windy W L LAU
*Including Conferment 2024

Administrative Executive)

77



46" Annual Dinner

With the local epidemic situation continuing to subside and most of the activities resuming to full normalcy, the 46 Annual Dinner was
held on 3 December 2023 (Sunday) at Run Run Shaw Hall, 1/F, Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Jockey Club Building, Wong Chuk
Hang, Hong Kong.

The Annual Dinner was well attended by 187 participants including our Council members, College Board/Committee members, their
spouses and guests from different collaborative organisations. It was the first post-COVID annual dinner, and we were so delighted to
seeing all our friends in person again. It provided a joyful opportunity for us to meet and catch up with colleagues and friends.

The Internal Affairs Committee wishes to thank Dr David V K CHAO, our President, and our Council members, as well as collaborative
organisations and hotel for supporting and sponsoring the prizes in the Lucky Draw. Sincere thanks to Dr CHAN Chin Ping, Dr Cheryl
Y C CHAN, Dr Aldo C L WONG and Dr Esther Y T YU, the Masters of Ceremony of the Annual Dinner, and our secretariat team
members who dedicated their great efforts in making the Annual Dinner a successful occasion. We would also like to express our
gratitude towards Dr Eric K P LEE, Dr Aldo C L WONG and Dr Esther Y T YU for their singing performance; and our in-house live band
FM2 2574452 formed by members of Young Doctors Committee, including Dr Chloe L CHAN, Dr Lau Ka Kin, Dr Wanmie W M LEUNG
and Dr Aldo C L WONG.

37" Conferment Ceremony and the 34" Dr Sun Yat Sen Oration
The 37" Fellowship Conferment Ceremony and the 34™ Dr Sun Yat Sen Oration was held on 7 July 2024 (Sunday) as scheduled at
the Run Run Shaw Hall, Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Jockey Club Building, 99 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong.

This year, the Ceremony was well attended by 302 guests, including the successful candidates of Exit Assessment, Conjoint
Fellowship Examination, Diploma in Family Medicine and their families and friends, as well as invited guests and dignitaries from the
Food and Health Bureau, the Legislative Council, the Department of Health, the Hospital Authority, the universities and representatives
of local academic colleges.

We also took this opportunity to present the Dr Sun Yat Sen Oration gold medallion to Dr Mark Miller, the 315 Dr Sun Yat Sen Orator,
who had delivered the oration for us remotely in 2021 when international travelling was difficult because of travel restrictions during

the COVID pandemic.

Dr Christopher HUGHES, Censor of Tasmania Faculty of The Royal College of General Practitioners, delivered the 34" Dr Sun Yat
Sen Oration titled “Universal Health Insurance: Born with the best of intentions but now facing a mid-life crisis”.

The successful candidates were listed as follows:

Fellows of the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians

1. Dr CHAN King Hang 11.  Dr LEE Jerrold 21.  Dr TSANG Lai Ting

2. Dr CHAU Kei Wai 12.  Dr LI Kwok Ho 22.  DrTSO Sau Lin

3. Dr CHOW Wing Man 13.  Dr LI Shiyue 23. Dr WONG Calvin Alexander

4.  DrHOKaKi 14.  DrLIU Ka Yee 24.  Dr WONG Chun Hun Jonathan
5. DrHO Suet Ying 15.  Dr LO Chak Yui 25.  DrWOO Long Yiu

6. DrHO Sze Ho 16. DrLUI TszYin 26. Dr WU Chi Ho Bosco

7.  Dr HOU Baijing 17.  Dr NG Chi Wing Carrie 27. DrWU Flora

8.  Dr LAl Ge Woon Gevon 18.  Dr NOH Young Ah 28.  Dr YAP Jon-Alvan Tsun Hee

9. Dr LAM Chi Hang 19. Dr SHENG Wei Yang 29.  Dr YU Kwun Nam

10. Dr LAM Wing Ching Nicole 20. Dr TAIl Lok Yin Nadia 30. Dr YU Louise Anne Sum Wun

Fellows of the Royal Australian College of General Practitioners
1. DrHOKaKi

2. Dr LAM Chi Hang

3. Dr NOH Young Ah

4.  Dr YAP Jon-Alvan Tsun Hee

International Conjoint Fellows of the Royal Australian College of General Practitioners

1. Dr CHAN King Hang 10.  Dr LI Kwok Ho 19. Dr TSANG Lai Ting

2. Dr CHAU Kei Wai 11.  Dr LI Shiyue 20. DrTSO Sau Lin

3. Dr CHOW Wing Man 12.  DrLIU Ka Yee 21.  Dr WONG Calvin Alexander

4.  Dr HO Suet Ying 13. DrLO Chak Yui 22. Dr WONG Chun Hun Jonathan
5.  DrHO Sze Ho 14. Dr LUl TszYin 23. DrWOO Long Yiu

6. Dr HOU Baijing 15.  Dr NG Chi Wing Carrie 24.  Dr WU Chi Ho Bosco

7. Dr LAI Ge Woon Gevon 16. Dr SHENG Wei Yang 25. DrWU Flora
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8.  Dr LAM Wing Ching Nicole 17.  Dr TAIl Lok Yin Nadia 26.  Dr YU Kwun Nam
9.  DrLEE Jerrold 18.  Dr TANG Miu Sze 27.  Dr YU Louise Anne Sum Wun

Award of the Certificate of the Exit Examination

1. Dr CHAN Kam Sheung 6. Dr CHUNG Hiu Yeung 11.  Dr MA Man Ki

2. Dr CHAN Yuen Ching 7. Dr HO Wing Yan Olivia 12.  Dr NG Amy Pui Pui

3. Dr CHAU Yiu Shing 8. Dr LAM Kang 13.  Dr TSAI Hung Yu

4. Dr CHIANG Lap Kin 9. Dr LO Wei 14.  Dr WONG Chiu Lun

5.  Dr CHOI Sze Wai Michelle 10. Dr LUK Sze Wan Candy 15. Dr WONG Hin Hei Henry

Award of Diploma in Family Medicine

1. Dr CHAN Kin Wing Yvonne 12.  Dr LAM Yick Chuen 23.  Dr TSE Hoi Yan Crystal
2. Dr CHAN Pui Kam 13. DrLEE Yung Ho 24.  Dr WEN Yongna Wendy
3. Dr CHANG Wai Yin James 14. Dr LEUNG Kai Ching Peter 25. Dr WONG Sze Man

4.  Dr CHOW Ching To 15.  DrLIU Ho Yat 26. Dr WONG Wai Chuen
5. Dr CHUN Ming Wai Alice 16.  Dr LU Ying Jia 27.  Dr WONG Wai |

6.  Dr DAIYi Pui 17.  Dr LUK Jing Si 28.  Dr WONG Yu Tak

7. Dr FUNG Lok Lam Tiffany 18.  Dr NG Ching Man 29. Dr XIONG Shing Chuen
8. DrHO Pek San 19. Dr POON Lai Wa 30. Dr YAN Ka Shing

9.  Dr HUI Siu Kwan 20. Dr POON Yin Ki* 31.  Dr YEUNG Pui Shan
10. Dr IEONG Kam Tou 21.  Dr TAM Farrah Irene 32.  Dr YEUNG Tsz Wai William
11. Dr LAM Ka Wai 22.  Dr TONG Ann Marie Jing Man 33.  DrYIP Ting Fung

The Internal Affairs Committee would like to thank Dr David V K CHAQO, Dr LAU Ho Lim, Prof. Samuel Y S WONG, Dr Cecilia Y M FAN
and Dr Billy C F CHIU for their continuing support and advice during the preparation. We are also most grateful towards the tremendous
team of helpers, including Dr Li Yim Chu, the Public Orator; Dr Edmond C W CHAN, the Ceremony Coordinator; Dr Thomas M C DAO,
Dr Christina CHEUK, Dr Matthew T C LAM and Dr Raymond W M YEUNG, the Marshalling Officers; and Dr Stephen C W CHOU and
Dr Jenny H L WANG, the Ushers. Last but not least, we would like to express our gratitude towards our College secretarial staff for
their dedication and enthusiasm towards the College events.

MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE
(July 2023 — June 2024)

Chairlady: Dr Maria KW Leung
Deputy Chairlady: Dr CHAN Wing Yan
Committee Member: Dr CHAN Man Li
Ex-officio: Dr David V K CHAO

Dr Billy C F CHIU

Dr CeciliaY M FAN

Dr LAU Ho Lim

Prof Samuel Y S WONG

Staff: Mr Roy P K LEUNG (Administrative Executive, from December 2023 onwards)
Ms Priscilla S M LI (Administrative Executive)
Ms Carol F K PANG (Administrative Executive)

The current membership of HKCFP is as follows: - (as at end of June 2024)

Fellows* 896 (HKAM Fellows: (574))

Full Members 193

Associate Members 646

Others** 124

Total: 1,859

* Fellows include Fellows, Foundation Fellows, Honorary Fellows and Non-HKSAR Fellows.
** Others include Affiliate Members, Non-HKSAR Members and Student Members.

79



More of our members become fellows and the body of Membership remains steady in the past year. With our College’s team of
dedicated members who are practicing quality medicine, the term “Family Medicine” is increasingly recognized by the general public
as synonymous to quality primary care. We expect to see a constant growth in membership with increase in proportion of fellowship.
The Hong Kong College of Family Physicians
Members Status Report

900
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300 |
200 |
" T
0
Fellows Full Members Associate Others
Members
[02019-2020 796 205 624 117
[02020-2021 819 203 645 102
[02021-2022 839 197 658 138
[02022-2023 876 192 647 141
W 2023-2024 896 193 646 124
PUBLIC EDUCATION COMMITTEE
(July 2023 — June 2024)
Chairman: Dr NGAN Po Lun
Vice-Chairman: Dr HO Ka Ming Dr  Anthony P FOK
Committee Members: Dr SimonCLAU Dr  LAU Chi Hang
Dr  CHAN Wing Yan Dr  LAU Wai Yee, Asther
Dr  CHUNG Sze Pok Prof Donald KT LI
Dr  Stephen K S FOO Dr  LIYim Chu
Dr  HONG Tin Chak Dr  VincentW S LI
Dr  HOU Jing Dr LUK ChunWa
Dr  Mary BL KWONG Dr  Leon M NGAI
Dr  Edmund WW LAM Dr  John H TAM
Ex-officio: Dr  David VK CHAO
Dr  LAU Ho Lim
Prof Samuel Y S WONG
Dr  CeciliaY M FAN
Dr  Billy CF CHIU
Media Column Subgroup: Dr Simon CLAU Dr  LAU Chi Hang
Dr  Alvin CY CHAN Dr  LAU Ho Lim
Dr  CHAN Hung Chiu Dr Aster WY LAU
Dr  Angus MW CHAN Prof Donald KT LI
Dr  Loretta WY CHAN Dr  VincentW S LI
Dr  David V K CHAO Dr  LIYim Chu
Dr  Billy CF CHIU Dr LUK Chun Wa
Dr CHUNG Sze Pok Dr  Lorna NG VENTURA
Dr  CeciliaY M FAN Dr  Leon M NGAI
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Staff:

Dr  Anthony P FOK Dr  NGAN Po Lun

Dr  Stephen K S FOO Dr John H TAM

Dr HO Ka Ming Dr  Wiliam C W WONG
Dr  HONG Tin Chak Dr  Marcus M S WONG
Dr  HOU Jing Prof Samuel Y S WONG
Dr Stanley KH LAM Dr  Wendy W S TSUI
Prof Cindy L KLAM Dr  YIU Yuk Kwan

Dr Edmund WW LAM Dr EstherYTYU

Ms  Windy W L LAU
Ms Katie P L LAM

(Administrative Executive)
(Administrative Assistant)

This year, the Public Education Committee continued to carry out public education activities through different channels. The Media

Column Subgroup continued to publish articles regularly in the Hong Kong Economic Journal ({Z#;). The published articles are
amounted to 843 for the Hong Kong Economic Journal.

Various public education activities and events in 2023 to 2024 was listed at the end of the report. | would like to thank all the colleagues
who had offered their valuable assistance in the past year, and our excellent administrative support from the secretaries.

Public Education Activities:

Dates

Events

Chairpersons

22 July 2023

Media interview on HOY TV programme {#E#R#;3:4H to talk about the
potential harm from microplastics and plasticizers

Dr NGAN Po Lun

2 November 2023

Public Health Talk Collobrated with Yau Tsim Mong District Health Center
and Retina Hong Kong Limited: #37 FHRE: #EFRIR R0

Dr HO Ka Ming

5 December 2023

The Hong Kong Academy of Orthokeratology Public Education Talk: Herpes
and the Body

Dr FOK Peter Anthony

14 December 2023

Public Health Talk Collobrated with Yau Tsim Mong District Health Center
and Retina Hong Kong Limited: Introduce the role of Family Medicine
Specialist to the community

Dr Vincent W S LI

25 December 2023

Media interview on HOY TV programme {#EEF;3:4H to talk about "] 5%
FEBEESGRE

Dr NGAN Po Lun

1 February 2024

Online interview on Hong Kong Economic Times and AM730 talk about the
recent influenza and COVID-19 situation in Hong Kong

Dr NGAN Po Lun

23 April 2024

Media interview on HOY TV programme {&#f# [ +:4H to talk about Muscle
Cramps

Dr NGAN Po Lun

Following is the list of weekly publications in Hong Kong Economic Journal ({Z%):

Topic

IRAIIIE A BT AE 2

YRR LR Lo (1)
P BRI BRI R O ()
HEETE - B A EATE

Author

Dr Leon M NGAI
Dr NGAN Po Lun
Dr NGAN Po Lun
Dr Alvin CY CHAN

b PR EEY: o TR SR Dr LAU Chi Hang
MBI 6 ,\--Hﬁéiﬁi Dr HO Ka Ming
HAREIZ S KHERUE R R s 4 sR IR Dr HO Ka Ming

TR 2R N - S R
TRYERBELA(ER] . HIEIEE?

TR T KRR R UR T EEY)

e AT © BUSELEE

KETCREH

AT HEE - EEEEZNE - WEEEe

e AT -

R TR S

EAANSMEEE (1)

Dr LAU Chi Hang
Dr NGAN Po Lun
Dr SAU Chung Ying
Dr NGAN Po Lun
Dr NGAN Po Lun
Dr NGAN Po Lun
Dr LAU Chi Hang
Dr NGAN Po Lun

PR VIR &
‘fﬁﬁ}\ﬁ’]’@é%ﬁﬁ?‘(T)

Tk 3 7 R A A

13 - 15 - 20 - 23— i RER i B A1
Sragddn SLAIAE

TUFRLEE LREAF ?

ERES - IR TEER

WA TR

HIBESEHTRR VAR

ORERERE - CREHEEE

Dr John H TAM

Dr NGAN Po Lun
Dr John H TAM

Dr SAU Chung Ying
Dr John H TAM

Dr NGAN Po Lun
Dr John H TAM

Dr HOU Jing

Dr NGAN Po Lun
Dr John H TAM

Date

13 July 2023

20 July 2023

27 July 2023

10 August 2023

17 August 2023

24 August 2023

31 August 2023

14 September 2023
21 September 2023
28 September 2023
12 October 2023

19 October 2023
26 October 2023
09 November 2023
16 November 2023
23 November 2023
30 November 2023
14 December 2023
21 December 2023
28 December 2023
11 January 2024

18 January 2024
25 January 2024
08 February 2024
15 February 2024
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BHFA( L) : BIREERES
SRR () - A0fafg R —x
EUREIRE R

Bulat - PUERbUEEE

LU TERERIN | FESREASIES

Dr XU Shaowei
Dr XU Shaowei
Dr John H TAM
Dr CHAN Sio Pan
Dr John H TAM

22 February 2024
29 February 2024
14 March 2024
21 March 2024
28 March 2024

SREFEAATRE B Dr John H TAM 11 April 2024
e B sl A HSV 553 Dr NGAN Po Lun 18 April 2024

=Nz Dr John H TAM 09 May 2024

PIESEHER (RS HARREEREH 2024 Dr HO Ka Ming 16 May 2024
s TR I o] DRI R EE S 4R Dr Alvin C Y CHAN 23 May 2024
R A [ R R AR Dr John H TAM 30 May 2024
R R Dr John H TAM 13 June 2024
Rz Ty, Dr HOU Jing 20 June 2024

T BRI ED A AT R (R AR Dr SAU Chung Ying 27 June 2024

QUALITY ASSURANCE AND ACCREDITATION COMMITTEE
(April 2023 — March 2024)

Chairlady:

Vice-Chairman 1:
Vice-Chairman 2:

Dr LI Yim Chu

Dr KO Siu Hin
Dr HUI Lai Chi

Advisor: Dr CHAN King Hong
Committee Members: Dr Antonio AT CHUH Dr CHAN Kin Ling
Dr Clarence C M CHOI Dr Edmond W W LAM !
Dr Ellen M S HO Dr Joyce T K CHING ‘l'i
Dr KWAN Chun Man Dr LEUNG To Fung
Dr LO Wai Hon Dr Mary B L KWONG
Dr SIN Ka Ling Dr SIU Ping Cheong

Dr Susanna L L HUNG
Dr YIP Tze Hung

Dr Winson WY HUNG

Dr David V K CHAO
Prof Samuel Y S WONG
Dr LAU Ho Lim

Dr Cecilia YM FAN

Dr Billy C F CHIU

Ex-officio:

Staff: Mr John P C MA
Ms Iris W M IP

(Administrative Executive)
(Administrative Executive)

The QA&A program aims to promote participation in Continuing Medical Education (CME) and Continuing Professional Development
(CPD) activities for General Practitioner (GP) and Family Physician (FP). With end in mind to promote continuous education and
professional development for college members through high quality educational activities, QA&A committee identifies and assesses
these learning activities and accredits CME/CPD points to the participants. CME certificate is also issued via QA&A committee to
members fulfilling the College’s requirement as a token recognition and encouragement.

In order to further enhance an effective and efficient QA&A program for GP/FP, the QA&A committee has conducted a review on
prevailing operation since 2Q2016. An Active Learning Mode (ALM) has been endorsed in Hong Kong Primary Care Conference since
2016. In this regard, active participation in prescribed learning of a prior-accredited activity may earn CPD points upon successful
submission of both pre- and post- MCQs. Through innovative learning mode as such, learning may be facilitated efficiently and
effectively in this era of rapid knowledge and technology expansion. ALM has also implemented in the Annual Refresher Training
Course held by Specialty Board since 2018.

An enhanced CPR course was introduced in 2017 in response to the amended CPR requirement of RACGP QI & CPD Programme
in 2017-19 to attain reciprocal recognition with RACGP and our College QA Programme. The ‘Advanced Primary Care Life Support

Course’ has been promoted alongside with CPR Subcommittee of The Board of Education starting from 2017.
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Regarding CME, for HKCFP Members who have chosen Hong Kong Academy of Medicine (HKAM) as their CME Administrator under
“MCHK CME Programme for Non-specialists” category, we would administer their MCHK CME with waiving of fee charged by HKAM

starting January 2017.

In order to set proper standard for awarding CME for the rapidly rising trend of on-line webinars, the committee has discussed and
agreed on setting a minimal requirement of 75% attendance time plus passing post-event quiz/survey, starting from August 2020. Also
attending two webinars with 15 Minutes or above overlap time would be counted as ‘duplicate attendance’, no CME points shall be

awarded.

To strengthen continuity of the committee, kindly note that we have introduced 2 vice chairmen posts with interposing terms since

2018.

Kindly note that the electronic copy of and CME Certificate 2023 is available on the College's homepage http://www.hkcfp.org.hk,
members can login to their own account to download the certificates anytime. Request for hardcopy certificate can be made in writing

to the college secretariat, an administrative fee of $50 per copy would be charged. Please find list of active fellows/members who have

fulfilled the College’s requirement for awarding certificate as below.

List of Active College Fellow who obtained CME Certificate in 2023

Dr Al, Hiu Fay, Dawn Teresa
Dr AU, Chi Sum

Dr AU Yeung, Shiu Hing

Dr CHAN, Chi Hung

Dr CHAN, Chi Wing

Dr CHAN, Cho Shan, Erica
Dr CHAN, Chung Yuk, Alvin
Dr CHAN, Hau Ting

Dr CHAN, Hung Chiu, Peter
Dr CHAN, Ka Shing, Ricky
Dr CHAN, Ki Chun Enoch
Dr CHAN, Kin Wai

Dr CHAN, Kwok Wai, Keith
Dr CHAN, Lam Fung

Dr CHAN, Man Hung, Jeff
Dr CHAN, Ngai Ping

Dr CHAN, Pui Kwan

Dr CHAN, Shui Ling

Dr CHAN, So Wai

Dr CHAN, Sze Man

Dr CHAN, Wai Yee, Tina

Dr CHAN, Wing Yan

Dr CHAN, Yan Kwong, Eric
Dr CHAN, Yin Yue, Yeni

Dr CHAN, Yuen Ching

Dr CHANG, Hoi Yi

Dr CHANG, Ting Ting

Dr CHAU, Hoi Ki Samantha
Dr CHAU, Yiu Shing

Dr CHEN, Tsz Ting

Dr CHENG, Cheuk Hong

Dr CHENG, Hei Wan

Dr CHENG, Kwan Chui

Dr CHENG, Pui Kwan, Lisa
Dr CHEUK, Christina

Dr CHEUK, Tat Sang

Dr CHEUNG, Chi Hong David
Dr CHEUNG, Helen

Dr CHEUNG, Kwok Leung, Sydney
Dr CHEUNG, Mei Yee

Dr CHEUNG, Wai Keung, Paul
Dr CHEUNG, Yan Kit

Dr CHEUNG, Yu

Dr CHING, Tak Kwan, Joyce
Dr CHO, Kwai Chee

Dr ARORA, Namrata

Dr AU, Tai Kwan Eva

Dr BIEN, Tse Fang, Barry

Dr CHAN, Chi Keung

Dr CHAN, Chin Ping

Dr CHAN, Chor Kwong

Dr CHAN, Fu Leung

Dr CHAN, Hoi Ying, Linda

Dr CHAN, Hung Wai, Patrick
Dr CHAN, Kam Sheung

Dr CHAN, Ki Fung, Dickson
Dr CHAN, King Hang

Dr CHAN, Laam

Dr CHAN, Lit Ping

Dr CHAN, Man Li

Dr CHAN, Pang Fai

Dr CHAN, Pui Wai

Dr CHAN, Sio Pan

Dr CHAN, Suen Ho, Mark

Dr CHAN, Tat, Eddie

Dr CHAN, Wan Wai

Dr CHAN, Wing Yi

Dr CHAN, Yin Chiu

Dr CHAN, Ying Ho

Dr CHAN, Yuen Ling

Dr CHANG, Hsu Wei

Dr CHANG, Wai Wah, Wilson
Dr CHAU, Kai Man

Dr CHEN, Hing Han

Dr CHEN, Xiao Qun

Dr CHENG, Chun Sing, David
Dr CHENG, Ka Ho

Dr CHENG, Long Yee

Dr CHENG, Pui Sum, Cupid
Dr CHEUK, Hiu Ying

Dr CHEUK, Wing Ngar

Dr CHEUNG, Ching Lo Julie
Dr CHEUNG, Kin Wan, Kelvin
Dr CHEUNG, Man Ha

Dr CHEUNG, Pui Shan, Cindy
Dr CHEUNG, Wang Chung
Dr CHEUNG, Yau Ling, Florence
Dr CHIANG, Lap Kin

Dr CHIU, Chap Fai, Johnnie
Dr CHOI, Chuen Ming, Clarence

Dr AU, Chi Lap, Simon

Dr AU, Yuk Lan

Dr CHAN, Angela Shuk Yan
Dr CHAN, Chi Wai, Edmond
Dr CHAN, Ching, Teresa

Dr CHAN, Chung Po

Dr CHAN, Ham

Dr CHAN, Hon Ming

Dr CHAN, Ka Lung

Dr CHAN, Kam Sum

Dr CHAN, Kin Ling

Dr CHAN, Kwan Ho

Dr CHAN, Lam

Dr CHAN, Man Hay

Dr CHAN, Mei Tak

Dr CHAN, Pui Chuen

Dr CHAN, Shan Ching

Dr CHAN, Siu Ling, Cloey
Dr CHAN, Sze Luen, David
Dr CHAN, Ting Bong

Dr CHAN, Wing Chi Annie
Dr CHAN, Yam Lai, Thomas
Dr CHAN, Yin Hang

Dr CHAN, Ying Ho, Andrew
Dr CHAN, Yuen Yan

Dr CHANG, Ka Fai

Dr CHANG, Wells

Dr CHAU, Kei Wai

Dr CHEN, Liujing

Dr CHEN, Xiao Rui, Catherine
Dr CHENG, Ghar Yee, Judy
Dr CHENG, Kit Wing

Dr CHENG, Michael

Dr CHENG, Sai Yip, Ronald
Dr CHEUK, Man Cheong, Eric
Dr CHEUK, Yau Chun

Dr CHEUNG, Hard King

Dr CHEUNG, Kwok Chiu Stephen
Dr CHEUNG, Man Kuen

Dr CHEUNG, Sze Man

Dr CHEUNG, Wing Wo

Dr CHEUNG, Ying Man

Dr CHING, Kam Wing

Dr CHIU, Chi Fai, Billy

Dr CHOI, Kin, Gabriel
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Dr CHOI, Man Kit

Dr CHOI, Yue Kwan

Dr CHOW, Hoi Kei, Jessica
Dr CHOW, Kar Kin, Peter
Dr CHOW, Pui Yin Melody
Dr CHOW, Tsz Wang

Dr CHOW, Wing Man

Dr CHOQY, Chi Keung

Dr CHU, Lai Shan

Dr CHUANG, Chi Kit

Dr CHUI, Winnie Wan Ying
Dr CHUNG, Hiu Yeung

Dr CHUNG, Sze Pok

Dr CHUNG, Wai Ho

Dr FAN, Siu Wai

Dr FANG, Oi Sze, Elsie

Dr FOK, Peter Anthony

Dr FONG, Pak Yiu

Dr FOO, Kam So, Stephen
Dr FUNG, Andrew Yat Wang
Dr FUNG, Kevin Koon Fun
Dr HAN, Jinghao

Dr HO, Chin Chiu

Dr HO, Ka Kei, Edward

Dr HO, Ka Ying

Dr HO, King Yip, Anthony
Dr HO, Suet Ying

Dr HO, Wang Fung, Desmond
Dr HOU, Baijing

Dr HUI, Alice Sau Wei

Dr HUI, Ka Ling Karen

Dr HUI, Lai Chi

Dr HUI, Siu Yan, Edith

Dr HUNG, Chi Bun

Dr HUNG, Wai Yin, Winson
Dr IP, Kit Kuen, Andrew

Dr IP, Sui Wah

Dr KAM, Ngar Yin

Dr KAN, Chi Ho

Dr KOK, Kwok Yee

Dr KONG, Ka Ming Andrew
Dr KUNG, Kenny

Dr KWAN, Sin Man

Dr KWOK, Chi Ming

Dr KWOK, Lai Key, Priscilla
Dr KWOK, Tsz Tik

Dr KWONG, Bi Lok, Mary
Dr KWONG, Lok See

Dr KWONG, Wing Hun

Dr LAI, Kit Chi

Dr LAI, Pui Yan

Dr LAI, Suk Yi, Irene

Dr LAM, Chi Hang

Dr LAM, Chun Yin, Jeffrey
Dr LAM, Kang

Dr LAM, Man, Jansen

Dr LAM, Sun Ching

Dr LAM, Tsan, Augustine
Dr LAM, Wai Yiu

Dr LAM, Wing Wo, Edmund
Dr LAU, Chi Hang

Dr LAU, Ho Lim

Dr LAU, Kam Tong

Dr LAU, Man Wai, Dominic

Dr CHOI, Sze Wai Michelle
Dr CHOU, Chun Wing, Stephen
Dr CHOW, Kai Lim

Dr CHOW, Kim Yue

Dr CHOW, Sheung Yan, Alex
Dr CHOW, Wai Hung

Dr CHOW, Wing Man

Dr CHQY, Pui Sang, Ignatius
Dr CHU, Tsun Kit

Dr CHUANG, Yuk Shan

Dr CHUNG, Chak Cheong
Dr CHUNG, Ka Chun

Dr CHUNG, Sze Ting

Dr DAO, Man Chi

Dr FAN, Wai Man, Anita

Dr FENG, Longyin

Dr FOK, Siu Wing, Dominic
Dr FONG, Ting

Dr FU, Sau Nga

Dr FUNG, Hoi Tik

Dr FUNG, Pak Kei

Dr HAN, Tun Bing, William
Dr HO, Chun Kei

Dr HO, Ka Ki

Dr HO, Kam Wai

Dr HO, Mo Sze, Ellen

Dr HO, Sze Ho

Dr HO, Wing Man

Dr HOU, Jing

Dr HUI, Chik Kwan

Dr HUI, King Wai

Dr HUI, Ming Tung, Eric

Dr HUI, Yuk Ting Candy

Dr HUNG, Lok Lam Susanna
Dr IONG, Ka |

Dr IP, Pang Fei

Dr IP, Yan Yan

Dr KAM, Sze Man, Silvia

Dr KO, Siu Hin

Dr KONG, Che Wan

Dr KONG, Yim Fai, Albert
Dr KWAN, Ka Mei, Betty

Dr KWAN, Tsz Yan

Dr KWOK, Chung Hon, Michael
Dr KWOK, Lai Ping, Steffi
Dr KWOK, Yee Ming Elaine
Dr KWONG, Hon Kei

Dr KWONG, Sheung Li

Dr LAI, Ge Woon, Gevon

Dr LA, Kit Ping, Loretta

Dr LAI, Sheung Siu

Dr LAI, Sum Yin

Dr LAM, Chi Yuen, Johnny
Dr LAM, Hiu Lam

Dr LAM, King Hei, Stanley
Dr LAM, Paul

Dr LAM, Tak Man, Catherine
Dr LAM, Wai Chi, Rocky

Dr LAM, Wing Ching, Nicole
Dr LAM, Ying

Dr LAU, Chi Hung

Dr LAU, Hon Chung

Dr LAU, Kin Sang, Kinson
Dr LAU, Po Shan

Dr CHOI, Wing Kin

Dr CHOW, Chong Kwan

Dr CHOW, Kam Fai

Dr CHOW, Kwan Lung

Dr CHOW, Tsz Ling

Dr CHOW, Wai Man, Rudolph
Dr CHOW, Wing Yan

Dr CHU, Lai Ah, Julia

Dr CHU, Wai Sing, Daniel
Dr CHUH, An Tung, Antonio
Dr CHUNG, Chi Yan, Benny
Dr CHUNG, Kin Wing

Dr CHUNG, Tze Nang, John
Dr DIANTO, Jeffrey

Dr FAN, Yuen Man, Cecilia
Dr FOK, Chun Man

Dr FONG, Chui Ying

Dr FOO, Bong Yin, Kevin

Dr FU, Siu Saap Michelle
Dr FUNG, Kai Chiu

Dr FUNG, Yuk Kwan

Dr HAU, Sin Ying, Cindy

Dr HO, Chung Yu

Dr HO, Ka Ming

Dr HO, Kin Sang

Dr HO, Shu Wan

Dr HO, Tsz Bun

Dr HONG, Tin Chak

Dr HSU, Kwok Fai, David
Dr HUI, Ka Fung

Dr HUI, Kwun Sue, Wilson
Dr HUI, See Ying

Dr HUN, Pek |

Dr HUNG, Wai Shan, Sandra
Dr IP, Chung Ho, Ronald

Dr IP, Sai Yin

Dr JIAO, Fangfang

Dr KAM, Ting Ting

Dr KO, Wai Kit

Dr KONG, Chi Hang

Dr KUM, Chung Hang

Dr KWAN, Man Woo

Dr KWOK, Chi Chiu

Dr KWOK, Hon Chu, Kenneth
Dr KWOK, Memie

Dr KWOK, Yuen Na

Dr KWONG, Ka Wah

Dr KWONG, Siu Kei Alfred
Dr LAI, Joyce Ho Yan

Dr LAI, Ming Wah, Alexander
Dr LAl Siu Wai

Dr LAI, Wai Wah

Dr LAM, Ching Man

Dr LAM, Hon Man

Dr LAM, Man Man

Dr LAM, Pui

Dr LAM, Ting Chung Matthew
Dr LAM, Wai Leung, Anthony
Dr LAM, Wing Kwun

Dr LAM, Ying Ying

Dr LAU, Chun Hung, Gavin
Dr LAU, Ka Man

Dr LAU, Lai Na

Dr LAU, Pui Lam, Patrick
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Dr LAU, Rebecca, Becca Chaw
Dr LAU, Wai Keung, Timothy
Dr LEE, Chi Leung

Dr LEE, Ching Man Margaret
Dr LEE, Hoi Ying

Dr LEE, Ka Ling, Glenn

Dr LEE, Kar Fai

Dr LEE, Shek Hang

Dr LEE, Sum

Dr LEE, Wing Mei, Winnie
Dr LEE, Wing Yi

Dr LEUNG, Ching Ching

Dr LEUNG, Hor Yee

Dr LEUNG, Kin Kay

Dr LEUNG, Lai Man

Dr LEUNG, May Heng, Sandy
Dr LEUNG, To Fung

Dr LEUNG, Wai Man

Dr LEUNG, Wing Mun

Dr LI, Hei Lim

Dr LI, Kong Yu

Dr LI, Minru

Dr LI, Wing Shun, Vincent
Dr LIM, Mo Kin

Dr LIU, Wing Yee

Dr LO, Chak Yui

Dr LO, Wai Hon

Dr LO, Yuen Chung, Yvonne
Dr LUI, Luen Pun, Benny
Dr LUK, Chun Wa

Dr LUK, Wan

Dr MAK, Ho Yin

Dr MANG, Kit Ying

Dr MOK, Ka Yee

Dr NG, Carrie Chi Wing

Dr NG, Chiu Lap

Dr NG, Ka Wing

Dr NG, Kwok Keung

Dr NG, Ming Shing

Dr NG, Pui Yam

Dr NG, Sze Wing, Catherine
Dr NG, Tze King, Peter

Dr NG, Yeung Shing

Dr NGAI, Ho Yin, Allen

Dr NGAN, Hung Kin, Henry
Dr NGAN, Sze Yuen

Dr PANG, Seung Chiu

Dr PON, Wai Pi

Dr POON, Ming Wai

Dr POON, Yung Yin

Dr SHE, Siu Yam, Dominic
Dr SHENG, Wei Yang

Dr SHUEN, Chuen Kwok, Mariana

Dr SIN, Ming Chuen

Dr SIU, Lok Man

Dr SIU, Wing Yee

Dr SO, Mei Ho, Doris

Dr SUEN, Victoria Gee Kwang
Dr SY, Wing Man

Dr SZE, Lung Yam

Dr SZETO, Chui Ying

Dr TAM, Chi Wing, Peter
Dr TAM, Ho Shan

Dr TAM, Kit Ping

Dr LAU, Sek Fung Spike

Dr LAU, Yue Young, Geoffrey
Dr LEE, Chiang Tee, Frederick
Dr LEE, Chun Hui

Dr LEE, Hung Fai

Dr LEE, Kai Yuen

Dr LEE, Ling Hin

Dr LEE, Sik Kwan, Jenny
Dr LEE, Wai Fun

Dr LEE, Wing Po

Dr LEE, Ying Cheung

Dr LEUNG, Gin Pang

Dr LEUNG, Ka Cheong

Dr LEUNG, Kwan Wa, Maria
Dr LEUNG, Lok Hang

Dr LEUNG, Pui Sha, Crystal
Dr LEUNG, Tsi Mei, Violet
Dr LEUNG, Wan Chiu

Dr LEUNG, Yu Hang

Dr LI, Janice Chun Ying

Dr LI, Kwok Ho

Dr LI, Shiyue

Dr LI, Yim Chu

Dr LIN, Chor Keung, Calvin
Dr LIU, Yin Mei

Dr LO, Chun Hung, Raymond
Dr LO, Wan Shun, Kara

Dr LO, Yuen Man

Dr LUI, Tsz Yin

Dr LUK, Man Hei, Matthew
Dr MA, Ching Hing, Stanley
Dr MAK, Kam Lun

Dr MAURELLET, Juan-Domingo
Dr MOK, Wai Che, Lena

Dr NG, Cham Chi

Dr NG, Chun Bor

Dr NG, Kai Man

Dr NG, Mei Po, Jackie

Dr NG, Ngai Mui

Dr NG, Pui Yee, Beatrice

Dr NG, Tsz Chung

Dr NG, Wai

Dr NG, Yui Wing Joanne

Dr NGAI, Ka Ho

Dr NGAN, Ka Lai, Raymond
Dr NOH, Young Ah

Dr PANG, Siu Leung

Dr PONG, Pong

Dr POON, Shun Bong, Anthony
Dr PUN, Lai Yin

Dr SHEK, Chun Chiu

Dr SHIU, Ka Lok

Dr SHUM, Chi Shan Winnie
Dr SIT, Pui Ki, Lolita

Dr SIU, Pui Yi, Natalie

Dr SO, Ching Yee, Gloria
Dr SO, Tsang Yim

Dr SUN, Yiu Kwong

Dr SZE, Chung Fai

Dr SZE, Pui Ka, Catherine
Dr TAI, Lik

Dr TAM, Chun Ho

Dr TAM, John Hugh

Dr TAM, Kwan Wai

Dr LAU, Tai Wai

Dr LAW, Tung Chi

Dr LEE, Chik Pui

Dr LEE, Edna Tin Wai

Dr LEE, Jerrold

Dr LEE, Kam Pui

Dr LEE, Man Kei

Dr LEE, Siu Yin, Ruby
Dr LEE, Wang Yat

Dr LEE, Wing Yee

Dr LEUNG, Cheuk Wing
Dr LEUNG, Hoi Lik Eric
Dr LEUNG, Ka Fai

Dr LEUNG, Lai Kuen

Dr LEUNG, Man Yin

Dr LEUNG, Sze Wan, Selina
Dr LEUNG, Wai Lun

Dr LEUNG, Wing Kit

Dr LEUNG, Yuen Kin Kenneth
Dr LI, Keung

Dr LI, Ming Yin

Dr LI, Wing Chi

Dr LIM, Martina

Dr LIU, Ka Yee

Dr LO, Alvina

Dr LO, Tsz Yan

Dr LO, Wing Sze

Dr LUI, How Mui

Dr LUK, Chi To

Dr LUK, Sze Wan Candy
Dr MA, Man Ki

Dr MAK, Wing Hang

Dr MO, Kam Chuen

Dr MOK, Yuen Fan, Jennifer
Dr NG, Ching Luen

Dr NG, Hok Wai

Dr NG, Kwok Fai

Dr NG, Mei Yee

Dr NG, Pak Him

Dr NG, Sheung Yee

Dr NG, Tsz Kin

Dr NG, Wai Tong

Dr NG VENTURA, Lorna
Dr NGAI, Ming, Leon

Dr NGAN, Po Lun

Dr OR, Ka Yan

Dr PANG, Sze Ching Esther
Dr POON, Kwok Ming
Dr POON, Ting Kong

Dr SCHLAIKIER, Brigitte Elisabeth

Dr SHEK, Hon Wing

Dr SHIU, Wing Ho

Dr SIN, Ka Ling

Dr SIT, Wing Shan

Dr SIU, Samuel Ji-Sum
Dr SO, Fong Tat

Dr SUEN, Hung Yan, Alex
Dr SY, Hung Pan, Jimmy
Dr SZE, Hon Ho

Dr SZE, Siu Lam Jason
Dr TAI, Lok Yin, Nadia

Dr TAM, Chung Yin, Janet
Dr TAM, Ka Wae, Tammy
Dr TAM, Long Yee

85



Dr TAM, Man Wai

Dr TAM, Yick Sin

Dr TANG, Kin Sze

Dr TING, Sze Man

Dr TONG, Po Hei, Timmy

Dr TSAI, Hung Yu

Dr TSANG, Hon Keung, Andrew
Dr TSANG, Pui Lim

Dr TSANG (LEUNG), Yin Ching
Dr TSE, Keith Kwok Ki

Dr TSE, Po Ching, Venus

Dr TSE, Tsui Yee, Emily

Dr TSE, Ying Pui

Dr TSO, Sau Lin

Dr TSULI, Felix

Dr TSUI, Pun Nang

Dr WAI, Heung Wah, Hayles
Dr WAN, Wing Fai

Dr WONG, Chak Tong

Dr WONG, Chi Lung

Dr WONG, Ching Keung

Dr WONG, Chun Fai

Dr WONG, Chun Pong

Dr WONG, Fai Ying

Dr WONG, Hin Hei Henry

Dr WONG, Hiu Yeung

Dr WONG, Ka Ki, David

Dr WONG, Kwai Wing

Dr WONG, Lai Cheung, Virginia
Dr WONG, Man Ying, Michelle
Dr WONG, Oi Yee, Amy

Dr WONG, Pui Ling

Dr WONG, Suk Ching

Dr WONG, Sze Nga

Dr WONG, Tsz Kau, Carl

Dr WONG, Wing Ning, Rosanna
Dr WONG, Yu Man

Dr WOO, Long Yiu

Dr WU, Chun Yu

Dr WU, Sze Man

Dr XU, Shaowei

Dr YAP, Jon-Alvan Tsun Hee
Dr YAU, King Sun

Dr YEN, Pang Fei

Dr YEUNG, Ka Yu Doogie

Dr YEUNG, To Ling, Solomon
Dr YEUNG, Yee Mei

Dr YIO, Shing

Dr YIP, Pui Chuen

Dr YIP, Wah Yung

Dr YIU, Cheuk Man

Dr YIU, Ming Pong

Dr YIU, Yuk Kwan

Dr YU, Kwan, Alexander

Dr YU, Sze Kai, Frances

Dr YU, Yi Fung

Dr YUEN, Man Ki

Dr YUNG, Hiu Ting

Dr ZHU, Yin

Dr TAM, Wah Kit

Dr TANG, Cheong Yu

Dr TANG, Man Leung, Thomas
Dr TO, Kit Yuk, Dorothy

Dr TONG, Siu Man

Dr TSANG, Chi Fai

Dr TSANG, Kam Wah

Dr TSANG, Sheung Yin, Stanley
Dr TSE, Ching Wan, Charmaine
Dr TSE, Kwok Lam

Dr TSE, Sut Yee

Dr TSE, Tung Wing, George
Dr TSEUNG, Kwan Hang

Dr TSOl, Lai To, Sammy

Dr TSUI, Hiu Fa

Dr TSUI, Sau In

Dr WAN, King Tung, Peter

Dr WANG, Hua Li

Dr WONG, Chi Ho, Keith

Dr WONG, Chi Sang, Martin
Dr WONG, Chit Wing

Dr WONG, Chun Hun, Jonathan
Dr WONG, Chung Ming

Dr WONG, Hang Fai, Ricky
Dr WONG, Hing Lam

Dr WONG, Ho Cheong

Dr WONG, Ka Wah

Dr WONG, Kwok Hoi

Dr WONG, Man Ho

Dr WONG, Mong Sze, Marcus
Dr WONG, Pak Hoi

Dr WONG, Sau Kuen

Dr WONG, Sum Lok

Dr WONG, Tak Lung

Dr WONG, Wai Man, Rita

Dr WONG, Wing Sze

Dr WONG, Yuen Ping, Mariana
Dr WU, Chi Ho Bosco

Dr WU, Flora

Dr WU, Tsz Yuen, Tom

Dr YAM, Tak Kwong

Dr YAU, Chi Yan

Dr YAU, Lai Mo

Dr YEUNG, Chi Keung

Dr YEUNG, Lok Ki

Dr YEUNG, Wai Kei, Patrick
Dr YIM, Chi Ling

Dr YIP, Chun Kong

Dr YIP, Pui Leung

Dr YIP, Wing Ki

DrYIU, KamYi

Dr YIU, Yee Ki

Dr YOUNG, Yiu Fai

Dr YU, Kwun Nam

Dr YU, Wing Hung

Dr YUEN, Chi Hang

Dr YUEN, Ming Wai

Dr YUNG, Yin Ying

Prof LEE, Albert

List of Active College Member who obtained CME Certificate in 2023

Dr AU, Hin Fung
Dr BUT, Ho Yin, Leo
Dr CHAN, Cheuk Yan, Stephen

Dr AU, Wah Cheong, Eric
Dr CHAIN, Chi Woo, David
Dr CHAN, Chi Ho

Dr TAM, Wing Yi Cherry

Dr TANG, Kam Leung

Dr TIN, Yuen Ying

Dr TONG, Ka Hung

Dr TOO, Lai Chong

Dr TSANG, Hing Fai

Dr TSANG, Lai Ting

Dr TSANG, Yee Wing

Dr TSE, Hing Choi

Dr TSE, Peggy

Dr TSE, Tak Kei

Dr TSE, Wan Ying

Dr TSIM, Koon Lan, Kathy
Dr TSOI, Wai Wang, Gene
Dr TSUI, Hoi Yee

Dr TSUI, Wing Sze, Wendy
Dr WAN, Kwong Yu

Dr WONG, Calvin Alexander
Dr WONG, Chi Kwong

Dr WONG, Chi Wing

Dr WONG, Chiu Lun

Dr WONG, Chun Kit, Arthur
Dr WONG, Chung Tao

Dr WONG, Hei Man, Emily
Dr WONG, Hiu Lap

Dr WONG, Hong Kiu Queenie
Dr WONG, Kwai Sheung

Dr WONG, Kwok, Kitty

Dr WONG, Man Kin

Dr WONG, Nai Ming

Dr WONG, Pak Kin

Dr WONG, Siu Shan, Simon
Dr WONG, Sze Kei

Dr WONG, Tseng Kwong
Dr WONG, Wai On

Dr WONG, Ying Fun

Dr WONG, Yuk Shan

Dr WU, Ching Ping

Dr WU, Kwok Keung

Dr WU, Wing Keung, Ricky
Dr YAN, Chi Yung

Dr YAU, Kin Chung

Dr YAU, Tang Fai

Dr YEUNG, Hoi Pun

Dr YEUNG, Sze Wai

Dr YEUNG, Wai Man

Dr YING, Gard Ching Derek
Dr YIP, Hoi Man Vivian

Dr YIP, Tze Hung

Dr YIP, Wing Yi

Dr YIU, Man Lok, Genevieve
Dr YIU, Yiu Kee, Kelvin

Dr YU, Ching Ching

Dr YU, Louise Anne Sum Wun
Dr YU, Yee Tak, Esther

Dr YUEN, Fu Lam

Dr YUEN, Shiu Man

Dr ZHANG, Dingzuan

Prof LI, Kwok Tung, Donald

Dr AU-YEUNG, Kin Yiu
Dr CHAN, Cheuk Sing
Dr CHAN, Chi Kong
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Dr CHAN, Chi Ying, Queenie
Dr CHAN, Chun Man

Dr CHAN, Fung Yuen

Dr CHAN, HIO TONG

Dr CHAN, Hue Yan, Stephanie
Dr CHAN, Ka Ming

Dr CHAN, Kwan Yee, Katy
Dr CHAN, Lin

Dr CHAN, Lok Wai, Thomas
Dr CHAN, Nai Yin, Nelson
Dr CHAN, Sai Man

Dr CHAN, Siu Chung, Bruce
Dr CHAN, Sze Ling

Dr CHAN, Wai Chung, Virginia
Dr CHAN, Wing Man

Dr CHAN, Yuen Sang

Dr CHAU, Chuen

Dr CHEN, Chi Heung

Dr CHENG, Chung Liang
Dr CHENG, Kin Keung, William
Dr CHENG, Siu Han

Dr CHEUK, Kwok Leung

Dr CHEUNG, Ada See Wai
Dr CHEUNG, Ka Nam

Dr CHEUNG, Tsz Ki

Dr CHEUNG, Yu Fung

Dr CHIU, Kun Ming

Dr CHIU, Sung Kwan

Dr CHOI, Bo Yue Olivia

Dr CHOI, Sze Yuen

Dr CHONG, Nga Yee

Dr CHOW, Tung Fai

Dr CHU, Hoi Kuen

Dr CHU, Man Ho

Dr CHU, Pui Ling

Dr CHUK, Pui Chun

Dr FENG, Jun Marc

Dr FONG, Ting Kwok

Dr FUNG, Chi Pun Wilson
Dr FUNG, Ka Hang, Timothy
Dr FUNG, Wai Yee

Dr GE, Shicong

Dr HEATH, Robert Barrie

Dr HO, Han Chung, Gary
Dr HO, Kin Chung

Dr HO, Wing Yan, Olivia

Dr HONG, Sze Nga

Dr HUEN, Lok Lam

Dr HUI, Tak Leung

Dr IP, Alvina

Dr JOR, Hon Man

Dr KAN, Kwong Tin

Dr KO, Pak Long

Dr KOO, Hok Tin, Hilton

Dr KU, Hau

Dr KWAN, Chun Yin

Dr KWAN, Yih Chuen, Eugene
Dr KWOK, Ming Fai, David
Dr KWOK, Yip Tung Tony

Dr KWONG, Ho Tak

Dr KWONG, Siu Kee

Dr LAI, Chiu Fai

Dr LAI, Siu Kee, Vincent

Dr LAM, Chun Keung, Peter

Dr CHAN, Cho Yin

Dr CHAN, Chung Mok, Samuel
Dr CHAN, Hei Wai, Venus

Dr CHAN, Hiu Ching

Dr CHAN, Jeremy Jin Hay

Dr CHAN, Ka Wing

Dr CHAN, Kwun Hung

Dr CHAN, Linda

Dr CHAN, Maria Magnifica M.
Dr CHAN, Nim Tak, Douglas
Dr CHAN, Shek Hoi

Dr CHAN, So Heung

Dr CHAN, Tsz Hin

Dr CHAN, Wai Hung, George
Dr CHAN, Yau Chuen

Dr CHANG, King Chuen

Dr CHAU, Ka Shun Duncan
Dr CHEN, Cong Xiao

Dr CHENG, Chung Tat, Jacky
Dr CHENG, Pui Ki Melanie
Dr CHENG, Tsz Wai

Dr CHEUK, Yau Lin

Dr CHEUNG, Chloe Cheuk Kan
Dr CHEUNG, Ting Po

Dr CHEUNG, Wing Fat, Julian
Dr CHEUNG, Yuen Yan

Dr CHIU, Kwan Ki

Dr CHO, Cheuk Ying

Dr CHOI, Lap Him

Dr CHOI, Wai Hung

Dr CHOW, Chau Yi

Dr CHQY, Yuk Lun, Frederick
Dr CHU, Kee Leong

Dr CHU, Man Yee, Candy

Dr CHUA, Tec Sang, Susannah
Dr CHUNG, Pak Yin

Dr FOCK, Hoi Hei, Surena

Dr FONG, Yuk Fai, Ben

Dr FUNG, Hiu Kit, May

Dr FUNG, Kwok Shan

Dr FUNG, Yan Ning

Dr HA, Kwan Tsun

Dr HO, Chi Sun, Jason

Dr HO, Hon Ming

Dr HO, Man Kam

Dr HO, Ying Ho

Dr HUANG, Wanshu

Dr HUI, Min Yee Linda

Dr HUNG, Cheung Fat, Horatio
Dr IP, Kai Wah

Dr KAN, Ho Sing

Dr KENNELLY, Sophia Kwan Mei

Dr KONG, On Tai

Dr KORNG, Kokan Allan
Dr KU, Ngai Lam

Dr KWAN, Po Yuen

Dr KWOK, Edmond Shan Lam
Dr KWOK, Siu Leung

Dr KWOK, Yip Tung Tony
Dr KWONG, Kin Hung
Dr KWONG, Wing Yi

Dr LAI, Ho Yeung, Kelvin
Dr LAI, Siu Tung

Dr LAM, Chun Man, John

Dr CHAN, Chuen

Dr CHAN, Fu Wai

Dr CHAN, Hio Meng

Dr CHAN, Ho Cheung

Dr CHAN, Ka Kit, Tommy
Dr CHAN, King Hong

Dr CHAN, Lap Kuen

Dr CHAN, Lok Hin

Dr CHAN, Ming Wai, Angus
Dr CHAN, Ping Kwong

Dr CHAN, Shiu Leung

Dr CHAN, Suk Yin

Dr CHAN, Tung Hay, Eddie
Dr CHAN, Wan Yee, Winnie
Dr CHAN, Yin Chung Andi
Dr CHAO, Vai Kiong, David
Dr CHAU, Sui Him

Dr CHEN, Tien Chiang

Dr CHENG, Ka Tong

Dr CHENG, Shun Ming

Dr CHEONG, Shao Nean
Dr CHEUK, Yee Hang

Dr CHEUNG, Jessica

Dr CHEUNG, Tsz Kei

Dr CHEUNG, Woon Yan Frances

Dr CHIANG, Chay Kung

Dr CHIU, Shing Hei

Dr CHO, Hing Sang, Kenneth
Dr CHOI, Siu Chuen

Dr CHOI, Yan Tak

Dr CHOW, Chun Fung

Dr CHU, Henson

Dr CHU, Lun Piu, Ronald
Dr CHU, Pui Kuen, Anita

Dr CHUI, Yuen Ting, Megan
Dr CHUNG, Yi On, Shalom
Dr FONG, Kin Lee, Garry
Dr FOSTER, Jonathan Charles
Dr FUNG, Hoi Yin

Dr FUNG, Phoebe Sze Nga
Dr FUNG, Yiu Tong, Bennet
Dr HARIMAN, Affandy

Dr HO, Chun Lam

Dr HO, Ka Yan

Dr HO, Shun Ying

Dr HO, Yiu Keung, Steven
Dr HUEN, Jason Chiusan
Dr HUI, Suk Yin, Mandy

Dr IAN, Pui Kuan

Dr IP, Wai Ting, Laren

Dr KAN, Junsuo

Dr KO, Chi Fai, William

Dr KOO, Chung Wai

Dr KU, Chi Sing, Hilary

Dr KUNG, Garry

Dr KWAN, Wing Kai, William
Dr KWOK, Ka Cheong

Dr KWOK, Wai Lun

Dr KWONG, Chung Man

Dr KWONG, Ngar Ming, Henry
Dr LAI, Cheuk Hei

Dr LAI, Pong Shing, Eric

Dr LAM, Chiu Ki, Alexander
Dr LAM, Gin Hou, Alan
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Dr LAM, Hei Ching Heather
Dr LAM, Ka Wai

Dr LAM, Kwok Sang

Dr LAM, Natasha Hiu Ching
Dr LAM, Wai Yip

Dr LAO, Fei A, Sofie

Dr LAU, Hiu Fung, Hugo
Dr LAU, Kin Wai

Dr LAU, Shi Wa

Dr LAU, Tsz Ying

Dr LAW, Cheuk Hung, Stephen
Dr LEE, Big Kau, Judy

Dr LEE, Chun Kit, Tony

Dr LEE, Ka Kei

Dr LEE, Pak Lik, Eric

Dr LEE, Suk Yee

Dr LEE, Wan Hon, Vincent
Dr LEUNG, Cheuk Yiu

Dr LEUNG, Ching

Dr LEUNG, Hei Tung

Dr LEUNG, Nelson

Dr LEUNG, Shuk Yun

Dr LEUNG, Wai Kay

Dr LEUNG, Wing Hong

Dr LI, ChiYin

Dr LI, Shun Hoi

Dr LI, Wai Ling

Dr LIANG, Jun

Dr LIM, Paik Chok, Rose
Dr LIU, Hin Yeung

Dr LO, Cheuk Wai

Dr LO, Man Kin

Dr LO, Shuk Kam

Dr LO (WONG), Wan Ching, Wendy
Dr LOW, Wai Ming, Pearl
Dr LUI, Rupert Yau Han

Dr LUK, Wai Yin

Dr MA, Ka Yee

Dr MA, Yi Ning

Dr MAK, Hon Fai Christopher
Dr MAK, Wing Kin

Dr MAN, Wai Ying

Dr MOK, Kin Fai

Dr MOY, Man Cho

Dr NG, Amy Pui Pui

Dr NG, lat Hang

Dr NG, Kam Man

Dr NG, On Li

Dr NG, Yue Chun John

Dr NGAI, Man Chiu

Dr NGAN, Yuen Fat

Dr OR, Sui Kei, Alison

Dr OWENS, David Edward
Dr PANG, Yee Yan, Athena
Dr PEI, Yuk Man, Debra
Dr PONG, Hiu Yan

Dr POON, Ka Yin

Dr SAU, Chung Ying

Dr SHING, Yuk Ping, Agnes
Dr SO, Chi Kin

Dr SO, Yung Pak

Dr SUNG, Cheuk Chung
Dr TAM, Chin Yui

Dr TAM, Yiu Pun

Dr LAM, Ho Fai, Kenneth
Dr LAM, Ka Wing, Kevin
Dr LAM, Lai Cho, Eugenia
Dr LAM, See Yui

Dr LAM, Yat Hei

Dr LAU, Chi Keung, Michael
Dr LAU, Ka Man, Angela
Dr LAU, Kwan Ho

Dr LAU, Swen Joo, Joanne
Dr LAU, Wai

Dr LAW, Kwok King

Dr LEE, Choi Fung

Dr LEE, Eric Yuk Ho

Dr LEE, Kam Ha

Dr LEE, See Mei

Dr LEE, Wai Chun

Dr LEE, Yan Tung

Dr LEUNG, Chi Fai

Dr LEUNG, Fung Ming, Angela
Dr LEUNG, Ka Man

Dr LEUNG, Nim No, Deborah
Dr LEUNG, Sze King

Dr LEUNG, Wai Yan Viola
Dr LI, Anne Beatrice

Dr LI, Chun Fai

Dr LI, Sin Ting

Dr LI, Xiang Hua

Dr LIANG, Kai Ting, Katy
Dr LIN, Su Chuen Janice
Dr LIU, Yin Ming

Dr LO, Chun Fat

Dr LO, Pik Har

Dr LO, Yan Yeung Vincent
Dr LOH, Lai Ting, Taron
Dr LQY, Tien En, Grace
Dr LUI, Yin Mei

Dr LUK, Wing Kun Leona
Dr MA, Mya Khin

Dr MA, Yuen Ying

Dr MAK, Kin Mei

Dr MAK, Wing Yee

Dr MCBRIDE, Andrea Evelyn
Dr MOK, Yuen Sau, Elaine
Dr MUI, Kin Tung

Dr NG, Chi Ho

Dr NG, Joyce Hei Lam

Dr NG, Kwan Chun

Dr NG, Sin Yu

Dr NG, Yuk Fai

Dr NGAI, Stanley Hiu-On
Dr O, SunYin

Dr OR, Wing Yin

Dr PANG, Kwan

Dr PANNU, Prubdial Singh
Dr PENG, Xu

Dr POON, Daniel

Dr POON, Min Kan lvy

Dr SHEK, Kai Cheung

Dr SIN, Tak Yee

Dr SO, Hei Ming

Dr SOE, Amar

Dr TAI, Hing Kuen

Dr TAM, Kwok Wai, Sunny
Dr TAN, Shu Kwan

Dr LAM, Josephine Wai May
Dr LAM, Kei Chiu, Tony

Dr LAM, Lap

Dr LAM, Siu Ping

Dr LAM, Yik Tsz

Dr LAU, Choi Yee

Dr LAU, Kim Sing

Dr LAU, Sai Lai

Dr LAU, Tin Kay, Peter

Dr LAU, Ying Kit

Dr LAW, Wai Man

Dr LEE, Chun Ki

Dr LEE, Fook Kay

Dr LEE, Kin Lun

Dr LEE, Shek Kwong

Dr LEE, Wai Lung

Dr LEONG, Si Man

Dr LEUNG, Chi Wah

Dr LEUNG, Fung Sun, Peter
Dr LEUNG, Kwan Wai, Amas
Dr LEUNG, Oi Ting

Dr LEUNG, Wai Chung

Dr LEUNG, Wing Hing, William
Dr LI, Cheuk Yan

Dr LI, Ping Wai

Dr LI, Ting Kwan

Dr LI, Yu Chi

Dr LIE, Siu Fen

Dr LIN, Wing Sum

Dr LIU, Yuk Ping, Louisa

Dr LO, Chun Hong

Dr LO, Ping Wo

Dr LO, Yu Chee

Dr LOO, Wai Ho

Dr LUI, Hau Man, Phoebian
Dr LUK, Hoi Yee

Dr MA, Hiu Tung

Dr MA, Ping Kwan, Danny
Dr MAK, Chin Sing, Dennis
Dr MAK, Shen Rong, Sharon
Dr MAN, Estelle

Dr MING, Shiu Kow

Dr MOY, Lok Tin

Dr NAING, Win Tun, Thomas Nelson
Dr NG, Chui Shan

Dr NG, Ka Wai

Dr NG, Man Hon, George

Dr NG, Wing Hin, Stephanie
Dr NGAI, Bernard

Dr NGAN, Hiu Ting

Dr OLSEN BORWEIN, Sarah Tanya
Dr O'TREMBA, Francis Martin
Dr PANG, Kwong Kee

Dr PAU, Wai Man, Raymond
Dr PONG, Che Og, Andrew
Dr POON, llima Yin Shan

Dr POON, Mun Shan, Lucy
Dr SHEN, Yu Wei

Dr SIU, Ping Cheong

Dr SO, Kwok Ho, Kevin

Dr SUN, Dione Tinoi

Dr TAM, Chi Wai

Dr TAM, Yat Hung

Dr TANG, Anthony Hing Yung
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Dr TANG, Chun Ming

Dr TANG, Sai Kit, Bernard
Dr TANG, Sui Hong

Dr TJIE, Nelson

Dr TONG, Hiu Tung

Dr TONG, Yuk Ting, Lucy

Dr TSANG, Yat Fai

Dr TSE, Chun Yee

Dr TSO, San Kong

Dr TUNG, Po Yin

Dr WANG, Lugian

Dr WEN, Yongna, Wendy

Dr WONG, Carmen

Dr WONG, Chi Wai, William
Dr WONG, Chun Chung

Dr WONG, Ho Sum

Dr WONG, Hung Tat

Dr WONG, Ka Yan, Catherine
Dr WONG, Kwok Ho, Joseph

Dr WONG, Lai Koon, Magdalene
Dr WONG, Pik Wa Carrie
Dr WONG, See Wai, Samuel
Dr WONG, Tat Ming, Ronald
Dr WONG, Wai Pang

Dr WONG, Wing Shan

Dr WONG, Yuet Hei

Dr WU, Ming Wai, Thomas
Dr WU, Zee Kee, Stephen
Dr YAN, Dorcas

Dr YANG, Tsz Ching, Kelly
Dr YAU, Chiu Ming

Dr YEUNG, Chin Fung

Dr YEUNG, Pui Sze

Dr YIU, Sze Wa

Dr YU, Lok Kwan

Dr YU, Wing Lam

Dr YUEN, Ching Yan

Dr YUEN, Sek Cheung

Dr YUNG, Lok Yee Louise
Dr ZHANG, Guilian

Prof WONG, Yeung Shan, Samuel

Dr TANG, Kuen Yan, Alfred

Dr TANG, Shao Fen, Joyce

Dr TANG, Wai Choi

DrTO, SumYi

Dr TONG, Kwan Nok

Dr TRODD, Timothy David Patrick
Dr TSAO, Goh Mei Ling, Marion
Dr TSE, Hoi Yan Crystal

Dr TSOI, Wing Yin, Winnie

Dr WAN, Kwong Ha

Dr WANG, SIQl

Dr WONG, Anthea

Dr WONG, Che Hing

Dr WONG, Ching Chuen

Dr WONG, Hiu Yan

Dr WONG, Hon Sum Samuel
Dr WONG, Ka Kin

Dr WONG, Ka Yee, Maria

Dr WONG, Kyaw Lwin, Simeon @
Huang Hsin Yang
Dr WONG, Ming Shun

Dr WONG, Ping San, John
Dr WONG, Stanley

Dr WONG, Terrick Ka Tsun
Dr WONG, Wei Wade

Dr WONG, Yin Sum

Dr WOO, Tiffany

Dr WU, Sum Yi

Dr XU, Song Ci, Alice

Dr YAN, Ka Shing

Dr YAP, Chean Lee

Dr YAU, Kwan Ming Jeremy
Dr YEUNG, Emma Yik Tsing
Dr YEUNG, Tsz Wai William
Dr YONG, Hun Yue, Rosalind
Dr YU, Wai Ming, James

Dr YU, Xiaoxia

Dr YUEN, Ching Yi

Dr YUEN, So San Susana
Dr YUNG, Oi Kwan, Iris
Prof LAM, Lo Kuen, Cindy

Dr TANG, Miu Sze

Dr TANG, Siu Man, Simon

Dr TANG, Yeung On

Dr TONG, Ann Marie Jing Man
Dr TONG, Tin Yan Emily

Dr TSANG, Hoi Ham

Dr TSE, Boon Keung, Stephen
Dr TSE, Ping Yu Clarice

Dr TUET, On Sang

Dr WANG, Feng

Dr WARD, Susan Clare

Dr WONG, Bo Hang

Dr WONG, Chi Hou

Dr WONG, Ching Sze

Dr WONG, Ho Ching

Dr WONG, Hor Yung

Dr WONG, Ka Yan

Dr WONG, Koon Yin Yvonne
Dr WONG, Kyin Lin, Peter

Dr WONG, Nicole

Dr WONG, Sau Yee

Dr WONG, Sze Man

Dr WONG, Tsz Yan Miranda
Dr WONG, Wing Kwan

Dr WONG, Ying Sau

Dr WOO, Wing Hung

Dr WU, Wing Sze

Dr YAM, Chun Yin

Dr YANG, Jung Mai

Dr YAP, Pek Gan

Dr YAU, Wing Him

Dr YEUNG, Po Kwan, Irene
Dr YIP, Yuk Pang, Kenneth
Dr YOUNG, Ying Nam, Dominic
Dr YU, Wai Nam

Dr YUE, Wing Shun

Dr YUEN, Ka Wai

Dr YUNG, Leung Tung Daniel
Dr YUNG (YEE), Sui Yin, Ruth
Prof LAM, Tai Pong

List of Active College Fellows and Member who have successfully applied Reciprocal Recognition for cycle 2023

ARORA Namrata

CHAN Chung Mok, Samuel
CHAN King Hang

CHAN Yin Hang

CHENG Hei Wan

CHOW Kim Yue

CHUNG Ka Chun

FUNG Ka Hang Timothy
HAN Tun Bing

HO Wing Man

IP Sai Yin

KAM Ting Ting

KWAN Yih Chuen Eugene
LAM Wing Wo

LAU Ka Man Angela

LAU Wai Keung, Timothy
LEE Chun Kit Tony
LEUNG Kwan Wai, Amas
LO Ping Wo

MAURELLET Juan-Domingo

AU Yuk Lan

CHAN Hung Chiu Peter
CHAN Suen Ho Mark
CHAN Yuen Yan
CHEUK Christina
CHOW Wai Man

FANG Qi Sze, Elsie
FUNG Yuk Kwan

HO Chin Chiu

HUI Ka Fung

IP Sui Wah

KONG Ka Ming Andrew
LAM Hon Man

LAM Ying Ying

LAU Sek Fung Spike
LAW Tung Chi

LEE Jerrold

LEUNG Lai Man

LOY Tien En Grace

NG Tsz Chung

AU-YEUNG Shiu Hing
CHAN Ka Shing, Ricky
CHAN Wan Yee Winnie
CHEN Liujing

CHOI Yue Kwan
CHUNG Chi Yan Benny
FUNG Andrew Yat Wang
HAN Jinghao

HO Shu Wan

HUNG Lok Lam Susanna
IP Yan Yan

KUM Chung Hang

LAM Tai Pong

LAU Ka Man

LAU Tai Wai

LEE Albert

LEE Siu Yin, Ruby

LI Wing Chi

MAK Ho Yin

NG Yui Wing Joanne
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PANG Kwan

SHIU Wing Ho
TIN Yuen Ying
TSE Keith Kwok Ki
WONG Kwai Wing
XU Shaowei

YIP Wing Yi

YU Yi Fung

RESEARCH COMMITTEE
(April 2023 to March 2024)

Chairman:

Honorary Advisors:

Committee Members:

Ex-officio:

Staff:

Prof Cindy L K LAM

Dr Catherine X R CHEN
Dr CHIANG Lap Kin

Dr LEE Kam Pui

Dr LEUNG Lok Hang
Dr LEUNG Shuk Yun

Dr David V K CHAO (
Dr LAU Ho Lim (
Dr Samuel Y S WONG (Vice-President, Education & Examinations)
Dr CeciliaY M FAN (
Dr Billy C F CHIU (

Ms John P C MA
Ms Crystal WY YUNG

POON Min Kan

Tam Ka Wae

TSANG Lai Ting

TSIM Koon Lan, Kathy
WONG Oi Yee Amy
YEUNG Yee Mei
YOUNG Yiu Fai

Prof Samuel Y S WONG

Prof Doris YOUNG

Dr LIANG Jun

Dr Lorna V NG

Prof Martin C S WONG
Dr Esther Y T YU

President)

SHEK Chun Chiu

TANG Joyce Shao Fen
TSE Hing Choi

WAN King Tung Peter
WONG Wing Ning Rosanna
YIP Pui Chuen

YU Sze Kai Frances

Vice-President, General Affairs)

Honorary Secretary)
Honorary Treasurer)

(Administrative Executive)
(Administrative Manager, to December 2023)

Five submissions had been received for the Best Research Award 2023 and the Best Trainee Research Award 2023, the selection
panel consisted of two assessors. The winning papers were:
e  Best Research Award 2023: “Improving Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus detection among at-Risk individuals — Effectiveness of

Active Opportunistic Screening using spot Capillary-HbA1c test — A cluster randomized controlled trial (DM-REACH)” by Dr

Linda CHAN

. Best Trainee Research Award 2023: “Perspective of Smokers and Healthcare Professionals towards Real-time Video

Counselling Smoking Cessation Program in General Out-patient Clinics in Hong Kong: A Qualitative Study” by Dr YUNG

Hiu Ting

e  Trainee Research Award 2023 — 1% Runner Up: “Prevalence and Factors Associated with Diabetes-related Distress in Type

2 Diabetes Patients: A Study in Hong Kong Primary Care Setting” by Dr WONG Man Ho.

The 2024 HKCFP Research Fellowship had received six applications this year. The selection panel which consisted of two assessors
had selected the winner to be Dr CHAU Kei Wai. His research project was “Barriers to optimise disease control among ethnic minority

patients with diabetes mellitus in public setting in Hong Kong: A qualitative study using the Theoretical Domains Framework”.

The Committee has established two new funding awards over the last ten years: Trainees Research Fund, to encourage trainees to
attempt research segment of the Exit Examination, and Research Seed Fund, to provide the opportunity for other interested parties

to develop funding proposals and research ideas related to family medicine.

| wish to thank all who have provided assistance to the Research Committee and look forward to closer collaborations in the future.
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WEB AND COMPUTER COMMITTEE
(April 2023 to March 2024)

Chairman: Dr Matthew M H LUK
Members: Dr Stephen K C CHEUNG Dr CHOW Kai Lim
Dr Howard H T KWONG Dr Peter K T WAN

Dr David K K WONG

Ex-officio: Dr David V K CHAO (President)
Prof Samuel YS WONG (Vice-President, Education & Examination)
Dr LAU Ho Lim (Vice-President, General Affairs)
Dr CeciliaY M FAN (Honorary Secretary)
Dr Billy C F CHIU (Honorary Treasurer))
Staff: Ms Erica M SO (Executive Manager)
Mr John P C MA (Administrative Executive)

In the year 2023-24, we are delighted to serve our College members.

Computer software and hardware are being updated and renewed to tackle the increasing demand. Thanks to our secretarial
support and input from the Committee, the registration system for educational activities, members’ MCQs and Clinical Quizzes
function in our college website are maintained smoothly. The Web and Computer Committee is also responsible for managing our
College Facebook page, which provides a platform for sharing timely information with our College members, our community friends
and the public. PayPal payment is available to facilitate transactions of membership subscription fee and registration fee of the Hong
Kong Primary Care Conference (HKPCC) 2023.

We welcome all suggestions from our College members. The web and computer daily operations are being monitored by our
secretarial staff, and we are thankful for their dedicated work.

| would like to once again express my appreciation to the members of the Web and Computer Committee for their support in the
past year. We look forward to serving our College in the coming year.

Google Analytics at www.hkcfp.org.hk from 1 April 2023 — 31 March 2024

Total users by Audience name over time Month v

Audience name + 4 Total users New users Sessions Views per session Average sessior

28,257 28336 50,863 323 2mars $0.00
™ of o o0 of total 0 0% a0

00% of ota!

Top 10 pages visited:
Ranking Page Number
of Clicks

1 Home Page 21,642
http://www.hkcfp.org.hk/

2 Membership Login 16,709
https://lwww.hkcfp.org.hk/login.aspx

3. Event Calendar 15,255
https://lwww.hkcfp.org.hk/event.aspx?act=r&lD=34

4, Event Details 7,666

https://lwww.hkcfp.org.hk/event_detail.aspx
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HKCFP CME & MCHK CME Report

7,139

https://www.hkcfp.org.hk/cme_mchkcme_report.aspx
FP Links
https://www.hkcfp.org.hk/fplinks_40.html

Downloads > Vocational Training

6,362

3,364

https://lwww.hkcfp.org.hk/pages_9_95.html

Debit Notes and Receipts

3,081

https://www.hkcfp.org.hk/debitnotes_and_receipts_list_302.html
Exit Examination
https://lwww.hkcfp.org.hk//pages_6_88.html

Diploma in Family Medicine

3,068

2,946

https://www.hkcfp.org.hk/pages_6_86.html

YOUNG DOCTORS COMMITTEE
(April 2023 to March 2024)

Co-Chairmen: Dr Esther Y T YU

Dr CHAN Lam

Dr DAO Man Chi

Committee Dr

Members:

Ex-officio:

Dr
Dr
Dr
Dr
Dr
Dr
Dr
Dr
Dr
Dr
Dr
Dr
Dr
Dr
Dr
Dr
Dr
Dr
Dr
Dr
Dr

Dr

Dr
Dr

Dr
Dr

Prof Samuel Y S WONG

Dr
Dr

CHAN So Wai
Cheryl Y C CHAN
StellaY Y CHAN
Mira L CHEN
Christina CHEUK
York M K CHOI
Elaine Y N FUNG
KWAN Chun Yin
Kimberly K K LEE
LAU Ka Man
Chloe S W LAU
WillL H LEUNG
LI Ting Kwan
Natasha W Y LIU
Dennis CY LO
Cathy KY LO
LUI Tsz Yin

NG Cham Chi
Joyce L P POON
Nadia L Y TAI

Wallace KW TSANG

Emily TY TSE

Aldo C L WONG

Jerry LY WOO
Louise L Y YUNG

David V K CHAO
LAU Ho Lim

Cecilia Y M FAN
Billy C F CHIU

(from December 2023 onwards)
(Representative, WONCA APR Rajakumar Movement to April
2023
(RepZesentative, HKAM Young Fellows Chapter from July
2023)
(to December 2023)
(Representative, £ £F} 58 25 FEH A to June 2023)
(Representative, HKAM Young Fellows Chapter to June 2023)
(Representative, WONCA APR Rajakumar Movement) - :

Dr Esther Y T YU

(Representative, HKAM Young Fellows Chapter to June 2023)
(Representative, WONCA YDMs from August 2023)

(from January 2024)
(from January 2024)
(from January 2024)
(from January 2024)

(from January 2024)

(from January 2024)
(from January 2024)
(from January 2024)

Dr CHAN Lam

(from January 2024)

(from January 2024)

(from January 2024)

(Representative, Sif& e RS @ BN EHFZRG(H
J&) to June 2023)

(Representative, WONCA APR Rajakumar Movement from Dec
2023)

(from January 2024) 7
(from January 2024) I

(President) Dr DAO Man Chi
(Vice-President, General Affairs)

(Vice-President, Education and Examinations)

(Honorary Secretariat)

(Honorary Treasurer)
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Staff: Ms Erica M SO (General Manager)
Ms Nana HT CHOY (Administrative Executive)
Ms Kathy K'Y LAI (Administrative Executive)

CO-CHAIRMEN’S MESSAGE:

The HKCFP Young Doctors Committee was formed by our College in May 2017. We aim to engage our young doctors joining the
College activities and nurture young leaders. We would connect the medical students, medical interns and young members of our
College to enhance our communication with each other. We also promote our younger leaders to represent our College in the
participation of local, national and international meetings. The composition of our membership were enthusiastic young doctors coming
from public and private sectors in order to keep up the momentum.

ACTIVITIES:

Date

Event

YDC Representatives

29 May 2023

HKCFP 6" Family Medicine Career Talk via Hybrid

Chairpersons:
Dr Esther Y T YU

Dr DAO Man Chi

Dr CHAN Lam

Dr CHAN So Wai

Dr Cheryl Y C CHAN
Dr LAU Ka Man

Dr NG Cham Chi

Dr Emily TY TSE
Dr Aldo C L WONG

Special Thanks:
Dr David V K CHAO

27 August 2023

Family Medicine Boot Camp: Three Secret Survival Tips For FM Trainees

Coordinators:

Dr CHAN Lam

Dr CHAN So Wai

Dr Cheryl Y C CHAN
Dr Christina CHEUK
Dr DAO Man Chi*
Dr LAU Ka Man

Dr Cathy K'Y LO
Dr Aldo C L WONG*

Dr Esther Y T YU

Special Thanks:

Dr Alvin CY CHAN
Dr Loretta WY CHAN
Dr Edmund W W LAM
(Trainees’ speakers)

*Absent on the day of
event

18 October 2023

Career Talk 2023
Organized by the Executive Committee, Medical Society, HKU

Dr Aldo C L WONG

3 December 2023

FIM? (885:4£1%) at HKCFP 46" Annual Dinner

Dr CHAN Lam
Dr LAU Ka Kin

Dr Wanmie W M LEUNG

Dr Aldo C L WONG
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YDC 1%t Christmas Carol Event at Queen Elizabeth Hospital and Caritas
Medical Centre

Coordinator:
Dr Aldo C L WONG

Dr Cheryl Y C CHAN

Dr Louis KW CHAN

Dr LAU Ka Man

Dr Aaron F K LEE

Dr EricY H LEE

Dr Wanmie W M LEUNG

Dr Esther Y T YU

23 December
2023

Coordinators:
Dr Cathy KY LO
Dr Kimberly KK LEE

YDC 3" Hiking activity - Dragon’s Back Trail

Dr Cheryl Y C CHAN
Dr CHEUNG Tsz Kei
Dr CHOI Man Kit

Dr Alvina IP

Dr LAU Sin Mei

Dr LEE Ho Ming

Dr Nelson LEUNG
Dr Katy K T LIANG
Dr LO Chak Yui

Dr NG Yeung Shing
Dr Matthew F T SO
Dr Nadia L Y TAI

Dr Walter S Q WANG
Dr Jerry LY WOO

17 March 2024

HONORARY TREASURER
(April 2023 to March 2024)

Honorary Treasurer: Dr Billy C F CHIU

Staff: Ms Erica M SO (General Manager)
Mr Roy P K Leung (Administrative Executive, from December 2023 onwards)
Ms Priscilla S M LI (Administrative Executive)

The financial situation of our College remains stable for the year 2023-2024. With a current reserve

valued in excess of HK$20 million, thanks to the conservative investment strategy of the Finance
Committee. The great majority of our funds are in the form of cash savings in the Bank of East Asia, HSBC and Wing Hang Bank.

Our College is mainly operated under three companies in 2023-2024, as detailed in the Auditor’s report.

In this financial year, our main income sources were from, in descending order, Membership Committee, Board of Conjoint Examination,
Board of Diploma in Family Medicine, Specialty Board and Board of Vocational Training & Standards. When compared with 2022-
2023 income, Membership Committee, membership subscriptions obtained HK$1.85 million (2.2% decrease). The Board of Conjoint
Examination obtained HK$1.26 million (29.8% decrease). The Board of DFM obtained HK$1.07 million (8.93% decrease). The
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Specialty Board obtained HK$939K (10.5% increase). The Board of Vocational Training & Standards obtained HK$700K (37%
increase). All these Boards were having surplus in this year especially the Board of Vocational Training & Standards has significantly
increased in percentage when compared with 2022-2023.

On the side of expenditure, our single most significant spending is still in staff salaries and allowances, which amounted to HK$4.8
million. The total cumulative expenses have increased by 6.25% when compared with 2022-2023 as number of staff headcount has
added and salary increment.

C F Cheung Certified Public Accountant Company Secretariat division is working on the deregistration and dissolution of HKCFP
Holdings & Development Ltd. during the FY23-24. They submitted the application to Companies Registry and Inland Revenue
Department. The estimated date for the company to be deregistered and dissolved is in the 3rd quarter of 2024.

We have coordinating with a new accounting firm Chang Leung Hui & Li CPA Certified Public Accountant Company to continue for the
Accounting and Audit service from 2024. Thank you for the help by C F Cheung Certified Public Accountant Company in the previous
years to provide the College a professional accounting and audit service.
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS
(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
REPORT OF THE COUNCIL

The Council present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Financial statements

The financial performance of the College for the year ended 31 March 2024 and its state of affairs as at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 6 to 15.

Principal activities

The College continues to the provision of continuing education in relation to family medicine.

Permitted indemnity provision

A permitted indemnity provisions was in force for the benefit of one or more council members of the
College during the year or at the time of approval of this report.

Business review

The College falls within reporting exemption for the financial year. Accordingly, the College is qualified
for exemption from preparing a business review.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movement in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 4 on page 14.

Council members

The council members who served during the year and up to the date of this report were:-

Dr. Au Chi Lap Dr. Lau Ho Lim

Dr. Chan Hung Chiu Dr. Leung Kwan Wa, Maria
Dr. Chan King Hong Dr. Li Yim Chu

Dr. Chan Ming Wai Dr. Luk Man Hei, Matthew
Dr. Chao Vai Kiong David Dr. Ng Ventura Lorna

Dr. Chiu Chi Fai, Billy Dr. Ngan Po Lun

Dr. Fan Yuen Man Cecilia Dr. Tsui Wing Sze, Wendy
Dr. Fok Peter Anthony Dr. Wong Mong Sze, Marcus
Dr. Ho Ka Ming Dr. Wong Yeung Shan, Samuel
Dr. Hui Ming Tung, Eric Dr. Yiu Yuk Kwan

Dr. Ko Wai Kit Dr. Yu Yee Tak, Esther

In accordance with the College's Articles of Association, the President, Vice-president, Hon. Secretary
and Hon. Treasurer and not exceeding one-third of the other members, shall retire from office and being

eligible offer themselves for re-election.

Management contracts

During the year, the College has paid management fee to a related company as detailed in note 7 on page
15 to the financial statements, no other contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the College were entered or existed during the year.

-1-



THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS
(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
REPORT OF THE COUNCIL

Council members interest in contracts, transactions and arrangements

Except for those disclosed in note 7 on page 15 to the financial statements, no other contracts of
significance to which the College was a party and in which a member of the Council had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Equity-linked agreements

No equity-linked arrangements of the College were entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of
the year.

Auditor

The auditor, Chang Leung Hui & Li C.P.A. Limited, retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

On behalf of the Board

\

Dr. Chao Vai Kiong David
Chairman
Hong Kong, 15 October 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY
PHYSICIANS ("the College™) set out on pages 6 to 15, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in

funds and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the College
as at 31 March 2024, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard for Private Entities ("HKFRS for PE") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the College in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants ("the Code"),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Council is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Council's report set out on pages 1 to 2, but does not include the financial statements and

our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.



Chang Soung Heaig Lo Co.0. Limited

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Other Information - cont'd

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Council and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRS for PE issued by the HKICPA and the Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Council determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Council is responsible for assessing the College's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Council either intend to liquidate the College or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the College's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the College's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Council.



Chang Loung Hei g Lo CP.A. Lomitod

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements - cont'd

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the College's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the College to cease to continue as

a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

£

CHANG LEUNG HUI & LI C.P.A. LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

MA, CHUN YIN KEEFE
Practising Certificate Number P07357
Hong Kong, 15 October 2024



THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS
(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

2024 2023
Note HKS HK$
Revenue
Membership subscription fee 1,524,095 1,814,472
Entrance fee from member 79,100 58,000
Bank interest income 8,108 914
Other income 14,637 23,630
1,625,940 1,897,016
Less: Administrative expenses
Audit fee 8,500 8,500
Accountancy fee 72,000 -
Bank charges 15,621 24,504
Building management fee 294,191 237,083
Business registration fee 2,150 150
Computer software expenses 50,000 -
Depreciation 55,068 29,162
Legal and professional fee - 79,100
Management fee 1,600,000 1,550,000
Sundry expenses 30,504 21,020
2,128,034 1,949,519
Loss before taxation (502,094) (52,503)
Less: Taxation 2 (25,129) (4,671)
Net loss for the year (527,223) (57,174)

The notes on pages 10 to 15 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS

(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

2024 2023
HKS HKS$
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 228,086 110,447
Current assets
Accounts receivable 257,883 472,685
Amount due from a related company 11,482 127,839
Bank balances 1,650,044 1,828,200
1,919,409 2,428,724
Current liabilities
Deposit paid (28,070) (6,652)
Amount due to related companies (2,316,838) (2,221,838)
Accrued expenses (80,500) (86,500)
(2,425,408) (2,314,990)
Net current (liabilities) / assets (505,999) 113,734
Total assets less current liabilities (277,913) 224,181
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax (748,396) (723,267)
NET LIABILITIES (1,026,309) (499,086)
FUNDS
Premises fund 785,274 785,274
General fund (1,811,583) (1,284,360)
(1,026,309) (499,086)

Approved by the Board on 15 October 2024

and signed on its behalf.

L A

Dr. Chao Vai Kiong David Dr. Chiu Chi Fai, Billy
Chairman Honorary Treasurer

The notes on pages 10 to 15 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS
(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Premises General

fund fund Total

HK$ HK$ HKS$
At 1 April 2022 785,274 (1,227,186) (441,912)
Net loss for the year - (57,174) (57,174)
At 1 April 2023 785,274 (1,284,360) (499,086)
Net loss for the year - (527,223) (527,223)
At 31 March 2024 785,274 (1,811,583) (1,026,309)

The notes on pages 10 to 15 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS

(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating results for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Interest income

Operating results before working capital changes
Decrease /(increase) in accounts receivable
Increase in deposit paid

(Decrease) / increase in accruals

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Advance from related companies - net
Interest received

Net cash generated from investing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Analysis of the balance of cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances

2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$
(502,094) (52,503)
55,068 29,162
(8,108) (914)
(455,134) (24,255)
214,802 (233,054)
21,418 6,652
(6,000) 66,000
(224,914) (184,657)
(172,707) ;
211,357 121,149
8,108 914
46,758 122,063
(178,156) (62,594)
1,828,200 1,890,794
1,650,044 1,828,200
1,650,044 1,828,200

The notes on pages 10 to 15 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS
(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

1. Reporting entity and its principal accounting policies

THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS (LIMITED BY GUARANTEE) is a
college incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liabilities, not having a share capital and limited
by guarantee. The liability of each of its members, in the event of its being wound up while he/she
is a member, or within one year after he/she ceased to be a member for payment of the debts and
liabilities of the College contacted before he/she ceases to be a member, and costs, charges and
expenses of winding up, and for the adjustment of the rights of the contributories amongst
themselves, is limited to an amount not exceeding HK$10.

The College's registered office is located at Room 803-4, 8/F., HKAM Jockey Club Building, 99
Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong. The principal activities of the College are
provision of continuing medical education in relation to family medicine.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared under the accrual basis of accounting and on the
basis that the Institute is a going concern and in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard for Private Entities (HKFRS for PE) approved by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

The measurement base adopted is the historical cost convention.

The following are the specific accounting policies that are necessary for a proper understanding of
the financial statements:

a) Revenue

Revenue is recognized as income when it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with transaction will flow to the College and when the amount of revenue as well as costs
incurred for the transaction can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is shown net of discounts, rebates and refund.

- Entrance fee from members is recognized in the financial year of receipt.
- Annual subscription fee is recognized on a time proportion basis.

- Interest income is recognized on the time proportion basis taking into account the
principal outstanding and the effective rate of interest applicable.

b) Trade and other receivable

Trade and other receivables are measured at initial recognition at transaction price (including
transaction costs) and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment, if any. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the College will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is
recognized in profit or loss.
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS
(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

1. Reporting entity and its principal accounting policies

<)

d)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit may differ from profit or loss as reported in the
statement of profit or loss because of permanent difference and temporary difference.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases using in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liabilities arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of an asset or liability in a transaction that affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit
or tax loss. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities associated with an investment property
measured at fair value and property, plant and equipment measured at revalued amount shall
not exceed the amount of tax that would be payable on its sales to an unrelated market
participant at fair value at the end of reporting period. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognized for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits
to the extent that is probable that taxable profit will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilized.
Such deferred tax assets are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of an asset and liability in a transaction that
affects neither the accounting profit nor the taxable profit or tax loss.

The Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the
deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, non-current assets other than financial assets are reviewed
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If there is any indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected
asset (or group of related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If the
estimated recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced
to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognized immediately in
profit or loss. If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
group of related assets) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not
in excess of the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortization) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (group of
related assets) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in
profit or loss.
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS
(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

1. Reporting entity and its principal accounting policies
e) Property and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at initial recognition at cost and subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost comprises purchase price, conversion cost and estimated cost of dismantling and
restoration. Expenditure such as repairs and maintenance, overhaul costs and borrowing costs
are normally charged to profit or loss when they are incurred. Where expenditure has resulted
in increases in the future economic benefits from the use of the property, plant and equipment,
the expenditure is capitalized.

The residual values and useful lives of the property, plant and equipment are reviewed
annually. If necessary, the residual value, depreciation method or useful life of that asset is
amended prospectively to reflect the new expectation. Depreciation is calculated using the
straight-line method to write off the depreciable amount of each property, plant and equipment
to profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset over its estimated
useful life. The following estimated useful lives are used for the depreciation of property,
plant and equipment.

Furniture, fixture and equipment 15%

On disposal or retirement, the cost (or revalued amount) together with associated accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any, of the property, plant and equipment are
derecognized and any gain or loss resulting from the disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

(f) Related Parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the College if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the College;
(i) has significant influence over the College; or
(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the College or the College’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the College if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the College are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) The entity or the College is an associate or joint venture of the other (or an associate
or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other is a member).

(iii) Both the entity and the College are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) Either the entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the College is an associate of
the third entity or the entity is an associate of a third entity and the College is a joint
venture of the third entity.
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS
(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

1. Reporting entity and its principal accounting policies
(f) Related Parties - cont'd
(b) An entity is related to the College if any of the following conditions applies:

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the employees of the
College or an entity related to the College.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member
of key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the College and include (i)
that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; (ii) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and (iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic

2. Taxation

2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$
Deferred tax
Charge to statement of comprehensive income 25,129 4,671

a) No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the financial statements because the
College has an allowable tax loss carried forward.

b) The tax expense for the year is reconciled to the deficit before tax per statement of
comprehensive income as follows:-

2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$
Deficit before taxation (502,094) (52,503)
Tax at the applicable rate of 16.5% (82,845) (8,663)
Tax effect of non-tax deductible expenses 9,086 9,483
Tax effect of non-chargeable income (1,338) (4,672)
Tax losses unrecognized 100,226 8,523
25,129 4,671
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS
(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

3. Council members' remuneration and loans

a) The council members received no remuneration and retirement benefits for their services to
the College during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2024.

b) Neither loans, quasi-loans nor other dealings have been made in favor of the council members
by the College during or at the end of the financial years ended 31 March 2023 and 2024.

4. Property, plant and equipment

Furniture,
College fixtures and
premises equipment
HK$ HK$ HK$

Cost
At 1.4.2022 and 1.4.2023 500,000 3,985,529 4,485,529
Additions - 172,707 172,707
At31.3.2024 500,000 4,158,236 4,658,236
Accumulated depreciation
At 1.4.2022 500,000 3,845,920 4,345,920
Charge - 29,162 29,162
At 1.4.2023 500,000 3,875,082 4,375,082
Charge : - 55,068 55,068
At31.3.2024 500,000 3,930,150 4,430,150
Net carrying value
At31.3.2024 - 228,086 228,086
At31.3.2023 - 110,447 110,447

a) The College's premises situates at 8th Floor, 15 Hennessy Road, The Duke of Windsor Social
Service Building, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The owner of the premises, Hong Kong Council of
Social Service has leased the premises to The Federation of Medical Societies of Hong Kong
on 17 July 1972, for a term of 75 years.

b) On 1 April 1993, the College sub-lease the premises from The Federation of Medical
Societies of Hong Kong at a consideration of HK$500,000, for a term of 50 years.
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS
(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

5. Amount due from a related company

Maximum
balance Balance Balance
outstanding outstanding outstanding
during the year at 31.3.2024 at 31.3.2023
Name HK$ HK$ HK$
HKCFP Education Limited 127,839 11,482 127,839

This debt is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

6. Deferred tax liabilities

2024 2023
HKS HK$
At beginning of year 723,267 718,596
Transfer from statement of comprehensive income 25,129 4,671
At end of year 748,396 723,267

At 31 March 2024, the College has unused tax losses of HK$2,519,074 (2023: HK$1,911,643)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax assets has been recognized due to the
unpredictability of future profits streams. The losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

7. Related parties transaction

Material transactions with a related company, which were conducted in the normal course of
business and on arm's length basis, are summarized as follows:

2024 2023
HKS HKS$
Management fee paid 1,600,000 1,550,000
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File No.: 22/05368560

THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
PROFITS TAX COMPUTATION

YEAR OF ASSESSMENT 2023/24

Basis period: Year ended 31 March 2024

HK$ HK$
Loss as per financial statements (502,094)
Add: Depreciation 55,068
(447,026)
Less: Bank interest income 8,108
Depreciation allowance 104,123
Commercial building allowance 26,727
Prescribed assets under S.16G 21,447
160,405
Adjusted loss (607,431)
Statement of loss
HKS$
Loss b/f 1,911,643
Add: loss for the year 607,431

Loss ¢/f 2,519,074




File No.: 22/05368560

THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
PROFITS TAX COMPUTATION

YEAR OF ASSESSMENT 2023/24

Depreciation allowance

10% Pool 20% Pool 30% Pool Allowance
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
W.D.V.b/Af 53 6,280 20
Additions - 151,260 -
53 157,540 20
Less: LA. - 90,756 - 90,756
53 66,784 20
Less: A.A. 5 13,356 6 13,367
W.D.V.c/A 48 53,428 14
104,123

Commercial building allowance

Allowance
HKS$ HKS$
Deemed cost of construction 668,175
W.D.V. b/f 95,738
Less: A.A. 26,727 26,727
W.D.V. c/f 69,011
Addition to furniture, fixtures and equipment
HK$
2 office computers # 18,847
Phones # 2,600
Office furniture - table and chair * 151,260
* 172,707
* Ranking for 20% pool 21,447

# Ranking for prescribed fixed asset under S.16G
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Financial statements

The financial performance of the Institute for the year ended 31 March 2024 and the state of its affairs as
at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 6 to 15.

Principal activities

The Institute continues to act as an Educational Organization in respect of the development of Family
Medicine.

Business review

The Institute falls within reporting exemption for the financial year. Accordingly, the Institute is
qualified for exemption from preparing a business review.

Plant and equipment

Details of movement in plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 6 on page 14.

Directors

The directors who served during the year and up to the date of this report were:-

Dr. Chao Vai Kiong, David (Chairman)

Dr. Lau Ho Lim (Vice-Chairman)
Dr. Wong Yeung Shan Samuel (Vice-Chairman)
Dr, Chiu Chi Fai, Billy (Hon. Treasurer)
Dr. Fan Yuen Man, Cecilia (Hon. Secretary)

In accordance with the Institute's Articles of Association, one-third of the directors who have been
longest in office since their last election shall retire from office in the forthcoming annual general
meeting, and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Management contract

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Institute were entered or existed during the year.

Directors' interests in contracts, transactions and arrangements

Other than the transactions as disclosed in note 7 on page 15, no other contracts, transactions or
arrangements of significance to which the Institute, its subsidiary was a party subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year in which the directors had a material interest.

Equity-linked arrangements

No equity-linked arrangements of the Institute were entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of
the year.



HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
Auditor

The auditor, Chang Leung Hui & Li C.P.A. Limited, retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

On behalf of the Board

t/”\_/

Dr. Chao Vai Kiong, David
Chairman
Hong Kong, 15 October 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED ("the Institute") set out
on pages 6 to 15, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024, and the
statement of comprehensive income and accumulated deficits and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section
of our report, the financial statements gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the Institute
as at 31 March 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard for Private Entities ("HKFRS for PE") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As explained in note 5 to the financial statements, the Institute has not prepared consolidated financial
statements of the Group because the directors considered that it would involve expenses and delay out of
proportion to the value to the members. Under HKFRS for PE, group accounts should have been
prepared. It is not practicable to quantify the effects of the departure from this requirements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Institute in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants ("the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the directors' report set out on pages 1 to 2, but does not include the financial statements and

our auditor's report thereon.
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Other Information - cont'd

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRS for PE issued by the HKICPA and the Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Institute's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Institute or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Institute's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements - cont'd

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements - cont'd

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Institute's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Institute's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Institute to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentations, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a matter that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

C

CHANG LEUNG HUT & LI C.P.A. LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

MA, CHUN YIN KEEFE
Practising Certificate Number P07357
Hong Kong, 15 October 2024



HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED

(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AND CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Note
Revenue
Various education boards' income less outgoings 2
Management fee income
Sundry income
Bank interest income

Less: Administrative expenses
Audit fee
Business registration fee
Cleaning expenses
Committee expenses
Depreciation
Impairment loss on receivable from a subsidiary
Insurance
Legal and professional fee
Postage
Printing and stationery
Provident fund contribution
Rates and management fee
Repairs and maintenance
Salaries and allowances
Sundry expenses
Telephone and fax
Travelling expenses
Utility expense

(Deficit) / surplus for the year
Accumulated deficits brought forward

Accumulated deficits carried forward

2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$
2,732,027 3,034,950
2,800,000 2,790,000
186,363 312,996
8,593 2,346
5,726,983 6,140,292
8,500 8,500
4,300 150
26,187 15,411
149,758 418,733
13,074 6,841
3,806,204 ]
72,750 31,759
14,600 1,200
7,403 276
70,282 85,210
334,807 297,595
98,229 47,025
24,948 2,360
5,091,933 4,611,723
24,907 12,627
42,675 54,880
2,929 1,038
9,467 2,708
9,802,953 5,598,036
(4,075,970) 542,256
(15,769,544) (16,311,800)
(19,845,514) (15,769,544)

The notes on pages 9 to 15 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED
(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

Note
Non-current assets
Interest in a subsidiary 5
Plant and equipment 6

Current assets

Deposits and prepayments
Accounts receivable

Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities

Accruals

Receipt in advance

Amounts due to related companies

Net current liabilities
NET LIABILITIES

GENERAL FUND
Accumulated deficits

Approved by the Board on 15 October 2024
and signed on its behalf.

£ AFH

2024 2023
HKS HK$

837,195 4,659,865
63,048 76,122
900,243 4,735,987
88,396 110,349

- 39,440

743,081 1,324,049
831,477 1,473,838
(105,283) (136,018)
(251,325) (530,600)
(21,220,626) (21,312,751)
(21,577,234) (21,979,369)
(20,745,757) (20,505,531)
(19,845,514) (15,769,544)
(19,845,514) (15,769,544)

Dr. Chao Vai Kiong, David Dr. Chiu Chi Fai, Billy
Chairman Honorary Treasurer

The notes on pages 9 to 15 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED
(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating results for the year

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Impairment loss on receivable from a subsidiary
Interest income

Operating results before working capital changes
Decrease / (increase) in deposits and prepayments
Decrease / (increase) in accounts receivable
(Decrease) / increase in accruals

(Decrease) / increase in receipt in advance

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of plant and equipment
Repayment to related companies

Repayment from / (advanced to) a subsidiary
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Analysis of the balance of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances

2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$
(4,075,970) 542,256
13,074 6,841
3,806,204 -
(8,593) (2,346)
(265,285) 546,751
21,953 (88,399)
39,440 (10,140)
(30,735) 65,345
(279,275) 305,500
(513,902) 819,057
- (59,163)
(92,125) (532,119)
16,466 (171,782)
8,593 2,346
(67,066) (760,718)
(580,968) 58,339
1,324,049 1,265,710
743,081 1,324,049
743,081 1,324,049

The notes on pages 9 to 15 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED
(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

1. Reporting entity and its principal accounting policies

HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED (LIMITED BY GUARANTEE) is an Institute incorporated in
Hong Kong that is limited by guarantee and not having a share capital. The liability of each of its
members, in the event of its being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after
he/she ceased to be a member for payment of the debts and liabilities of the Institute contacted before
he/she ceases to be a member, and costs, charges and expenses of winding up, and for the adjustment
of the rights of the contributories amongst themselves, is limited to an amount not exceeding HK$10.

The Institute's registered office is located at Room 803-4, 8/F., HKAM Jockey Club Building, 99
Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong. The principal activities of the Institute is to act as
an Educational Organization in respect of the development of Family Medicine.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared under the accrual basis of accounting and on the basis
that the Institute is a going concern and in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard for Private Entities (HKFRS for PE) approved by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

The measurement base adopted is the historical cost convention.

The following are the specific accounting policies that are necessary for a proper understanding of
the financial statements:

a) Revenue

Revenue is recognized as income when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
transaction will flow to the Institute and when the amount of revenue as well as costs incurred for
the transaction can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is shown net of discounts, rebates and refund.

- Income from education boards is recognized when the related services have rendered.
- Management fee income is recognized when the relevant services have rendered.

- Interest income is recognized on the time proportion basis taking into account the principal
outstanding and the effective rate of interest applicable.

b) Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and other leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are measured at their present values.

The Institute operates a defined contribution plan under mandatory provident fund plan. The
Institute pays contributions to the independent administrator on a mandatory basis. The Institute
has no further payment obligations once the contributions are paid. The contributions are
recognized as employee benefit expense when they are incurred and the cost can be measured
reliably.

-9.



HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED

(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

1. Reporting entity and its principal accounting policies

<)

d)

Lease

Annual rents applicable to such operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Incentives such as rent-free period or subsidy on decoration, if any, are
recognized as a reduction of rental expenses over the lease term on straight-line basis.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit may differ from profit or loss as reported in the statement of
profit or loss because of permanent difference and temporary difference.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases using in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liabilities arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of an asset or
liability in a transaction that affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or tax loss. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities associated with an investment property measured at fair
value and property, plant and equipment measured at revalued amount shall not exceed the
amount of tax that would be payable on its sales to an unrelated market participant at fair value at
the end of reporting period. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which those deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses and unused tax credits can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
an asset and liability in a transaction that affects neither the accounting profit nor the taxable
profit or tax loss.

The Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the
deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

-10 -



HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED

(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

1. Reporting entity and its principal accounting policies

€)

g)

Property and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at initial recognition at cost and subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost comprises purchase price, conversion cost and estimated cost of dismantling and
restoration. Expenditure such as repairs and maintenance, overhaul costs and borrowing costs are
normally charged to profit or loss when they are incurred. Where expenditure has resulted in
increases in the future economic benefits from the use of the property, plant and equipment, the
expenditure is capitalized.

The residual values and useful lives of the property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually.
If necessary, the residual value, depreciation method or useful life of that asset is amended
prospectively to reflect the new expectation. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to write off the depreciable amount of each property, plant and equipment to profit or
loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset over its estimated useful life.
The following estimated useful lives are used for the depreciation of property, plant and

Office equipment 15%

On disposal or retirement, the cost (or revalued amount) together with associated accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any, of the property, plant and equipment are derecognized
and any gain or loss resulting from the disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are measured at initial recognition at transaction price (including
transaction costs) and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment, if any. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Institute will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognized in
profit or loss.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiary is an entity in which the Institute, directly and indirectly, controls the composition of
the board of directors, controls more then half of the voting power or holds more than half of the
issued share capital. The Institute's interest in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
permanent diminution in value. Results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by the Institute on
the basis of dividends received and receivable.

211 -



HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED

(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

1. Reporting entity and its principal accounting policies

h)

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, non-current assets other than financial assets are reviewed to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
there is any indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or
group of related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If the estimated
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its
estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or
loss. If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of
related assets) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortization) had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (group of related assets) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediatelv in orofit or loss.

Related Parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Institute if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Institute;
(i1) has significant influence over the Institute; or
(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the Institute or the Institute’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Institute if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Institute are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) The entity or the Institute is an associate or joint venture of the other (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other is a member).

(iii) Both the entity and the Institute are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) Either the entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the Institute is an associate of the
third entity or the entity is an associate of a third entity and the Institute is a joint
venture of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Institute or an entity related to the Institute.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Institute and include (i) that
person’ s children and spouse or domestic partner; (ii) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and (iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

-12-



HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED

(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

2. Revenue from education boards less outgoings

2024
Income Expenses Total
HKS$ HK$ HK$
Board of Conjoint Examination 1,893,350 (585,383) 1,307,967
Board of Education 442,664 (558,004) (115,340)
Board of Vocational Training 721,650 (21,250) 700,400
Specialty Board 1,216,299 (248,203) 968,096
Editorial Board 31,946 (161,042) (129,096)
4,305,909 (1,573,882) 2,732,027
2023
Income Expenses Total
HK$ HK$ HKS$
Board of Conjoint Examination 2,150,000 (531,322) 1,618,678
Board of Education 228,400 (85,769) 142,631
Board of Vocational Training 461,350 (19,611) 441,739
Specialty Board 1,125,500 (284,377) 841,123
Editorial Board 150,565 (159,786) (9,221)
4,115,815 (1,080,865) 3,034,950
. Taxation

(a) No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Institute has an allowable tax loss
brought forward for the year under review.

(b) The Institute had no significant unprovided deferred taxation liabilities for the years ended 31
March 2023 and 2024.

(¢) At 31 March 2024, the Institute has unused tax losses of HK$17,161,095 (2023: HK$16,889,317)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax assets has been recognized due to the
unpredictability of future profits streams. The losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

. Directors' remuneration and loans

a) The directors received no remuneration and retirement benefits for their services to the Institute
during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2024.

b) Neither loans, quasi-loans nor other dealings have been made in favor of the directors by the
Institute during or at the end of the financial years ended 31 March 2023 and 2024.

-13 -



HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED

(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

5. Interest in a subsidiary

2024 2023
HKS HKS$
Unlisted ordinary shares, at cost 10,000 10,000
Amount due by the subsidiary 827,195 4,649,865
837,195 4,659,865
Particulars of the subsidiary as at 31 March 2024 are as follows:
Nature County of Percentage
Name of business incorporation holding
HKCFP Holdings and
Development Limited Education Hong Kong 100%

a) No group financial statements have been prepared as the directors are of opinion that it would
involve expense and delay out of proportion to the value to the members

b) Subsequent to year ended date, the subsidiary was dissolved on 13 September 2024.

6. Plant and equipment

Office equipment
Cost HK
At 1 April 2022 28,000
Additions 59,163
At 1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 87,163
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2022 4,200
Charge 6,841
At 1 April 2023 11,041
Charge 13,074
At 31 March 2024 24,115
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2024 63,048
At 31 March 2023 76,122
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED

(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

7. Related parties transaction

Material transactions with related companies, which were conducted in the normal course of
business and on an arm's length basis, are summarized as follows:

2024 2023
HKS HKS$
Management fee income receivable 2,800,000 2,790,000

-15-



File No.: 22/14876267

HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED

PROFITS TAX COMPUTATION
YEAR OF ASSESSMENT 2023/24

Basis period: Year ended 31 March 2024

Loss as per financial statements
Add: Depreciation
Impairment loss on receivable from a subsidiary

Less: Bank interest income
Depreciation allowance

Adjusted loss

Statement of loss

Balance b/f
Add: loss for the year

Balance c/f

Depreciation allowance

W.D.V.b/f
Less: A.A.

W.D.V.c/f

HK$ HK$
(4,075,970)
13,074
3,806,204
3,819,278
(256,692)
8,593
6,493
15,086
(271,778)
HK$
16,889,317
271,778
17,161,095
20% Pool Allowance
HKS$ HKS$
21,646
6,493 6,493
15,153




HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND

(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2024



HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND
(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Contents of financial statements

Report of the executive board .........ooieiriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiriiiiiiiiiisene. 1~2
Independent auditor's report .......... eetenteestesctetententsetinsenatiasanaotntrrssasenne erenenaenn 3~5
Statement of comprehensive INCOME ....c.vvieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiieiniricaiiiisititiaiecsiicnee 6
Statement of financial position ................... S N 7
Statement of changes in fUndS......iieiieiiieiiieiiiiiiiicirceiiiisc it 8
Statement Of CaASh TlOWS.coiviiiriieeierreieieirerneecirsssssastesssssrssiossssscesnsssosssnsasncssossans 9

Notes to the financial statements ......coovevieriiiniiiiiiieniiieiriiciiitiiiiotiissistoiesiieen 10 ~ 13



HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND
(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

The executive board present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Financial statements

The financial performance of the Foundation for the year ended 31 March 2024 and its state of affairs as
at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 6 to 13.

Principal activities

The Foundation continues to promote, encourage and assist, for the public benefit, research and
education on family medicine.

Business review

The Foundation falls within reporting exemption for the financial year. Accordingly, the Foundation is
qualified for exemption from preparing a business review.

Executive board members

The executive board members who served during the year and up to the date of this report were:-

Dr. Chao Vai Kiong, David

Dr. Lau Ho Lim

Dr. Wong Yeung Shan, Samuel
Dr. Fan Yuen Man Cecilia

Dr. Chiu Chi Fai, Billy

Dr. Chan Hung Chiu

Dr. Hui Ming Yung, Eric

In accordance with the article of the Foundation's Articles of Association, all executive board members,
shall retire from office and being eligible offer themselves for re-election.

Management contracts

During the year, the Foundation has paid management fee to a related company as detailed in note 5, no
contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Foundation were entered or existed during the year.

Executive board members' interests in contracts, transactions and arrangements

Excepted for those disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements, no other contracts of significance to
which the Foundation was a party and in which a member of the executive board had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Equity-linked agreements

No equity-linked arrangements of the Foundation were entered into during the year or subsisted at the
end of the year.



HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND
(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

Auditor

The auditor, Chang Leung Hui & Li C.P.A. Limited, retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

On behalf of the Board

J/

(/’\_/ b

Dr. Chao Vai Kiong, David
Chairman
Hong Kong, 15 October 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND ("the Foundation") set out
on pages 6 to 13, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024, and the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in foundation's funds and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Foundation as at 31 March 2024, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard for Private Entities ("HKFRS for PE")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Foundation in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants ("the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Executive Board is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Executive Board's report set out on pages 1 to 2, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Other Information - cont'd

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Executive Board and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Executive Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRS for PE issued by the HKICPA and the Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the Executive Board determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Executive Board is responsible for assessing the Foundation's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Executive Board either intend to liquidate the
Foundation or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Foundation's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Executive Board.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements - cont'd

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Executive Board's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Foundation's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Foundation to

cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

C

CHANG LEUNG HUI & LI C.P.A. LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

MA, CHUN YIN KEEFE
Practising Certificate Number P07357
Hong Kong, 15 October 2024



HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND

(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Revenue

Donation received
Bank interest income
Investment income

Less: Administrative expenses
Audit fee
Bank charges
Filing fee
Loss on exchange
Management fee
Sponsor expense

Surplus before changes in fair value

Less: Deficit on changes in fair value of financial assets
through other comprehensive income

Deficit for the year

2024 2023

HKS HKS$
1,404,461 982,800
127,858 37,662
228,817 145,395
1,761,136 1,165,857
(6,500) (6,500)
@2,711) (2,613)
(105) (105)
- (39,072)
(1,200,000) (500,000)
(137,500) (10,000)
(1,346,816) (558,290)
414,320 607,567
(933,200) (930,380)
(518,880) (322,813)

The notes on pages 10 to 13 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND
(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

Note
Non-current assets
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income 3
Current assets
Accounts receivable
Amount due from related companies 4

Bank balances

Current liabilities
Amount due to a related company
Accrued expenses

Net current assets
NET ASSETS
FOUNDATION'S FUNDS

General funds
Investment fair value reserve

Approved by the Executive Board on 15 October 2024
and signed on its behalf.

2o A3

2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$
3,002,057 3,812,234
33,000 51,500
23,525,982 23,391,498
13,918,775 13,745,962
37,477,757 37,188,960
: (2,500)
(6,500) (6,500)
(6,500) (9,000)
37,471,257 37,179,960
40,473,314 40,992,194
39,878,010 39,463,690
595,304 1,528,504
40,473,314 40,992,194

Dr. Chao Vai Kiong, David Dr. Chiu Chi Fai, Billy
Chairman Honorary Treasurer

The notes on pages 10 to 13 form an integral part of these financial statements.




HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND
(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN THE FOUNDATION'S FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

At 1 April 2022

Deficit for the year

At 1 April 2023

Deficit for the year

At 31 March 2024

Investment
General fair value
funds reserve Total
HK$ HK$ HKS
38,856,123 2,458,884 41,315,007
607,567 (930,380) (322,813)
39,463,690 1,528,504 40,992,194
414,320 (933,200) (518,880)
39,878,010 595,304 40,473,314

The notes on pages 10 to 13 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND

(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating results for the year
Adjustments for:

Interest income

Operating profit before working capital changes
Decrease / (increase) in accounts receivable

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Increase in financial assets at fair value

through other comprehensive income
(Advance to) / repayment from related companies
Interest received

Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Analysis of the balance of cash and cash equivalents
Bank and cash balance

2024 2023
HKS HKS
414,320 607,567
(127,858) (37,662)
286,462 569,905
18,500 (17,000)
304,962 552,905
(123,023) (335,699)
(136,984) 406,120
127,858 37,662
(132,149) 108,083
172,813 660,988
13,745,962 13,084,974
13,918,775 13,745,962
13,918,775 13,745,962

The notes on pages 10 to 13 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND
(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

1. Reporting entity and its principal accounting policies

HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND (LIMITED BY GUARANTEE) is a foundation incorporated in
Hong Kong that is limited by guarantee and not having a share capital. The liability of each of its
members, in the event of its being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after
he/she ceased to be a member for payment of the debts and liabilities of the Foundation contacted
before he/she ceases to be a member, and costs, charges and expenses of winding up, and for the
adjustment of the rights of the contributories amongst themselves, is limited to an amount not

exceeding HK$50.

The Foundation's registered office is located at Room 803-4, 8/F., HKAM Jockey Club Building, 99
Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong. The principal activities of the Foundation are
provision of promote, encourage and assist, for the public benefit, research and education on family
medicine.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared under the accrual basis of accounting and on the basis
that the Institute is a going concern and in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard for Private Entities (HKFRS for PE) approved by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

The measurement base adopted is the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
financial assets at fair value.

The following are the specific accounting policies that are necessary for a proper understanding of
the financial statements:

a) Revenue

Revenue is recognized as income when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
transaction will flow to the Foundation and when the amount of revenue as well as costs incurred
for the transaction can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is shown net of discounts, rebates and refund.

- Donation is recognized when the amounts have received.
- Entrance fee from member is recognized in the financial year of receipt.
- Annual subscription fee is recognized on a time proportion basis.

- Interest income is recognized on the time proportion basis taking into account the principal
outstanding and the effective rate of interest applicable.
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND

(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

1. Reporting entity and its principal accounting policies

b)

d)

Trade and other receivable

Trade and other receivables are measured at initial recognition at transaction price (including
transaction costs) and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment, if any. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Foundation will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognized in
profit or loss.

Income tax

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has be made in the financial statements as the
Foundation is exempt from tax under Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, non-current assets other than financial assets are reviewed to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
there is any indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or
group of related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If the estimated
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its
estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or
loss. If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of
related assets) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortization) had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (group of related assets) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Related Parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Foundation if that

(i) has control or joint control over the Foundation;
(i) has significant influence over the Foundation; or
(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the Foundation or the Foundation’s

(b) An entity is related to the Foundation if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Foundation are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) The entity or the Foundation is an associate or joint venture of the other (or an associate
or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other is a member).

(iii) Both the entity and the Foundation are joint ventures of the same third party.
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND

(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

1. Reporting entity and its principal accounting policies
¢) Related Parties - cont'd

(b) (iv) Either the entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the Foundation is an associate of
the third entity or the entity is an associate of a third entity and the Foundation is a joint
venture of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Foundation or an entity related to the Foundation.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Foundation and include (1)
that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; (ii) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and (iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

f) Financial assets

Financial assets are recognized when, and only when the entity becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

On initial recognition of an investment in equity instrument that is not held for trading, the
Foundation may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income which will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss. Dividends
from such investments are to be recognized in profit or loss when the Foundation's right to
receive payments is established. For investments in equity instruments which the Foundation has
not elected to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income, changes
in fair value are recognized in profit or loss.

A financial asset is derecognized where the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset
has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognized in other comprehensive income for debt instruments is recognized in profit

or loss.

2. Executive board members' remuneration

The executive board members received no remuneration and retirement benefits for their services to
the Foundation during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2024.
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND

(LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

3. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Hong Kong listed equity securities, at market value

Fair value at the beginning of the year
Increase in investment
Deficit on changes in fair value

through other comprehensive income

Fair value at the end of the year

4. Amount due from related companies

Name

The Hong Kong College of
Family Physicians

HKCFP Education Limited

These debts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

5. Related party transactions

Maximum
balance
outstanding
during the year
HK$

2,316,838

21,209,144

2024 2023
HKS$ HK$
3,812,234 4,406,915
123,023 335,699
(933,200) (930,380)
3,002,057 3,812,234
Balance Balance
outstanding outstanding
at 31.3.2024 at 31.3.2023
HK$ HKS$
2,316,838 2,206,586
21,209,144 21,184,912
23,525,982 23,391,498

Material transactions with a related company, which were conducted in the normal course of

business and on an arm's length basis, are summarized as followed:

Management fee paid
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2024
HKS

1,200,000

2023
HKS$

500,000




AR REFEER
The Hong Kong College of Family Physicians
Room 803-4, 8t Floor, HKAM Jockey Club Building, 99 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong
Tel : (852) 2871 8899 Fax : (852) 2866 0616

Homepage : www.hkcfp.org.hk
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